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What’s Inside?

Forward looking statements

In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take investment decisions. This report and other 
statements - written and oral – that we periodically make contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated results based on the management’s plans and assumptions. We 
have tried wherever possible to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’, and words of similar substance in 
connection with any discussion of future performance. We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we have been prudent in 
assumptions. The achievements of results are subject to risks, uncertainties, and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialise, or should 
underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated, or projected. Readers should keep this in mind. We undertake no 
obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Corporate Overview

Strategic Review

Statutory Reports and Financial Statements



We have a majority of our people living in rural areas, mostly farming communities, 
many of them in abject poverty. We as a Nation can reach our aspirations of fast and 
inclusive growth and truly feel proud only if agriculture becomes remunerative and 
farmers’ incomes increase to give them and their children a better life. This is an 
economic and moral imperative and something that cannot wait. 

Access to better technology, seeds and agronomic practices will help make significant progress 
towards these complex objectives. When Farmers make true progress, more than 50% of 
India will make progress, and when that happens, India’s GDP growth will begin to match its 
aspirations and lift millions out of poverty and towards a better life. When the basic needs of 
every Indian are met, we can claim true progress...and pride.
 
Thus...Farmer’s Progress, India’s Pride. 
Progress means different things to different people, but a common thread is “moving towards 
a better life” – and in the context of our farmers, this inevitably means making the farmer get 
more from his land, improving his yield and ensuring he gets a better return for his toil. As 
yields improve, so will the farmer’s income and India’s food security and our Nation’s ability to 
become a Global Agriculture powerhouse.

As an agriculture company, we take great pride in being one of the enablers in helping realize 
the dreams of millions of India’s farmers and in playing a small role in helping our farmers 
progress.

With progress will come pride and the ability to hold our heads high…
…high, with an improved quality of life for our farmers through sustainable and profitable 
agriculture, most importantly low levels of farm debts and greater confidence in their land. 

Making a farmer’s child want to become a farmer – by choice. 

Making their tomorrow better than yesterday.

Progress, Prosperity, Plenty on our farms will make India Proud.

Farmer’s progress. 
India’s pride.

From Dreams, 
comes 
Farmer’s 
Progress, 
InDIa’s PrIDe.
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The monsanto 
Pledge

Dialogue
We will listen carefully to diverse points of view 
and engage in thoughtful dialogues. We will 
broaden our understanding of issues in order 
to better address the needs and concerns of the 
society and of each other.

Transparency
We will ensure that information is available, 
accessible and understandable at all times.

Sharing
We will share our knowledge and technology 
to advance scientific understanding, improve 
agriculture and the environment, improve 
crops and help farmers in the developing 
countries.

Benefits
We will use innovative science and thoughtful 
and effective stewardship to deliver high-
quality products that will be beneficial to our 
customers and to the environment.

Respect
We will respect the religious, cultural and 
ethical concerns of people around the world. 
The safety of our employees, the communities 
where we operate, our customers, consumers 
and the environment will always be our highest 
priority.

Act as Owners to Achieve Results
We will create clarity of direction, roles and 
accountability; build strong relationships with 
our customers and external partners; make 
wise decisions; steward our company resources; 
and take full responsibility to achieve agreed-
upon results.

Create a Great Place to Work
We will ensure diversity of people and thought; 
foster innovation, creativity and learning; 
practice inclusive teamwork; and reward and 
recognize our people.

Integrity
Integrity is the foundation of all that we do. Integrity includes honesty, decency, consistency and 
courage. Building on these values, we are committed to:

The ‘Monsanto Pledge’ represents the values guiding our business approach, 
helping us measure progress in key sustainability areas. Integrity is the foundation 
of all that we do. The Monsanto Pledge is our commitment to how we do business. 
Through excellence, engagement and integrity, Monsanto is committed to ensure 
its obligation towards ethical, environmental and legal responsibility.
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committed to 
sustainable agriculture

The Challenge...
Meeting the needs of today, while 
preserving the planet for tomorrow

Our Solutions...

Producing more Conserving more Improving lives

By getting more from every seed
Despite the rapid increase in the world’s 
population, the fact remains that only a 
small fraction of the earth’s land area is 
suitable for growing crops. In order to 
keep up with rising demand, we need 
to produce more food in the next few 
decades than we ever have in history. 
But this growth in production will not 
be sustainable unless we make drastic 
improvisation in farm productivity.

Monsanto works with farmers around 
the world to make agriculture more 
productive and sustainable. Our improved 
technology enables farmers to extract 
more from every acre of farmland.

On a global level, we are working towards 
producing double yields in our three core 
crops – cotton, maize and soybean – 
by 2030. We plan to make this possible 
through a combination of advanced plant 
breeding, biotechnology and improved 
farm-management practices.

These and other innovations will enable 
us to meet the ever-increasing demand 
for food, clothing and energy posed by 
the world’s growing populace. That, in 
turn, will help produce more security and 
a more stable, healthy, prosperous and 
progressive future for Indian farmers – 
leading to India’s pride.

By growing more with less
In an intricate network such as the 
earth’s ecosystem, an imbalance in one 
area directly or indirectly affects many 
others. Depletion of rivers and aquifers 
leads to crop failure and desertification of 
formerly arable land. Similarly, burning 
of fossil fuel generates greenhouse gasses 
which can lead to acid rain and contribute 
to climate change.

For this reason we’ve strengthened 
our goal of doubling crop yields by 
committing ourselves to utilizing one-
third fewer resources such as land, water 
and energy per unit produced.

We constantly aim to develop better seeds 
and improved on-farm practices that can 
enable farmers to better manage weeds, 
pests and environmental stresses. We are 
also working with our partners to develop 
better conservation systems.

And we are working to make these tools 
of innovation available to people who 
have the most direct relationship with 
the land –millions of farmers around the 
world, creating a stepping stone for their 
progress.

By using best for more
The technology we use to develop better 
seeds and the partnerships we nurture to 
develop new agronomic practices increase 
yield productivity.

For every farmer in the world who raises 
himself from poverty to prosperity, 
there are many more that progress and 
prosper through healthier diets, greater 
educational opportunities and brighter 
futures, fuelled by robust local economies.

So whatever the world looks like from 
where you stand, the truth is we are all 
in this together. We truly believe that by 
working together, we can create a brighter 
and more sustainable world for all of us.

And that is exactly what we, at Monsanto, 
are working towards every day.

We are driving farmers’ progress to 
enhance India’s pride.

Corporate Overview
Strategic Review

Board And Management Reports
Financial Statements
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Pride of 
Parentage

Monsanto Company
Headquartered in St. Louis, Missouri, Monsanto Company is a leading global provider 
of technology-based solutions and agricultural products aimed at improving farm 
productivity and food quality. The Company is committed to enabling small and large 
farmers in producing more, while conserving more of the world’s natural resources. The 
Company is a leading producer of seed brands in crops such as maize, cotton, oilseeds 
(soybeans and canola) and vegetables.

Monsanto also produces leading in-the-
seed trait technologies for farmers aimed 
at protecting their yields, supporting 
their on-farm efficiency and reducing 
costs. The Company is also dedicated 
to broadly licensing seed and trait 
technologies to other companies around 
the world. This approach ensures farmers 
can access these products in the varieties 
that mean the most to their farm. In 
addition to the seeds and traits business, 
the Company manufactures Roundup®, 
the world’s largest-selling herbicide 
brand, besides other herbicides used by 
farmers, consumers and lawn-and-garden 
professionals.

WhaT We Take PrIDe In

 A Fortune 500 company

 Ranked by Forbes Magazine among Top 10 of the World’s Most Innovative 
Companies 

 CEO Hugh Grant was ranked No. 10 by Harvard Business Review among its 
list of World’s 100 best-performing CEOs

 Selected among ‘100 Best Corporate Citizens 2010’ by Corporate Responsibility 
Magazine

 Voted as ‘Company of the Year’ in 2009 by Forbes Magazine

 Ranked amongst ‘World’s 10 Most Influential Companies’ in 2008 by Business 
Week

QuIck FacTs

Headquarters
St. Louis, Missouri, 
United States

Products
 Agricultural and vegetable seeds
 Plant biotechnology traits
 Crop protection chemicals

Global Net Sales (2011)
US$ 11,822 Million

USA, Asia-Pacific, Canada, China, Europe, Middle East, Africa, Latin America (North), Latin America (South), India
(Map not to scale)



5

Annual Report 2011-12

Corporate Overview
Strategic Review

Board And Management Reports
Financial Statements

Monsanto India Limited
Monsanto India Limited (MIL), a subsidiary of Monsanto Company, USA, is the only 
publicly listed Monsanto entity outside of United States.

Incorporated in 1949, MIL is committed to helping Indian farmers produce more, while 
conserving sustainably. It focuses on maize (Dekalb®, India’s largest selling hybrid maize 
seed brand) and agricultural productivity (Roundup®, the world’s as well as India’s largest 
selling glyphosate herbicide), touching the lives of Indian farmers and promoting their 
progress.

MIL endeavors to boost crop productivity through advanced research in maize cultivation, 
access to a wide library of global maize germplasm, breeding technology and techniques, 
new high-yielding hybrid seeds, best-in-class manufacturing facilities, extensive 
agronomic activities and on-farm technology development.

During 2011-12, MIL recorded net sales of Rs. 367.98 crores, while investment in R&D 
was Rs. 17.27 crores. 

WhaT We Take PrIDe In…

 The Great Places to Work (GPTW) Institute featured Monsanto India as one of 
the Top 100 among `India’s Best Companies to Work, 2011’

 Recognized among the best employers in 8 out of last 9 years (GPTW: 2003, 
2008, 2009, 2010 & 2011; Hewitt Associates 2004, 2005 & 2007)

QuIck FacTs

Products
Hybrid maize seeds – Dekalb®
Glyphosate herbicide – Roundup®

Facilities
 2 seed research breeding stations
 1 seed processing facility
 1 quality assurance laboratory 
 1 chemistry plant

India Presence
Over six decades of presence
357 employees

Listed on
Bombay Stock Exchange 
(BSE code – 524084)

National Stock Exchange 
(NSE code – MONSANTO)

Headquarters Mumbai, India
(Map not to scale)



6

Monsanto India Limited

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
“True progress is making farmers’ 
tomorrow better than their yesterday.” In 
developed countries, there is a growing 
recognition that smallholder farmers and 
rural communities are a crucial element 
of the solution to the challenges posed 
by food insecurity and poverty. A study 
conducted by the International Fund 
for Agricultural Development (IFAD) 
indicates, a healthy agricultural sector 
acts as a multiplier in local economies, 
spurring higher incomes and increasing 
access to markets – both for the farmer 
and the society. “Agriculture, irrespective 
of the size of the farm, generates business, 
and every entrepreneur, whether it is a 
smallholder farmer or a large commercial 
farmer, needs or wants to make money,” 

IFAD’s President Kanayo F. Nwanze emphasized in his speech at the World Economic 
Forum in 2010. 

World population is expected to increase from 7 billion to 9 billion between now and 
2050 (Source: The Economist). To keep pace with this growth, the United Nations’ Food 
and Agriculture Organization (FAO) reckons grain output will have to rise considerably. 
The world will need at least 70% more food by 2050, while food production in developing 
countries will need to double. This may be difficult, considering growth in agricultural 
yield has slowed down, but it is not impossible. 

In India, agriculture has a significant history. Today, India ranks second worldwide in 
farm output, with a majority of its workforce continuing to depend on agriculture. In 
rural areas, the dependence on agriculture is more, as nearly 50% of the total population 
is employed directly or indirectly in agriculture. The Indian agricultural sector is on the 
brink of transformation owing to the structural change in the Indian economy during the 
past few decades. Agriculture is demographically the broadest economic sector and plays 
a significant role in India’s overall socio-economic fabric. This, in turn, requires a renewed 
focus on agriculture from all stakeholders. Fostering in rapid, sustained and broad-based 
growth in this sector remains a key priority for our government.

The Indian agricultural 
sector is on the brink of 
transformation owing 
to the structural change 
in the Indian economy 
during the past few 
decades. Agriculture 
is demographically the 
broadest economic sector 
and plays a significant 
role in India’s overall 
socio-economic fabric.

Sekhar Natarajan, Chairman

chairman’s 
message
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However, what remains of prime concern is that the economic contribution of agriculture 
to India’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is steadily declining, despite its broad-based 
economic growth. The share of agriculture, including forestry and fishing, has declined as 
growth in industrial (mining, manufacturing, electricity, construction) and services sector 
has far outpaced the agricultural sector. This will have to be corrected with increased 
agricultural outputs while ensuring both food and nutrition security.

From where we stand today, the need of the hour is modernization in all agricultural 
inputs; reduction in post-harvest wastage, increased corporate participation and higher 
investments in agriculture. As a country we need to usher in improved R&D and expertise, 
which will result in better seeds, nutrients and agricultural practices. Much of this is 
already happening at the grassroot level, thanks to investments by agro-based companies. 

Another huge and critically important change is happening at the farmers’ end. Farmers’ 
awareness levels are slowly rising and they are beginning to view farming as an economically 
viable profession. They are also gaining access to better inputs, infrastructure and are keen 
to effectively participate in the changing markets.

At MIL, we are happy to be a part of this agricultural revolution as we realize that with 
farmers’ progress will stem the pride of India. We are happy to have played our role in 
raising the productivity levels of maize, protecting crop yields through our herbicides 
and to have contributed to improving the overall landscape of Indian farmers. We’ve also 
introduced innovative and technologically-advanced products in the market, living up to 
our commitment of making agriculture sustainable. Several of our initiatives engaging the 
farming communities stand testimony to our overwhelming trust and confidence in our 
mission of improving the farmers’ lives – directly or indirectly.

MIL’s goal continues to be to increase crop productivity through better products. The 
very foundation of our business is food security as well as sustainable and profitable 
agriculture. We will continue our endeavour to nurture sustained growth and development 
in agriculture, with appropriate support from the industry, government and other 
stakeholders – all working together.

Today, as we move ahead, I see an urgent need for an enabling and appropriate policy 
environment that encourages all companies to invest in better research, cutting-edge 
technology and innovative agricultural inputs. As the demand for adoption of modern 
agronomic practices and farming techniques to improve farming yield continue to rise, 
the industry should be willing and ready to play its important role.

In our Annual Report 2011-12, we demonstrate our commitment to overcome the 
challenges that face Indian agriculture and help in transforming the lives of Indian 
farmers. This vision is strengthened by our strong belief that farmers’ progress enhances 
India’s pride. 

And MIL is proud to be the catalyst for this progress made by farmers – in making their 
tomorrow better than yesterday.

Farmer’s Progress is indeed India’s Pride.

Regards,

Sekhar Natarajan, Chairman

From where we stand 
today, the need of the 
hour is modernization 
in all agricultural inputs; 
reduction in post-harvest 
wastage, increased 
corporate participation 
and higher investments 
in agriculture.
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DEAR SHAREOWNERS,

Let me start with a small recap of our last year’s Annual Report theme 
– Inspired by Dreams, where we had said:

“A dream is a powerful instrument of change and transformation. If pursued with 
diligence, dreams can lead to far reaching and profound change for the good.” We are 
aware that not all dreams are easy to achieve. At MIL, we see our role as facilitators of our 
farmers’ dreams. And through them contribute to fulfilling our national vision for farmers 
and agriculture in India. At MIL, we dream with our eyes open – to ensure that we deliver 
on them.”

To dream big is hard, but to work towards attaining those dreams is infinitely harder. We 
have been working on our dreams to help the Indian Farmer realize his. Through these 
efforts; the efforts of the State and countless others, and most importantly through the 
farmers’ own efforts, we see them make steady progress. As they do so, we cannot help but 
be filled with immense pride. Much remains to be done and this is just the start, but as 
farmers progress, all of India takes pride. Therefore, moving a few paces ahead from last 
year our theme for 2011-12 is Farmer’s Progress, India’s Pride.

Amitabh Jaipuria, Managing Director

To dream big is hard, 
but to work towards 
attaining those dreams 
is infinitely harder. We 
have been working on 
our dreams to help the 
Indian Farmer realize 
his. Through these 
efforts; the efforts of 
the State and countless 
others, and most 
importantly through 
the farmers’ own 
efforts, we see them 
make steady progress.

managing Director’s 
message



9

Annual Report 2011-12

Corporate Overview
Strategic Review

Board And Management Reports
Financial Statements

India, today, despite having over 50% of its 
population engaged in agriculture, derives 
much of its GDP and growth from sectors 
other than agriculture. Two sectors of the 
economy – Industry and Services, are the 
engines which drive the Indian economy, 
constituting 85% of our GDP. The average 
growth of the Agriculture sector in India 
has been at ~ 2% over a number of years.

Good growth in some years, inevitably 
gets reversed by slower growth in others. 
The government has been aiming at 
a sustained 4% annual growth, which 
seems like a difficult objective given that 
agricultural infrastructure is weak and the 
sector is characterized by policy rigidities. 
Since agricultural growth is slow, rural 
poverty remains high.

We have a majority of our population 
living in rural areas, many of them in 
abject poverty. As a Company focussed 
on agriculture and on the welfare of 
farmers, we believe that India can reach 
its growth aspirations and feel proud only 
if agriculture becomes remunerative and 
farmers’ incomes increase to give them 
and their families a better life. This is an 
economic and moral imperative for our 
country that cannot wait.

Monsanto is committed to the cause of 
improving farmer lives and to sustainable 
agriculture. We believe that access to 
better technology, seeds and agronomic 
practices will help make significant 
progress towards these objectives. When 
farmers make true progress, more than 
50% of India will make progress. When 
that happens, India’s GDP growth will 
begin to match its aspirations and lift 
millions out of poverty and towards a 
better life. When the basic needs of every 
Indian are met, we can claim true progress 
and pride.

All stakeholders – farmers, agriculture 
companies, the Central and State 
Governments and Universities – will 
have to collaborate to address key issues 
of labour availability, soil degradation, 
dependence on the monsoon, increasing 

productivity and adoption of new 
technologies. We realize that while the 
challenges are obvious, every stakeholder 
is making progress in their own way and 
taking pride in what they achieve. We see 
ourselves as intimately connected with 
these multiple paths to progress. This 
annual report showcases some of these 
paths to progress and why they should 
justly make us all proud.

I take this opportunity to give you a quick 
snapshot of the progress that we have 
made in the year 2011-12, and will also 
share our perspectives on some aspects of 
Indian agriculture. These perspectives will 
hopefully also give you a sense of how we 

are moving towards realizing the multiple 
dreams that we spoke about earlier and 
the challenges that we face.

Progress and Pride in the context of Indian 
Agriculture
We can define progress in two ways. 
Firstly, in simple material terms: increased 
calorific intake, rise in per capita income, 
asset ownership and general prosperity. 
The second way of defining progress is 
through social parameters and a more 
human way of defining progress. This 
includes access to healthcare, increased 
literacy levels, low levels of indebtedness 
and an increased level of well-being. 
At MIL, we believe material progress is 
important, but we would like to see India’s 
farmers progress significantly on the 
quality of life indicators. As we search for 
better ways to impact the farmer’s quality 
of life, we believe his progress depends on 
his ability to produce more and to produce 

better, with lower inputs, from the limited 
amount of land and resources he has. 
Progress, therefore, means progress 
towards better yields and access to a better 
life. If a farmer’s child can have a secure 
future, they become participants in India’s 
growth, not only enabling growth but also 
partaking of the benefits it provides. That’s 
at the heart of pride – where you have a 
richer and a more confident future.
The final aspect of pride for the farmer 
perhaps comes from drawing fulfilment 
from farming as a profession. He should 
want his children to continue as farmers – 
by choice – and for this to happen, farming 
needs to be remunerative and be seen as 
an important and skilled profession. Our 

farmers should be farmers by choice, 
neither by default nor due to lack of other 
options.

An example of Farmer’s Progress, India’s 
Pride, in Indian Agriculture
Improving farmers’ lives is at the core of 
our corporate and societal commitment. 
Keeping with our single-minded focus 
on sustainable agriculture, our efforts 
are helping enhance yields, incomes, 
farming convenience and farmers’ peace 
of mind. Over the years, we have been 
able to strengthen farming communities 
sustainably, through successful 
partnerships with the State and non-
governmental organizations.

A good example of this is insect-protected 
hybrid cotton
The Kharif 2011-12 sowing season 
marked ten years of farmers choosing 
to sow hybrid cotton seeds with insect 
protection Bt cotton technologies in India 

At MIL, we believe material progress is important, 
but we would like to see India’s farmers progress 
significantly on the quality of life indicators. As we 
search for better ways to impact the farmer’s quality of 
life, we believe his progress depends on his ability to 
produce more and to produce better.
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(introduced in 2002). In the ten years 
since then, cotton farmers, the cotton 
economy and the nation have experienced 
a transformation. Farmers have doubled 
production and India has become the 
world’s second largest cotton producer 
and exporter, from a large importer 
earlier. The International Cotton Advisory 
Council (ICAC) Report 2009, stated, “Of 
all the countries that have adopted biotech 
cotton so far, India has derived the greatest 
benefit from the insect resistant biotech 
trait. No other country has attained such 
an increase in yields.”

This is a fitting example of how access to 
appropriate technology, brought to the 
farmer through the collaborative efforts 
of Public and Private sector players as 
well as Universities and the Government, 
can help Indian farmers improve yields, 
incomes and lives, making India a proud 
player in the world market. India’s cotton 
farmers are catering to the world’s demand 
and earning a fair and competitive return 
for their produce.

What does the future hold for Indian 
farmers?
India’s first Green Revolution of the 
1970s was based on path-breaking 
technologies that had spread worldwide 
in the 1950s and 1960s, increasing the 
amount of calories produced per acre 
of agriculture. The beginnings of the 
Green Revolution are often attributed to 
Norman Borlaug, an American scientist 
interested in agriculture. In the 1940s, he 
began conducting research in Mexico and 
developed new disease resistance high-
yield varieties of wheat.

Borlaug and the Ford Foundation 
implemented a research project when 
India was on the brink of mass famine 
and developed a new variety of rice, IR8, 
that produced more grain per plant when 
grown with irrigation and fertilizers. This 
was developed on the basis of international 
germplasm exchange and implemented 
in partnership with prominent Indian 
scientists like Dr. M. S. Swaminathan and 

Indian Rice Research Institute (IRRI). 
Today, India is one of the world’s leading 
rice producers.

Thus international collaboration, 
germplasm exchange, movement and 
development combined with local effort 
and expertise has been the basis of success 
in the past – in India and elsewhere. 
India has and continues to have great 
agriculture scientists and a proud 
agriculture tradition. We look forward to 
international collaboration in agricultural 
research and welcome every opportunity 
to improve farmer lives.

India needs an agricultural resurgence 
again – a second green revolution. After 
all, the challenges are tougher now – 
increasing population, diminishing 
resources, changing weather patterns and 
progressive loss of productive land. Today, 
the non-agricultural per capita income 
in India is almost six times higher than 
the per capita income of the population 
engaged in agriculture. This divergence 
will have to be bridged as we move towards 
a more equal society and towards creating 
food security for our people. Proposed 
legislation such as the Food Security Bill 
will have to be based on a foundation 
of sufficient agricultural output, which 
can be achieved if relevant technology is 
made available, farming extension service 
levels are improved, agricultural inputs 
are modernized and post-harvest wastage 
is reduced.

There is an immediate need for India to 
provide an impetus for biotechnology 

Access to appropriate technology, brought to the 
farmer through the collaborative efforts of Public 
and Private sector players as well as Universities and 
the Government, can help Indian farmers improve 
yields, incomes and lives, making India a proud 
player in the world market.
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research to reach the farmers across 
the nation, without getting shackled 
by misleading forces that create 
an environment of negativity and 
misinformation.

What can the seed industry do to fast 
track farmers’ progress?
We and the seed industry can do more to 
accelerate farmers’ progress. We are keen 
to speed up our research efforts and to 
make larger investments, into the farm 
sector. India’s private sector has shown 
it can make large investments and create 
value in long-gestation infrastructure 
sectors. In the agriculture sector, 
companies are willing to make investments 
but are holding back due to policy 
uncertainties on the creation of higher 
yielding hybrids and the introduction 
of new biotechnologies in crops other 
than cotton. For the sake of the Indian 
farmer, Central and State Governments 
along with the industry have to create an 
enabling policy framework and facilitate 
introduction of new technologies and 
fresh investments.

Anyone who has travelled to India’s farms 
and spoken with farmers will recall their 
concerns around labour availability 
and weed management. One of the 
technologies available to farmers in other 
countries is in-built herbicide tolerance. 
This gives the farmer unparalleled 
flexibility to control weeds and protect 
the yield that would otherwise have been 
lost. Most of the world’s soybean crop, for 
example, is grown using this technology. 
Indian farmers, however, have no access to 
this agricultural breakthrough. Herbicide 
tolerance has great relevance to Indian 
farmers today, given the great shortage of 
farm labour. Other exciting technologies 
being researched and tested in other 
countries include water use efficiency and 
nitrogen use efficiency.

We are confident our country’s science-
based regulatory system will continue 
to support research-led innovation 
in agriculture and help improve crop 

productivity, providing access to high-
income generating crop technologies 
to Indian farmers. This will benefit not 
only our farmers but the consumers, the 
environment and our nation as a whole.

Given the access to technological 
innovation, Indian farmers have the 
potential to be amongst the world’s most 
productive and competitive farmers. India 
can then not only satisfy its own needs 
for agriculture-derived commodities, but 
become a significant global agriculture 
commodities powerhouse. That would be 
a proud day for Indian farmers and for all 
of India.

Let’s take a look at how farmers in India 
are tackling the weed menace:
Weeds are a major problem for farmers 
across crops and across the country – 
especially in the wet/Kharif season. Weeds 
take up the nutrition in the soil and hence 
impact yields. In some cases yield losses 
can add up to almost 50% of the crop 
potential. Apart from depriving the crop 
of nutrition, weeds also act as a host to 
many pests which are harmful to crops.

So far, farmers have been using manual 
labour to pull out weeds. Moreover, the 
rural farm labour situation is likely to get 
even more difficult. The challenges faced 
by farmers due to labour availability and 

rising costs, need to be tackled through 
the use of technology. The increasing use 
of technology and solutions such products 
for weeding and conservation tillage, 
will spur the growth of companies such 
as ours.

We also expect that our customer-
centricity, quality, distribution and brand-
building efforts will help us drive higher 
market share. The demand for Roundup® 
looks optimistic – for both the short and 
long-term.

Maize farming in India: The next big thing
Maize is the world’s largest cereal crop. It 
is not only the third-largest cereal crop 
in India after rice and wheat, but also the 
fastest growing. In India, the area under 
maize is relatively stable at approximately 
8 million hectares. Within this area, 
however, there is a shift from the low-
yielding Open Pollinated Varietal (OPV) 
seeds to high-yielding hybrids.

The demand for maize grain in India is 
on the rise due to population growth, 
and changing food habits. A greater 
requirement for poultry and processed 
food is driving the demand for maize 
starch. Given its importance and 
future potential, it was included in the 
Technology Mission on Oilseeds & 
Pulses in May 1995. (Source: Directorate 
of Economics & Statistics, Department of 
Agriculture, State of Indian Agriculture 
Report 2012).

Average maize productivity in India is 
only 0.8 MT per acre while the same is 
over 4 MT per acre in US and Spain. 
Brazil is over 1.5 MT per acre. India needs 
to increase growth rate of maize to meet 
increasing demands.

Maize productivity and output has 
improved sharply in India over the past 
decade MIL is helping maize farmers 
progress through our direct and indirect 
contribution to India’s “Yellow” revolution. 
Our germplasm portfolio combined 
with cutting-edge breeding research has 
enabled our scientists and researchers 

Average maize 
productivity in India 
is only 0.8 MT per 
acre while the same 
is over 4 MT per acre 
in US and Spain. 
Brazil is over 1.5 MT 
per acre. India needs 
to increase growth 
rate of maize to meet 
increasing demands.
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to create the widest high yielding hybrid 
maize seed product portfolio in the 
industry. This portfolio enables farmers to 
choose the exact hybrid suited to his needs 
and maximize his yields. We are helping 
to create value through our partnerships 
with several State Governments, 
Agriculture Institutions and our extension 
service platforms.

More importantly, our consistent 
engagement with farming communities, 
in partnership with State Governments 
and farmer organizations is leading to a 
long-term impact on farmers.

Insects and weeds are the major yield 
reducing factors for maize cultivation 
in India. Losses caused by Stem borer 
(Chilo partellus) and pink borer (Sesamia 
inferense) result in yield losses in the 
range of 15-50 %. Further, ineffective 
weed control measures could result in 
20-60% loss in yield. To make the yield 
increase sustainable, it is essential to have 
a sustainable, economically viable and 
environmentally sound crop production 
system. Modern biotechnology provides 
us the basic tools to overcome some of 
these issues and develop crops to meet 
the demands.

The next big advancement in Indian maize 
productivity will come through insect 
protected and herbicide-tolerant maize 
which is already available to farmers in 
many countries. Monsanto is working 
to introduce such technologies in India. 
These will be made available to Indian 
farmers on Monsanto hybrid seeds as well 
as on those of other partner companies. 
This approach ensures that farmers can 
access our technologies in the specific 
hybrid varieties that mean the most to 
their farm.

After a look at the macro and larger 
picture, let’s now talk a bit about the year 
just concluded:
During 2011-12, your Company made 
steady progress and also had some 
significant achievements. Overall our 

revenue grew marginally over the previous 
year but profitability saw a significant 
increase with profit before tax up 20%. In 
brief, our Roundup® franchise grew very 
well and our hybrid Maize seeds business 
also showed significant movement 
towards portfolio up-gradation and 
renewal, building our growth platform for 
the future. Our new launches: DKC 9108 – 
for the spring market in the North (Uttar 
Pradesh and Punjab) and DKC 8101 – for 
the Kharif season for Karnataka, Andhra 
Pradesh and Maharashtra, did exceedingly 
well. DKC 9081, our blockbuster product 
for the Dry season continues to power 
ahead and record impressive growth in 
Bihar while establishing itself in many 
other important markets.

Through our Public Private Partnerships 
with the Governments of Rajasthan, 
Gujarat, Uttar Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, 
Andhra Pradesh and Karnataka, we played 
a role in enhancing the yields and incomes 
of small and marginal tribal farmers. Our 
pioneering customer connect initiative – 
Dr. Dekalb Farm Care (DDFC), a mobile-
based farmer advisory service, was scaled 
up significantly and also extended to 
Roundup®. This initiative is fast becoming 
a key differentiator for us. We further 
progressed with the regulatory process 
with the introduction of a path-breaking 
technology in maize, an insect-protected 
and weed resistant biotech maize. This will 
help the maize farmer in India gain access 
to yield enhancing/preserving technology.

Overall, our operations were streamlined 
with significant improvements in our cash-
flow position due to lower inventory. This 

Our germplasm portfolio combined with cutting-
edge breeding research has enabled our scientists and 
researchers to create the widest high yielding hybrid 
maize seed product portfolio in the industry. This 
portfolio enables farmers to choose the exact hybrid 
suited to his needs and maximize his yields.
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is a direct result of a focused effort on our 
forecasting and inventory management 
processes. Our overall focus on costs also 
meant that our indirect costs were almost 
flat this year over the past year, despite the 
extremely inflationary environment.

In our effort to make agriculture 
sustainable and capable of supporting 
nine billion people, Monsanto Company 
has instituted an internal program to 
recognize the best efforts in this area 
through the Global Annual Sustainable 
Yield Pledge Awards.

Our future initiatives and milestones
There is significant progress on our 
planned agenda and much to be proud of, 
but it is the future and the promise that 
it holds, which really excites us. One key 
initiative is research on biotech maize. 
Your Company, amongst many other 
companies and institutions, is at various 
stages of development and rigorous testing 
of different biotech Maize technologies. 
Monsanto’s technology – YieldGard VT 
Double Pro, is a combined trait maize 
product developed by combining insect 
protection and herbicide tolerance 
traits, stacked together using traditional 
breeding methods. The inserted genes 
and their gene products have a history of 
safe use, and have undergone review and 
approval by several regulatory agencies 
around the world. 

Monsanto’s transgenic maize hybrids 
(with Events MON 89034 x NK603) have 

been developed to help prevent much 
of these yield losses of maize farmers in 
India and thus help improve productivity. 
Transgenic maize is approved for 
commercial cultivation and for food 
and feed consumption in a number 
of countries. Amongst others, Brazil, 
Canada, United States, Philippines, South 
Africa and Uruguay cultivate transgenic 
maize, while Japan, Korea, Mexico, Taiwan 
and many countries in Europe import the 
same for food, feed purposes. 

Approval of transgenic maize in India will 
be major a milestone. We will continue to 
engage in constructive dialogue with the 
regulatory authorities such as Genetic 
Engineering Approval Committee 
(GEAC) and the Review Committee 
on Genetic Manipulation (RCGM) 
of the Department of Biotechnology, 
as well as with State Governments, 
Central Government, State Agriculture 
Universities and farmers, amongst others. 
We are positive that India’s science-
based regulatory system and the intent 
to improve farmer lives will continue 
to support research-led innovations in 
agriculture. This will help improve crop 
productivity, benefitting Indian farmers 
and contributing to their progress, thus, 
making us all proud. 

The other initiative that has started paying 
back is the manufacturing consolidation 
exercise that we undertook last year. The 

coming year should see us reap the full 
benefits of that initiative.

Two other on-going initiatives include 
investments in our Breeding programs 
to create industry leading conventional 
(non transgenic) hybrids which deliver 
superior yields to our farmers, and further 
development of our innovative electronic 
service platform – Dr. Dekalb Farm 
Care, through which we are delivering 
agronomic extension services to our 
increasingly tech savvy farmers who now 
posses mobile phones. 

We are also committed to strengthening 
our community outreach and 
sustainability initiatives, while we look at 
forging stronger partnerships with various 
State Governments. 

We are confident that these initiatives will 
see us move forward and create new growth 
opportunities for the Company while at 
the same time creating tremendous new 
value for our farmers – enabling their 
progress, improving lives and giving us all 
new reasons to feel proud. 

Regards,

Amitabh Jaipuria, Managing Director

On-going initiatives include investments in our Breeding 
programs to create industry leading conventional (non 
transgenic) hybrids which deliver superior yields to our 
farmers, and further development of our innovative 
electronic service platform – Dr. Dekalb Farm Care, 
through which we are delivering agronomic extension 
services to our increasingly tech savvy farmers who now 
posses mobile phones.
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Roundup® (a glyphosate-based 
product) is a broad spectrum, post-
emergent systemic herbicide, the 
flagship brand of our Crop Protection 
Chemicals business. It is our world-
class, innovative solution to weeds, a 
critical farmer concern.

Progress Delivered
rOuNduP®
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PErFOrMANCE durING 
2011-12
The herbicides market has registered a 
consistent growth in the past few years. 
New players have entered the market, 
resulting in increased competition and 
pricing pressures. Roundup® continues 
to be the market leader in 2011-12 by 
maintaining its market share in all major 
markets and expanding our base by 
creating new market segments. Though the 
Kharif season was good, the Rabi season 
was drier than normal in key regions of 
Maharashtra and Karnataka, resulting in 
lower weed pressure and reduced demand 
for herbicides. However, the excellent 
outreach efforts at the farmer level and a 
focus on cost management have helped in 
growing the Roundup® business both in 
revenue and profit in 2011-12.

During the year, new market segments 
were identified. Extensive demonstrations 
were carried out in railways, municipal 
corporations, industries, power plants and 

cantonment areas to promote the usage 
of Roundup® in the non-agricultural 
segment, providing a chemical solution to 
weed control rather than burning weeds 
which have largely been the practice.

2011-12 IN rETrOSPECT
 Conducted 10,000 plus demonstrations 

across India to raise farmer awareness 
on safe and judicious use of Roundup® 
herbicide as an effective tool for weed 
management 

 Ran various marketing campaigns 
across the country to reinforce 
Roundup® brand equity among its 
users, some of them were:

 Saalon ka Viswas: This campaign 
was designed to reinforce the 
confidence of farmers on the 
reliability of Roundup® over the 
years. Roundup® has been helping 
farmers in India for over 20 years in 

achieving weed-free farming, with 
best in-class quality.

  Sadda Haq: Sirf Roundup®: This 
campaign was launched to educate 
farmers on their right to good 
quality products. Many farmers 
were buying low quality products 
with questionable efficacy. Through 
this campaign we also educated 
farmers on how to distinguish 
an original Roundup® from a 
counterfeit product.

 Buy Packed Products: This 
campaign was aimed to discourage 
the buying of loose glyphosate 
variants. Once a packet is opened, 
there is a risk of the product getting 
adulterated, thus, cheating and 
depriving farmers of a good quality 
product. These chemicals sold loose 
can also be physically harmful 
during handling.
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Sundar Azaria, General Manager,
Parrison’s Estate, Wayanad, Kerala

Weed infestation is one of the 
most serious problems in tea 
plantation, reducing the leaf yield 
significantly. In addition to the 
problem of reducing the nutrient 
availability for the tea bushes, 
weeds in our area grow very 
fast, aided by heavy monsoon, 
thus outgrowing the tea plants. 
Creepers are also a major issue 
in the tea estates of South India. 
Hence, it is essential to control 
weeds at an early stage. Weed 
management is a major expense 
for tea estates. Manual methods 
are insufficient, inefficient and 
extremely costly. We had been 
using Roundup® initially, but 
due to tight cash flows, we had 
to use cheaper products. Having 
tried many products, I can say 
that Roundup® provides the best 
control for weeds.

THE TEA INduSTry ANd rOuNduP®
India is one of the largest producer and consumer of tea in the world. The 
production of tea has been steadily growing in the country due to efficient and 
integrated agricultural practices which include efficient weed management. 
Tea is a perennial plant which lives beyond 80 years. Weed infestation is the 
key concern which significantly hampers productivity of tea. Besides reducing 
yield, weeds also restrict branching and frame development in young tea plants, 
which impacts productivity in later years. Tea plants are susceptible to weeds 
like Borreria hispida, Clerodendrum viscosum, Cynodon dactylon, Polygonum 
sinensis, Cyperus rotundus, Ageratum conyzoides etc. Roundup®, that can be used 
to manage weeds in young and mature plantations,has been the herbicide of 
choice for tea planters for nearly two decades. The herbicide saves man-days and 
provides broad-spectrum control of weeds for up to 50-60 days.
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S. Soundararajan, Manager (Tea 
Operations), Tyford Estates, Idukki

We face severe weed infestation 
in our tea plantations once 
monsoon arrives. Due to heavy 
rains, the weeds grow so big 
that they completely cover the 
tea-bushes. So much so, that 
it becomes impossible to even 
harvest the tea-crop, thus causing 
heavy losses. We need to control 
weeds in the pre-monsoon stage, 
before they grow tall. I have 
found Roundup® to be one of the 
best herbicide products available 
in the market. Also, since it is 
available in 200 liter barrels, 
we can store and use it later, 
whenever required. There are 
so many brands of Glyphosate 
available in the market. But the 
uniqueness of Roundup® lies 
in the fact that we have noticed 
lesser regrowth of weeds. While 
other products can control weeds 
to some extent, we have noticed 
faster re-emergence. That is why 
I choose Roundup® for weed 
control in my estate.

The average land holding in 
South Bengal is 0.5 to 1 acre. 
Marginal farmers primarily 
depend on paddy and the loss of 
one crop leads to severe economic 
repercussions. In a region with a 
three-month monsoon season, 
weeds grow with great intensity. 
Additionally, rising labor costs 
and labor scarcity during the 
planting and harvesting seasons 
prove costly for farmers.

Roundup®’s pre-plantation 
applications save farmers’ labor 
costs while reducing weed 
infestation and enabling greater 
yields. Farmers benefit from 
long duration control for a 
period of 50-60 days from weeds. 
Additionally, our strong after-
sales service network keeps them 
up-to-date on best agricultural 
practices such as zero tilling. This 
practice helps farmer keep their 
field free from weeds by using 
Roundup®, ensuring that the 
nutrition and moisture meant for 
the main crop is not consumed 
by unwanted weeds. The second 
application removes plants that 
are left over and keeps farmlands 
rich in organic matter.

PrE-PLANTATION 
APPLICATIONS IN 
SOuTH BENGAL

Mahaveer Singh Rathore, Product 
Manager – Chemistry

At MIL, it has been our constant 
endeavor to enhance productivity 
of farmers by being partners in 
their success, and making their 
dreams come true. Over the past 
year, our extensive campaigns at 
farmer level to inform and create 
awareness of Roundup® and its 
benefit over traditional weeding 
practices has been welcomed 
by the farmers. In addition, 
there has been great effort in 
building strong brand equity 
for Roundup® through various 
new marketing initiatives, while 
keeping a sharp focus on cost 
management, which has resulted 
in a good growth of Roundup® 
business. We are exploring newer 
opportunities to expand the 
base of Roundup® business by 
entering into new segments and 
introduction of new products to 
ensure a sustainable growth for 
Roundup® business.
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[Source: Directorate of Economics and Statistics, 
Ministry of Agriculture]

[Source: Monsanto/PwC]

Maize is India’s third-largest cereal crop after rice and directly contributes 
Rs. 15,500 crores to India’s agricultural GDP. India is the 6th largest 
producer and 5th largest consumer of maize in the world. 

During 2000-01 to 2010-11, area 
under maize cultivation recorded 
an annual growth rate of 2.68%, 
whereas production jumped 
7.12%. This has been made 
possible due to greater research 
in this crop and the introduction 
of high yielding maize hybrids. 
Given the limitations in the 
expansion of acreage, the main 
source of long-term output 
growth is improvement in yields. 
Comparatively, in the case of 
wheat, the growth in area and 
yield has been marginal during 
this period suggesting that the 
yield levels have plateaued for 
this crop. This suggests the need 
for renewed research to boost 
production and productivity.

Monsanto’s Dekalb®, launched in India 
in 2003, is the country’s largest selling 
hybrid maize seed brand cultivated across 
18 states, available in 16 high-yielding 
hybrids to suit India’s diverse agronomic 
and climatic conditions. A rich maize 
germplasm pool, breeding excellence 
and high productivity, makes Dekalb® a 
trusted brand.

Across the world, Maize is cultivated 
mainly for feed, food and industrial use. 
Around one-fourth of the maize grain 
harvest is consumed as food. A larger 
part, nearly 50%, gets used as animal 
feed, mostly poultry feed. This demand is 
growing rather rapidly due to the poultry 
industry’s fast growth. The rest is used 
for producing starch and other industrial 
products. The crop’s biomass (leaves 
and stalks) is used as nutritious fodder 
for cattle.

Given its importance and future potential, 
with the objective of enhancing maize 
production and productivity in the 
country’s projected demand in future, it 
was included in the Technology Mission 
on Oilseeds & Pulses in May 1995. (Source: 
Directorate of Economics & Statistics, 
Department of agriculture, State of Indian 
Agriculture Report 2012). Average maize 
productivity in India is only 0.8 MT per 
acre while the same in US and Spain 
is over 4 MT per acre, Brazil is 1.5 MT 
per acre. 

Hybrid maize varieties introduced vs. Yield per hectare

6 7 7 7 7 7 8 8 8 8 8 8
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Yielding Pride and Progress
dEkALB®

Hybrid maize varieties introduced
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Although India holds enormous potential 
for maize, its low yields per hectare relative 
to large maize growing geographies are 
due to great dependence on monsoons, 
soil quality, agronomic practices and high 
insect infestation (due to weeds). With 
substantial maize growing taking place in 
the Kharif season, weed infestation and its 
impact on yield pose significant concerns 
among maize farmers. 

Monsanto, globally, is committed to 
addressing the increasing demand for 
maize. In India, our diversified seed 
production, world-class breeding and 
manufacturing processes and extensive 
market outreach ensures Indian farmers 
steadily progress with access to best-
in-class products and establish India’s 
position in the global markets. Our 
efforts are consistently focused towards 
launching technologically superior maize 

hybrids with less disease vulnerability, 
hardiness in case of rainfall fluctuations, 
services to enable crop management and 
in the future, crop solutions to address 
insect and weed issues. 
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100 years of partnering for farmers progress across 
the world 
Dekalb® completed 100 years on January 20, 2012, establishing a legacy of 
performance and innovative firsts. Those same founding principles are still 
upheld today and Dekalb® remains committed to providing farmers with 
the highest quality maize genetics to get the most out of every acre.
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Started in 1912, in DeKalb, Illinois, 
by a group of farmers, bankers and 
newspapermen, it was led by Henry H. 
Parke who founded the DeKalb County 
Soil Improvement Association. Dekalb® 
joined the Monsanto family in 1998. 
Its products are still sold under the 
well-recognized winged ear maize logo 
introduced in 1936.

Dekalb®’s maize hybrids are tested 
extensively through partnerships 
with several State Governments, State 
Agriculture Universities and other 
leading Agricultural Institutions. These 
associations, allow MIL to focus on 
developing a robust pipeline of products, 
suited to specific Indian conditions. 
Work on new introductions for the 
North, South-West and East markets are 
underway.

DKC 9081
For fertile soils with assured irrigation availability. Bigger 
and cylindrical ears with higher row numbers. Responds to 
good growing and good management.

Pinnacle

For high fertile soils with irrigation facilities and good 
agronomic practices. Bigger and cylindrical ears with 
higher row numbers. Responds to good growing and good 
management.

900M Gold
For irrigated and assured rainfall conditions with good 
grain color and good storing quality. Good tip filling with 
attractive orange color kernels assuring good quality.

Super 900M For consistent high yields, excellent grain color and good 
keeping quality.

DKC 9108 
For the spring planting season. Compact cobs with 
excellent tip-filling with high shelling recovery. Stay green 
at harvest and good heat tolerance level.

PrOduCT rANGE

 900M Gold

 DKC 9081

 Pinnacle

 Super 900M

 Supreme

 Hishell

 Double

 Prabal

 DKC 9072

 DKC 7074

 DKC 972 plus

 DKC 9108

 Allrounder
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Hukum Sharma (father) and 
Sadanand Sharma (son)
Devan village, Khagaria district, 
Bihar 

I have been sowing Monsanto 
Dekalb® maize seeds since its 
launch in 2003. Before that I was 
using seeds of other companies. 
After we started planting 
Monsanto seeds, our economic 
situation improved considerably 
due to greater maize yields per 
acre. Initially, we only had 40 
bighas* of land where we planted 
different hybrids, but today I 
own 160 bighas of land and a 
double storey house. I am proud 
to say that I could also educate 
my daughters before I got them 
married, as education is as 
important for girls as it is for my 
boys. Both my sons are studying 
in Khagaria city. My elder son is 
doing his BA, while the younger 
one is in 11th standard. This 
improvement in my life has 
come thanks to Monsanto’s better 
quality seeds, which ensures 
better output of my farm land, 
enabling progress of my family 
and making me a proud farmer.

* 4 bighas = 1 acre 

2011-12 IN rETrOSPECT 
 Introduction of newer higher yielding 

hybrids in the portfolio

 9081 - “Best in Yield” and wider 
adaptability

 Pinnacle - repositioned to a niche 
segment of the progressive farmers

 Gold - massification of the color 
preference

 Invested in breeding station at 
Bangalore and testing locations across 
India to develop products specific to 
regional farmer needs 

 Performance evaluation of hybrids 
across India at around 1200 -1300 trial 
locations

 Collaborated with end-user industries 
to promote maize in non-traditional 
geographies with high maize 
consumption

 Entered into a Public-Private 
Partnership with the State Government 
of Uttar Pradesh to develop the Rabi 
market in the state

 Developed and leveraged channel 
relationships through “Monsanto 
One”, a loyalty program created for the 
retailers and distributors

 Expanded reach of farmer advocacy 
initiatives across India, to name a 
few like the “Farmer of the Month”, 
Dr. Dekalb Farm Care (DDFC), 
Margdarshis, end-user and farmer 
delegations to showcase success 
of maize breeding and transgenic 
technologies in the world.

Shilpa Divekar Nirula,
Crop Group Lead – Maize

At Monsanto, we take pride 
in focusing on farmers at the 
core of all our endeavours. Our 
passion to work for the benefit 
of the Indian maize farming 
community is reflected in - 
our research efforts towards 
product innovation, on-farm 
demonstrations and education 
of agronomic practices, 
relationship platforms and 
mobile advisory initiatives. These 
efforts make it possible to engage 
comprehensively with maize 
farmers across the crop cycle. As 
we celebrate the centenary year 
of our global Dekalb® brand, we 
remain committed to providing 
suitable and innovative solutions 
to enable continued progress 
of Indian maize farmers – and 
reinforce pride in agriculture.
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HANdHOLdING FOr 
PrOGrESS
Margdarshi
Farmers are our best ambassadors and 
value creators. We identified farmer 
advocacy to be a critical communication 
and adoption lever, which can help 
us further develop the market for 
technologically-advanced seeds and 
ensure progress for Indian farmers. The 
project, named Margdarshi, creates a 
mentor-follower platform for the farming 
community across India. The mentors, 
or Margdarshis, guide their friend-
followers, or Mitras, through the process 
of using efficient agronomy practices to 
improve yields.

The Margdarshi initiative created a new 
wave of progress and prosperity for 
farmers across the country, particularly 
in Bihar. The project also created a 
platform to expose new hybrids and 
initiate awareness and faster adoption – a 
win-win situation for MIL and farmers, 
contributing to farmers’ progress and 
enhancing India’s pride.

To showcase MIL’s leadership in 
agriculture innovation, we brought 
the Industry, farmers, policy and 
media stakeholders together to share 
our belief in creating farmer’s pride 
through greater success and progress 
in farming. For this, we led two Indian 
delegations to the Philippines and the 
US to showcase best in class maize 
cultivation through deployment of 
high technology seeds, and scientific 
agronomic practices.

VISIT TO MAIzE FIELdS 
TO uNdErSTANd 
TECHNOLOGICAL 
IMPACTS IN PHILIPPINES
The Philippines is significant in the 
global market of transgenic crops 
because it is one of the 29 countries 
in the world using the technology. 
Together with India, China, and 
Myanmar, it is one of the only four 
countries planting biotechnology 
derived crops (James, 2011). In 
the Philippines, transgenic maize 
has been planted since 2003 and 
is now currently available with the 
following traits: insect resistant 
(Bt), herbicide tolerant (HT), and 
a combination of the two (stacked 
Bt/HT).

The country is also the very first in 
the Southeast Asian region to have 
initiated a biotechnology regulatory 
system that even predates the 
commercialization of biotech crops 
worldwide. As the first and only Asian 
country to grow biotech crop for food, 
feed, and processing, it has approved 
biotech maize for commercialization 
in 2002 (Navarro and Hautea, 
2011). Since then, farmers who have 

adopted biotech maize have reported 
higher crop yield and income, lesser 
expenditure on insecticides, and 
significant welfare effect than that of 
non-biotech maize farmers (Yorobe 
and Quicoy, 2006). (Source: Adoption 
and Uptake Pathways of Biotechnology 
Crops – ISAAA, March 2012) 

The objective of this visit was to 
demonstrate the farmers’ progress and 
prosperity triggered by adoption of 
transgenic maize in a highly organized 
manner in the Philippines. For the 
farmers and the end-user industry 
delegates, this trip included a visit 
to the Bt/RR maize fields as well as 
in-depth discussions with Bt maize 
farmers and the Executive Director of 
the National Maize Competitiveness 
Board, Philippines. In addition, an 
interaction with International Rice 
Research Institute (IRRI) scientists 
drove home the importance of bio-
safety and the need of biotechnology 
in India.

FArM PrOGrESS SHOw 
IN dECATur, ILLINOIS
The Farm Progress Show is the 
United States’ largest annual outdoor 
farm show. The objective of this visit 
was to understand next generation 
agricultural technologies available to 
farmers and agribusiness industries. 
The trip included an interaction with 
senior Monsanto scientists and a 
visit to Monsanto facilities at Creve 
Coeur and the Technology Tour at 
Chesterfield Village Research Centre.

Sreenivas,
Ganganakatte village, Davangere district, 
Karnataka 

I feel proud to be a Dekalb® Margdarshi. 
From the last Kharif, Monsanto has given 
us detailed knowledge regarding maize 
cultivation at every stage. As a result we 
got good yield and better income despite 
low rainfall. In addition to this, my fellow 
Mitra farmers also got information from 
the Margdarshi service and improved 
their yield levels in maize. After becoming 
a Dekalb® Margdarshi, my status and 
responsibilities have increased in 
the village.
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In 1985, B. Soundararajan, the Founder-Chairman of Suguna 
Poultry, started his entrepreneurial journey near Coimbatore 
as a trader in eggs and poultry feed. Today, his Company runs 
India’s largest poultry business, which is also counted in the top 
10 worldwide. Suguna’s turnover of Rs. 37 billion comes from a 
presence in over 15 states and several international markets. For 
his pioneering work in the poultry industry, he was also selected 
as a finalist in the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year Award 
for 2011. 

How is hybrid maize enhancing the productivity of 
poultry farming?
Indian Poultry has recorded a growth rate of 12% per annum 
for the past 20 years. Poultry feed cannot be thought of without 
Maize, be it by quantity or quality. Around 60% of the raw material 
of poultry feeds consists of maize. Due to hybridization in maize, 
there is significant enhancement in quality and quantity, which is 
also reflected in chicken production.

Please elaborate on the connection between seed and 
feed? 
The feed cannot be produced without maize. Good quality seeds 
are important for the yield of maize. Quality seeds produce quality 
feeds, resulting in quality chicken.

B. Soundararajan,
Chairman, Suguna Holdings Pvt. Ltd.

Partners’ Progress, our Pride
POuLTry
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What are the key growth drivers for the poultry 
industry?
Per capita income leads towards protein intake. The protein is 
from meat or pulses. The key drivers for the growth of poultry 
Industry are per capita income and the changing food habits of the 
younger generation, which reflects a growing demand protein rich 
foods especially eggs and chicken.

Will maize continue to be the preferred ingredient 
for poultry feed? Do you see any shift in this trend?
As on today, Maize is the preferred ingredient in the poultry 
industry. If maize prizes go beyond wheat or rice, there may be a 
partial replacement of maize.

How, do you think, MIL is making a difference to 
the maize industry with its wide portfolio of hybrid 
seeds?
Monsanto’s hybrid seeds have given an option of selection to the 
farmers based on rain-fed or irrigated lands and they are able to 
choose from wide high yielding varieties.

What is the most important contribution MIL is 
making to the poultry industry? What additional 
initiatives would you like to see?
MIL is not only working on R&D or on seed sales. Its contribution 
towards farmers on best practices in growing Maize results in 
better yield. Through R&D, we are expecting high energy or high 
protein or high starch Maize. We expect the above mentioned sub-
sections in Hybrid Maize which can be initiated through R&D.

What are the ways in which you (as an end-user) can 
partner a seed company like MIL?
As a feed miller, we expect adequate Maize supplies in local 
area which helps us to reduce our logistic costs. In West Bengal, 
Maize is not grown but bought from Bihar. West Bengal is one 

of the potential areas to grow maize. We can work with the seed 
producers in such areas and jointly work towards promotions. 

What are the current farmer initiatives undertaken 
by you/your company? What are the general industry 
initiatives with farmers? 
Over the past five years, Suguna has been buying maize directly 
from the farmers. This promising initiative has eliminated the 
middle-man, making farmers earn better prizes for their produce. 
As a feed miller, this initiative helps us buy Quality maize.

What is your biggest achievement? What is your 
advice to aspiring entrepreneurs? 
Our biggest achievement is, we are able to change the face of 
the Poultry Industry by ‘Contract Farming’. By this, farmers 
are protected from the uncertainties of their income. India 
is a growing country and lots of opportunities exist here for 
entrepreneurs. I believe real India lives in the villages. There 
are lots of opportunities one can do in the agricultural field. A 
business is not done only through money, but through continuous 
innovation, hard work and passion towards a particular segment.

According to you, what is ‘Farmer’s Progress, India’ 
Pride’?
It is sad that in the current situation in India, farmers are getting 
away from agriculture. The next generation is not interested in 
getting into agriculture or being an agriculturist. Food cannot be 
produced in factories; it has to come from agricultural land only. 
Hence, it is our primary responsibility to rightly project a farmer 
as a well-rated person in India, like in the Western countries. 
Every single farmer’s progress in the country is the pride of India.
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Sambhav Chowdhary,
VP Operations, Sanstar Bio-Polymers Ltd. 
(Formerly Santosh Starch Ltd)

What role does agriculture play in the overall socio-
economic fabric?
Food security is a pressing issue for any country. As countries 
gradually recover from the impact of the global meltdown, 
a marked shift is towards agriculture is changing the overall 
socio-economic fabric. As farmers lie at the heart of an agrarian 
economy, it is important to support them to ensure the well-being 
of future generations.

Tell us about the dynamics of the starch sector.
In India, the growth in demand for maize is largely driven by 
poultry, starch and potable alcohol sectors. The starch sector 
consumes nearly 15% of maize production and is growing at 
6-10% per annum. Though a large portion of maize that India 
produces is exported, the future growth in demand for maize is 
envisaged to turn India into a net maize importer by 2015-16.

What sort of initiatives need to be taken by the 
government?
Despite rising maize demand, at least 5-7% of total maize 
produced annually gets wasted owing to lack of proper storage 

STArCH

Partners’ Progress, our Pride



27

Annual Report 2011-12

Corporate Overview
Strategic Review

Board And Management Reports
Financial Statements

and transportation. The government needs to provide proper 
infrastructure to farmers such as silos for storage, drying systems 
which would minimise wastage thereby keeping a check on the 
price. Government policies need to be structured in a manner that 
ensures faster ramp-up of infrastructure.

What needs to be done to ensure end-users earn 
higher margins?
In order to earn higher margins, end-user industries must 
include value-added products in their portfolio by investing 
in infrastructure and technology. To ensure a better value 
chain, a grading system of maize needs to be implemented to 
determine quality. Further, a ‘no-pricing mechanism’ needs to be 
implemented to facilitate better price discovery.

What’s your take on MIL as far as product innovation 
is concerned?
MIL commands an undoubted leadership in the introduction of 
innovative products. In a scenario determined by low yield per 
hectare, shrinking acreage and lack of technology adoption, MIL 
plays a very crucial role in the overall value chain. The increased 

use of hybrid maize has led to an improvement in recovery 
rates. MIL’s after-sales services to educate farmers about best 
farming practices to help them realize better yields has helped 
change the lives of many. Use of Monsanto products has led to 
reduced pressure on supply, decreased inflation and efficient 
price discovery of maize, together contributing to a healthier 
agricultural sector. 



28

Monsanto India Limited

Safal Kisan, 
Bharat ki Shaan
The Farmer of the Month initiative celebrates the 
achievement of technologically progressive farmers in 
enhancing crop productivity and felicitating them for 
their achievements. This helps in recognizing farmers in 
various states who can serve as an example of those who 
have achieved significant progress by adopting high quality 
Monsanto seeds.

Farmer’s Progress, our Pride
FArMEr OF THE MONTH
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Number of farmers felicitated: 5

States: Punjab, Rajasthan, Bihar, 
Andhra Pradesh and 
Maharashtra

Faced with the problem of low yields, Chunnilal Patel adopted high-yielding Dekalb® 
seeds which not only enhanced his produce, but also enabled him to conserve more soil 
and water. In the past two years, Patel has witnessed significant growth in crop yield, 
producing an average 10.5 quintals of Maize per bigha. The Dekalb® hybrid seeds variety 
results in superior yield, with large cylindrical cobs and bigger grain per row. Patel has 
been able to secure a better life for his family, procure new agriculture tools, generate 
savings for his family and provide for his children’s education. This kind of progress 
witnessed by farmers on an individual level can make India feel proud, and serve as an 
example for other farmers.

“It gives me immense pleasure to 
receive this honour. I would like to 
thank Monsanto for acknowledging our 
ability and perseverance. This initiative 
by Monsanto has given farmers an 
opportunity to showcase their work and 
progress with a high level of confidence. 
Farming is one of our major occupations 
in Rajasthan and since many of our 
families depend on agriculture for a living, 
it becomes imperative for us to produce 
the most and the best we can,” Patel said.

“My advice to other farmers is that 
by employing improved hybrid seed 
varieties and engaging in improved farm 
technologies, we can not only increase our 
yields, but also conserve more water and 
soil – an effective way to secure a better 
future and witness a progressive India.”

Punjab

Rajasthan

Bihar

Maharashtra

Farmers’ Selection Criteria

 Using MIL hybrid seed technology 
for at least two consecutive years 
on at least a quarter of their 
holdings

 Depending on their yields, 
innovation, sustainability in water 
usage, soil conservation practices, 
knowledge of pesticide usage

 Ensuring no child labor is involved

Chunnilal Patel, Maize Farmer
Manas Village, Udaipur District, Rajasthan 
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rAjASTHAN GOVErNMENT HELPS FArMErS’ 
PrOGrESS

While Rajasthan constitutes 15% of India’s total maize acreage, its maize yields are 
30% below India’s average maize yields. The majority of maize farmers are small or 
marginal in nature with minimal resources and lack access to appropriate inputs. 
To ensure greater progress of farmers in the state, MIL reached out to 9 lakh 
farmers in partnership with the state department of agriculture, a department 
known to be progressive in outlook and plans for the agriculture sector. This effort 
by the state government changed the lives of the farmers involved in the project 
through this partnership which was aimed at improving yields and significant 
enhancement of rural incomes in the areas these projects have been implemented.

This project between the Government of Rajasthan and MIL was aimed at 
improving economic self-sufficiency of tribal maize farmers by enhancing maize 
yields and incomes in five districts; Banswara, Dungarpur, Udaipur, Pratapgarh 
and Sirohi.

These models are now being widely adapted and adopted by various state 
governments in partnership with different private sector companies and seed 
corporations for the benefit of marginal and resource poor farmers.

Punam Chand Kasotia,
Adol Village, Jhadol Tehsil, Rajasthan

I cultivate Maize on my 5 bigha 
rain-fed land. Earlier, I used to 
produce 1.5 quintals per bigha 
of Maize from OPV (Open 
Pollinated Varieties) seeds. This 
harvest was sufficient only for 
personal consumption.

Ever since I started using 
Dekalb®’s DKC-7074 seeds, I 
have been able to produce 40 
quintals in 5 bigha land which 
is about 8 quintals per bigha 
and a gain of 6.5 quintals per 
bigha. My economic conditions 
have improved significantly 
and my family is enjoying the 
fruit of this progress. From the 
additional income I have earned 
over the last 2-3 years, I have dug 
a well, purchased agricultural 
equipment and a buffalo and sent 
my children to a good private 
school. Further, Maize plants 
have provided enough green 
fodder for cattle which has led 
to increased savings. My future 
is secure. My family and I are 
elated. The rotis that we make 
from this maize is also very 
tasteful and nutritious.
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uNdErSTANdING THE MArkET
Research indicates that farmers base their farming decisions on information 
received from peers or input dealers. MIL provides farmers with after-sales services 
where experts educate farmers about agronomic practices to help them realize 
better yields. Information provided by DDFC’s helpline assists farmers in access to 
comprehensive and specialized information on farm and crop management. The 
handholding of farmers through the critical stages of the product usage has helped 
improve farm yields, conserve resources and boost confidence.

FArMEr SPEAk

Kaushal Kishore Singh, 
Dwarika Nagar Village, Mushahari block, 
Muzaffarpur, Bihar (Using Dekalb® since 
1993)
I have experienced a 40% increase 
in my yield after seeking help 
from DDFC, which has helped me 
dramatically improve my economic 
status.

Pawan Kumar,
Patia Village, Samastipur District, Bihar
DDFC enabled me with authentic 
knowledge on when and how to 
irrigate my fields which helped me 
increase my yield by 20%. I have 
shared this knowledge with my fellow 
farmers as well.

Chandrashekhar Kumar,
Sapha Village, Gogari block, Khagaria, 
Bihar
Through DDFC, I’ve gained solutions 
to problems such as nutrient deficiency 
of soil, yellowing of leaves as well of 
pests and diseases, which have helped 
increase my yield substantially.

Brijkishore Tiwari, 
Boaridih village, Gaighat block, 
Muzaffarpur, Bihar
DDFC’s advice helped me in timely 
control of pests and diseases. 
Moreover, recommendation on 
weedicide helped me save almost 
100% of my crops.

Chandan Kumar, 
Bithan Village, Samastipur District, Bihar
DDFC call centre executives helped 
me identify the infection affecting my 
crops. This not only helped me save 
my crops, but also improved my yield 
by 5%.

Introduced in 2010-11, Dr. Dekalb Farm 
Care (DDFC) Service is an innovative 
customer-connect initiative aimed at 
engaging with farmers and forging 
stronger alliances. DDFC collates 
comprehensive information on farms 
and crop management and provides it 
to farmers. This information acts as a 
ready reckoner for farmers and provides 
personalized advisory services about 
Monsanto hybrids, enabling them to 
increase their productivity.

DDFC services were actively used 
during the year for effective market 
research. Contact was established with 
a large number of farmers in order to 
assess customer behavior with respect to 
crops and hybrids. A highly customized 
promotional approach was adapted with 
relevant hybrids being promoted for 
micro geographies.

Challenge
How to reach the large base of farmers 
with utmost speed and efficiency?

Solution
Mobile Phone

Mobile penetration is increasing at a 
rapid pace in India. The total number 
of subscribers in rural India is almost 
150 million. By 2014, the total wireless 
subscriber base in India is expected to 
touch 1 billion, of which 468 million 
are expected to be rural subscribers. 
DDFC uses mobile phones as a medium 
to connect with farmers as it provides a 
unique opportunity in terms of blend of 
reach and specificity.
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Facilitating Progress and Pride

BrEEdING
Farming innovation – 
Changing the face of Indian 
maize breeding 
Monsanto’s Research & Development 
wing focuses on discovering and 
delivering products that help farmers 
produce more crops and conserve 
natural resources, leading to inclusive 
progress. Each Monsanto facility is a 
part of a system of solutions aimed 

at making agriculture productive and 
profitable for farmers and sustainable for 
the planet.

Monsanto’s Strategy
At the core of our strategy is our 
ability to discover, develop and deliver 
valuable products and solutions for 
farmers to sustainably increase yields, 
combat agronomic challenges, increase 
profitability and deliver better products to 
customers.

At Monsanto, we believe increasing 
yield potential does not just happen 
in the laboratory. A combination of 
advanced breeding, biotechnology and 
agronomic practice improvements help 
yield improvements. In a nutshell, it is 
a total system working in partnership 
with growers that drives yield in a 
sustainable manner.

Breeding + Biotechnology 
+ Agronomic Solutions = A 
system for driving yield
Our Maize Breeding team has 
achieved many successes during 
2011-12: 

 Mechanized activities by employing 
shellers in yield test plots for 
improvement in data quality to make 
better advancement decisions

 Expanded yield testing with 
additional testing focused on rain-
fed locations

 Increased utilization of double haploids 
to accelerate product development

 Used marker-enabled technology for 
Fusarium stalk rot QTL mapping

 Launched 3 new hybrids for different 
market segments: DKC 9125 for the 
Irrigated North market segment, 
DKC 9126 for the South west market 
segment and DKC 9120 for the Dry 
East market segment

 Dekalb® hybrids DKC9081 and 
DKC8101 are notified by the Central 
Varietal Release Committee (CVRC) 
of Government of India

 Inaugurated New Monsanto Breeding 
Center for Maize and Vegetables 
breeding

Dr. Hemareddy H. Basappa,
Maize Breeding Lead

We are continually developing 
a robust Maize pipeline of 
innovative products. These are 
designed to help farmers protect 
their Maize crop from the stresses 
and enable them to produce 
more. In addition to employing 
conventional breeding to create 
these improved products, we 
also apply advanced breeding 
techniques to develop maize 
products with high yield and 
that are better able to withstand 
environmental stresses such as 
damaging diseases. We are using 
tools like molecular markers to 
more efficiently and effectively 
mine our genetic library. Our 
molecular marker capabilities 
allow us to “tag” important genes 
and “remember” their location 
in the plant genome so that we 
can quickly find and combine the 
right genes to increase yield and 
fight crop stresses.

DISCOVER
DEVELOP

DELIVER

Discover
Industry-
leading science 
and breeding 
creates 
innovations

Develop
Valuable 
products that 
offer solutions to 
growers around 
the world.

Deliver
Choices for growers
Returns to our owners and 
rewards for our employees

Our approach to driving yield

rESEArCH, TECHNOLOGy ANd INFrASTruCTurE
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MANuFACTurING ANd 
QuALITy ASSurANCE
During 2011-12, several significant 
developments and initiatives were 
undertaken to enhance operational 
efficiencies, resulting in cost reduction 
and quality excellence. 

Enhanced Operational Efficiency
Operational efficiency was enhanced 
through seed planting by a mechanical 
planter. This allowed uniform planting, 
maintaining uniform depth and spacing 
(row-to-row and plant-to-plant spacing) 
and facilitated mechanical operations of 
detasseling and harvesting. 

Improved Productivity 
Male and female plant ratios were 
modified after rigorous trial. Male inter 
row plantings were also implemented 
in all areas, resulting in significant yield 
improvement and area saving.

water Conservation
During the 2012 dry season, around 
1,000 acres (5% of total Maize production 
area) of land adopted drip irrigation 
– a testimony Monsanto’s vision on 
sustainable agriculture. Besides ensuring 
55% water conservation, drip irrigation 
increased efficiency by 15% compared to 
traditional irrigation systems. 

Continuous Cost reduction
MIL initiated a low-cost production 
model in double cross (DX) varieties 
and expects a 30% cost saving from this 
initiative, without compromising on 

quality. After assessing its success, we will 
move to a low-cost production model for 
established varieties.

Consolidation and Control
Consolidation of activities and storage at 
Hyderabad resulted in better operation 
controls, inventory management and 
reduction in operational costs. It offered 
a locational advantage for transport 
availability and economical dispatches of 
finished goods.

Monsanto’s Quality Approach 
 Quality Processes and Quality 

Assurance laboratories in Silvassa 
and Hyderabad ensure products 
meet Company’s Global Compliance 
Standards and standards set by the 
Government of India 

 State-of-the-art QA Seed Testing 
Laboratory at Shamirpet, Hyderabad, 
is a member of ISTA (International 
Seed Testing Association) for its high 
standards in seed testing rules and 
operating procedures

 Certified for ISO 9001-2008 and 
completed a thorough surveillance 
audit (November 2011) 

 Maize conditioning plant and 
manufacturing office re-certified for 
ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 (January 
2011) 

 OHSAS 18001:2007 certification 
awarded to maize conditioning plant at 
Shamirpet

Ravinder K. Reddy,
Manufacturing Lead

Besides enhancing our 
operational efficiencies, we have 
sharpened our focus on cost 
management initiatives. Sizable 
savings have been achieved by 
way of network optimization, 
synergizing warehouses at 
distribution centres, reduction 
of space with better turnaround, 
shipping cost benchmarking, 
improved direct dispatches and 
controlled warehouse placements 
to lower returns.
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TECHNOLOGy 
dEVELOPMENT

The Technology Development team 
plays a critical role in linking the 
breeding and sales teams. It helps 
advance new hybrids by conducting 
extensive trials in various market 
segments and meeting the needs 
of customers. The team consists of 
highly qualified scientists with diverse 
field research experience. It conducts 
research experiments at farmers’ fields 
by establishing Centres of Excellence 
(COE) and developing agronomic 
practices suitable for particular 
geography to explore the potential yield 
of hybrids. The team also engages with 
State Agriculture Universities in field 
testing of biotech traits that addresses 
certain biotic stress related challenges 
(Insect control and weed management) 
and minimizes crop losses caused by 
insects and weeds. Data generated 
through these trait trials help the process 
of necessary regulatory approvals for 
commercialization. 

The development of Technology 
Demonstration Farm (TDF) initiatives 
have been rolled out in various 

geographies for showcasing technology 
and hybrids to large number of farmers, 
trade and internal customers by 
partnering with the field sales team. 
These farms are also being utilized to 
validate the results of research at large 
fields. The team provides support to 
farm advisory, diagnostic services 
through call centres for Maize, cotton 
and Roundup®, enabling farmers to 
access latest information on improved 
agronomic practices. 

The Technology Development team 
supports and organizes scientific 
conferences at various institutions 
to create awareness about benefits 
of biotechnology and sustainable 
agriculture. Project “Nalanda” in 
North Bihar, for instance, has been 
created with the support of the State 
Agricultural University and the 
scientific team of CIMMYT (Centro 
Internacional de Mejoramiento de Maíz 
y Trigo, the International Maize and 
Wheat Improvement Center) to explore 
Maize cultivation opportunities in new 
areas and promote conservation tillage 
practices.

Devraj Arya,
Technology Development Lead

Farmers field is our research farm 
and working for them is at the 
heart of technology development 
function at Monsanto. Living 
with the challenges that farmers 
face every single day keeps us 
on our toes supporting them 
with our technologies and 
expertise. We can be reached 
by farmers at any given point of 
time for their queries and other 
tips to maximize their yield 
potential and create pride in their 
contribution to the nation. In 
addition to farmers, we reach out 
to scientists and academics that 
form the key pillar for advocacy 
for technology advancements in 
agriculture.
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ENVIrONMENT, SAFETy 
ANd HEALTH (ESH)

A qualified ESH organization tracks 
compliance with respect to the applicable 
Indian ESH legislation. Monsanto uses 
sophisticated third-party automated tools 
for conducting periodic ESH audits and 
tracking corrective actions to ensure ESH 
compliance.

The two manufacturing sites are 
Occupational Health and Safety (OHSAS 
18001) and Environment Management 
System (ISO 14001) certified. To keep 
track of EHS requirements, Monsanto 
uses the Dakota ProActivity™ product 
suite including the Dakota Auditor™ 
and Dakota Tracer™ software. This tool 
provides a complete solution to align 
the sustainability interests of corporate 
management, site personnel and other 
stakeholders. It enables Monsanto to 
continually plan, execute, verify, improve, 
sustain and monitor its EHS compliance 
program.

HuMAN rIGHTS 
PrOGrAM

Monsanto’s Human Rights Program in 
Maize seed production lays a special 
emphasis on child labour elimination 
and field safety. The Monsanto Global 
Human Rights policy which incorporates 
nine elements of child labour: forced 
labour, harassment and violence, working 
hours discrimination, compensation, 
safety, freedom of association and legal 
compliance.

In 2009, MIL commissioned a third-party 
risk assessment of third-party grower 
fields in Maize seed production areas. The 
exercise reported 1% child labour in the 
third party grower fields. To address this 
issue, a formal Human Rights Program 
was launched in 2010 in Andhra Pradesh 
and Karnataka. The program involves 
intensive grower sensitization, audit of 
fields at critical stages (sowing, vegetative, 
detasseling and harvesting) of crop 
and training of growers on field safety 
measures, besides recognizing the efforts 
of the grower community. Child labour 
incidence was reduced to 0.1% within a 
year through these efforts.

Mahesh Chandak,
ESH and Human Rights Lead

One of the commitments in the 
Monsanto pledge is to create a 
great place to work. To achieve 
this objective, Monsanto is 
committed to providing a safe 
place to work to all employees. 
Our off-the-job safety 
programs play a key role in our 
commitment to our farmer 
customers and business partners. 
Safety has evolved from being a 
priority to being a core value. It 
is part of the fundamentals that 
makes Monsanto successful.



36

Monsanto India Limited

IT-enabled Pride

PArTNErING FOr 
GrOwTH

Information Technology (IT) forms the 
backbone of all that we do at Monsanto. 
They are a key support system that helps 
the Monsanto team work with greater 
efficiency with farmers in their vocation 
and progress. In this year, the IT team 
has once again improved the way we do 
our business. Information on marketing 
schemes was originally stored manually. 
This practice made it difficult to analyze 
historical data and scheme effectiveness. 
Manual intervention from stakeholders 
added to the complexities. During 
2011-12, we introduced the Marketing 
Program Management System – a 
single portal for our Sales & Customer 
Operations Teams to create, manage 
and get program approvals. Apart from 
the Sales & Customer Operations Team, 
the initiative helped our Finance Team 

to procure annual settlement details 
pertaining to schemes for distributors. A 
uniform & standardized process was also 
devised for launching new schemes.

2011-12 IN rETrOSPECT
 Implemented workflow for Business 

Conduct Working Group (BCWG) 
committee to ensure compliance with 
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) 
guidelines

 Implemented eResolve service desk 
management system to provide 
enhanced and consistent support to IT 
requirement for business users

 Implemented IT infrastructure at 
the new mega breeding station and 
manufacturing site

 Upgraded bandwidth at its corporate 
office in Mumbai to enhance business 
support

 Streamlined IT asset management 
processes, reconciled IT assets and 
closed pending issues related to leased 
assets

 Enhanced green IT commitments by 
consolidating servers from physical 
to virtual environment, resulting in 
operational support, reduction of 
power consumption and lowering of 
carbon impact

 Implemented international calling 
through network in Mumbai and 
Bangalore offices to overseas locations 
(Singapore and China) resulting in 
lowering communications cost

INFOrMATION TECHNOLOGy
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Sumeet Srivastava,
Regional Lead – IT

At Monsanto, IT is an exciting 
function to be a part of. Creating 
processes which bring together 
farm, fields, cutting-edge research 
and highly talented people creates 
an environment where nothing 
but the best systems will do. My 
team is immensely proud to be a 
credible partner in an enterprise 
which promises to enable India’s 
farmers to feed the world. I truly 
believe in Indian farmers rests 
the progress of the country and 
India’s pride.

IT ready
 Connecting the business and customer through technology

 Keeping connected 24x7 across time zones

 Delivering technologies supporting business growth

 Implementing technologies enabling enhanced customer connect and long-
lasting relationships

 Updating technologies for improved business process efficiency and quick 
decision-making
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raising our Benchmarks of Progress

PrOjECT SHArE
Sustainable yield Initiatives – 
Produce More, Conserve More 
and Improve Lives

Project SHARE (Sustainable 
Harvest: Agriculture, Resources and 
Environment) was launched in 2009-
10, in association with the Indian 
Society of Agribusiness Professionals 
(ISAP), a ‘not-for-profit’ organization 
engaging one of the world’s largest 
networks of agriculture and allied sector 
professionals. The Project aims to help 
over 10,000 small and marginal farmers 
to achieve higher yields and income by 
way of agriculture extension services, 
innovation and skill up gradation for 
adopting good agricultural practices 
with ripple effect of 100,000 Maize and 
cotton farmers. The Project is primarily 
operational in Adilabad (Andhra 
Pradesh), Amrawati (Maharashtra), 
Bundi and Bhilwara districts of 
Rajasthan.

Project SHArE has:
 Provided effective extension services 

and other interventions for small and 
marginal farmers in rain-fed regions to 
create awareness about quality inputs 
and agriculture-based technologies

 Boosted confidence of farmers and 
encouraged them to implement 
innovative cotton and Maize-based 
cropping systems

 The Seed-cum-Fertilizer drill which 
was designed and introduced in 2010 
found wide acceptability. It has so far 
been adopted by 15 project and non-
project farmers in 2011

 Enabled farmers to adopt improved 
production technologies; over 
75% farmers adopted project-
recommended practices for Maize and 
cotton crops

 Encouraged Maize farmers to adopt 
plant geometry and line sowing, 
varietal complex and plant nutrient 
management resulting in increased 
crop yield

 Promoted the production of hybrid 
Maize; hybrid Maize production shot 
up over 20% during 2010-11

 Introduced integrated crop 
management practices to enhance 

farmers’ knowledge base and reduce 
cultivation cost by Rs. 2,000 per acre

 Implemented water harvesting and 
resource conservation techniques for 
sustainable agriculture

 Helped farmers earn higher returns 
because of better post-harvest practices

 Enabled nearly 3,000 women to adopt 
Maize and cotton cultivation practices 
and earn a livelihood through skills 
development in poultry, goat farming 
and dal (pulse) processing

Sumitra Devi,
30 years, studied up to the 8th 
standard

I am involved with Project 
SHARE’s Self Help Group (SHG) 
where I lead 10 women members 
in Bhagatpura village in the 
Mandalgarh block of Bhilwara 
district. In the first week of March 
2012 our SHG commenced a 
poultry unit with a capacity of 
600 birds. Our initial investment 
of Rs. 84,000 in the first round 
of production on chicks and feed 
helped us earn a net profit of Rs. 
12,500. Project SHARE mobilized 
poultry experts, trained SHG 
members and also coordinated 
with local banks and NABARD for 
credit assistance. The additional 
income helped SHG members 
improve their quality of life.

Our group plans to now undertake 
five to six production rounds in a 
year, with the aim of earning over 
Rs. 1 lakh, reducing operational 
costs and maximizing profits. 
Maize production in the village 
will also help us in reducing our 
cost on poultry feed. Besides 
increasing my own confidence, 
this has also motivated other 
women to set up similar units and 
change their lives.

SuSTAINABLE dEVELOPMENT
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MONSANTO’S 
BEACHELL BOrLAuG 
INTErNATIONAL 
SCHOLArS PrOGrAM 
(MBBISP)
Established in 2009, the Beachell-Borlaug 
International Scholars Program is run 
in honor of Dr. Henry Beachell and 
Dr. Norman Borlaug, two of the world’s 
pre-eminent rice and wheat breeders. 
Monsanto committed US$10 million to 
improve yields in these crops. The primary 
objective of this program is to develop 
highly-educated rice and wheat plant 
breeders to serve as future agricultural 
leaders.

To date, the program supports 52 students 
from 21 different countries.

For the Class of 2012, 14 scholars 
representing 7 different countries were 
awarded scholarships – four of which 
have been awarded to students from 
India. Names of the Indian four students 
awarded with this scholarship are:

Amandeep Kaur
Punjab University

Navdeep S. Jamwal
CSK Himachal Pradesh Agricultural University

Bharath K. Reddy
Texas A& M University

Bharathi R. Ramadoss
Tamil Nadu University

Jamuna Lal, Bhilwara, Rajasthan 
and Jagdish Kahar, Bundi, Rajasthan

Maize farmers hold approximately 
1.5 hectare of land each and 
practice traditional agriculture. 
Prior to Project SHARE, each 
hectare of land required 30 kg 
seed and yielded an average 2-3 
tonnes per hectare. Being part of 
Project Share we have been able 
to gain more knowledge about 
better agronomic techniques 
and practices. Project SHARE’s 
innovative seed-cum-fertiliser-
drill has helped us immensely and 
we now use only 20 kg seed per 
hectare and harvest between 5-6 
tonnes per hectare. 

Luxmi Tomar, 

Winner of 2010 MBBISP Round II 
Scholarship
Haryana Agriculture University
Plant Biotechnology and Molecular 
Biology, University of California, 
Davis, USA

The MBBISP fellowship gave 
me an opportunity to work in a 
foreign laboratory and learn new 
techniques in agri-research. It 
has also helped me realize and 
re-think our problems in the 
Indian agriculture sector and 
how we can contribute solutions. 
Monsanto has played a pivotal 
role in shaping my aspirations 
and future. Through the program, 
I aim to educate farmers and 
create awareness about better 
farming techniques. It is a matter 
of pride for India that we have the 
largest number of scholars (14) 
qualifying for this scholarship 
among all participating countries.

Students represent the youth of 
our country and their progress 
is indicative of the country’s 
progress. Agriculture is a career 
that would never cease to have 
challenges. It is a very active, 
competitive and constantly 
growing field of research. Since 
agriculture is the base of our 
country, there is great satisfaction 
in it too. My advice to students 
taking up agriculture for research 
is to not just think about their 
own research, but also about the 
agricultural community.

PrOjECT SHArE 
working Model

Farmers’ groups as agents of change

Formation of groups

Imparting technical know-how

Forward and backward linkages

Infrastructural development 
and back-up
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AkSHAyA PATrA FOuNdATION

Akshaya Patra Foundation runs one of the world’s largest school-
meal programs. In partnership with Monsanto Fund, it aims to 
strengthen nutritional support for the government’s Mid-Day 
Meal program at Jaipur, Rajasthan. Over the last two years since 
it has been operational, the foundation has provided nutritional 
vegetables for the program, reaching over 1.5 lakh students in 
1,400 government schools in and around Jaipur.

As a part of this initiative, a kitchen garden across 9 acres near 
Govindgarh, Rajasthan,was established to cultivate variety of 
vegetables. The infrastructure included setting up of greenhouses 
and dehydration plants to enable cultivation/preservation 
of seasonal as well as exotic vegetables like broccoli, carrots, 
cabbages, cucumbers, groundnuts, tomatoes, radishes, spinach 
and green peas.

During 2011-12, the total vegetable yield from this initiative was 
over 25,000 kg. Hundreds of farmers have been trained in better 
agricultural practices to cultivate vegetables requiring special 
agronomic conditions and facilitate growth of non-seasonal 
vegetables. Further, our dehydration plant enhances nutritional 
content of food and ensures use of vegetables throughout the year. 
Regular visits of the school children to the kitchen garden provide 
unique exposure to students.

NEw PrOjECTS INITIATEd

PrOFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE FOr 
dEVELOPMENT ACTION (Pradan) 
Pradan and Monsanto Fund initiated a five-year project intending 
to improve the income of 3,000 poor families in 240 resource 
poor villages in Kalahandi district, Odisha through Integrated 
Land and Water Resource Development, Improved Farming 
Systems and better market linkages. Pradan works with existing 
SHG members to propagate the benefits of rain water harvesting, 
land conservation and their judicious use through modern 
cropping practices.

dESHkAL SOCIETy
The Deshkal Society and Monsanto Fund joined hands to launch 
a three-year project to enhance school effectiveness, while 
improving the quality of teaching-learning practices. The goal of 
the project is to ensure inclusive social and economic development 
in elementary education. The project, located in Samastipur and 
Begusarai districts of Bihar, aims to cover around 180 primary 
schools in each of these districts.
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Mr. Ragunath Reddy,
Block Education Officer, 
Chikaballapur, Karnataka

All big achievements in India 
can be indirectly attributed to 
the excellent progress in the field 
of education. Students’ progress, 
measured in terms of amount of 
knowledge and quality of skills 
acquired in schools, is the true 
precursor of India’s pride.

Learning emanates in an 
environment of love, joy and 
affection. The School Nurturing 
project focuses exclusively on 
nurturing schools and creating an 
environment where students can 
expect joyous learning. Sikshana 
works in the educationally 
backward regions, where it is 
extremely challenging to make 
students acquire even the basic 
skills of reading, writing and 
mathematics. 

As a result, attendance in schools 
has improved. So much so that 
parents migrating for work now 
leave their kids behind with 
grandparents to ensure their 
education is not disturbed. AIDS-
affected students and children of 
sex workers have been integrated 
in some schools, after sensitizing 
other students. Reverse migration 
has also been made possible, with 
students from private schools are 
being admitted to government 
schools purely for academic 
reasons.

SIkSHANA FOuNdATION: School Nurturing Project

The Sikshana Foundation, along with the Monsanto Fund, 
entered an area in Karnataka to address the problem of high 
levels of absenteeism in primary schools. This pilot project 
covers 30 schools in Harappanahalli taluk, Davanagere District. 
A baseline assessment of the schools showed that less than 58% 
of the children attended schools and among those who attended 
classes. The academic level was also extremely low. The Sikshana 
team works with teachers and children of these schools to improve 
measured metrics. Various activities were planned like Sikshana 
core programs – spot prizes, writing sheet projects, Library 
programs and the Teacher Training program were planned. The 
Teacher Training program includes visits to the homes of students 
who are irregular in order to motivate parents to send their 
children to school regularly. At the end of the year, attendance rate 
in these schools improved to 72%.

The Sikshana staff visits these schools regularly to monitor the 
progress of students and suggest corrective actions. In the last 7 
years since it has been operational, Sikshana has evolved from 
working in 2 schools to over 1,200 schools.



42

Monsanto India Limited

Drivers of Progress, ambassadors of Pride

PEOPLE AT MONSANTO
At Monsanto, we follow the affirmative action policy for attracting, developing and retaining the right talent to help deliver our 
commitment towards sustainable agriculture. Our team sources the right talent and provides them with immense opportunities for 
exciting and rewarding careers ahead. Besides hiring people with the right skills, the team also ensures that the employee has a strong 
passion for agriculture and fits perfectly into Monsanto’s global culture.

TALENT INTEGrATION
On-boarding new employees is critical to integrate talent into the 
organization and into new roles. The HR team has introduced 
a 30-60-90 day plan as part of a new joiner’s on-boarding. This 
is in addition to the current on-boarding programs that are 
run. The 30-60-90 day plan helps employees understand their 
expectations from the job and aligns them with the manager. 
This new program also ensures that we help in broader 
culture acclimatization through intensive communication 
and interaction.

LEArNING PHILOSOPHy 
At Monsanto, we created a holistic approach to develop our 
people and articulated a people development philosophy that 
follows the 70/20/10 Learning and Development Model. We have 
also developed a ‘Blended Learning Approach’ which creates a 
powerful learning and development platform for our employees.

According to Monsanto’s development philosophy, development 
opportunities evolve from:

 70%: From experiences, challenges, interactions on-the-job, 
taking on additional tasks and problem solving

 20%: From continuous feedback and from managers, peers 
and mentors

 10%: From formal training , structured inputs, reading and 
education

HuMAN rESOurCES
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Anuradha Sant,
Talent Management Lead

At Monsanto, employee 
development is based on value-
addition: to the employees, 
organization and most 
importantly the customers. We 
have several customized global 
and regional programs to ensure 
overall growth and development 
of the employees. 

Globally, we have the Global 
Leadership Exchange program 
(for established leaders at 
senior level), where nominated 
employees across the globe are 
trained to take up enhanced 
leadership roles. At each 
regional level, we have the 
Regional Leadership Exchange 
program (for emerging leaders 
at mid-level), to strengthen our 
leadership pipeline and enhance 
capability at the cross-functional 
and cross-locational level. Apart 
from this we have many other 
programs, like the People Leader 
Learning Series (PLLS) which 
equips all our people managers 
to effectively handle their teams, 
Mentoring, Coaching and 
Business Forums, to name a few. 

We also have very robust People 
Processes, Organizational surveys 
and feedback mechanisms which 
enable us to become a great place 
to work. 

As a result of these proactive 
initiatives MIL has a very high 
people engagement score (90%), 
highest globally in Monsanto.

THINk GLOBAL, LEArN LOCAL
To help employees learn about, explore and develop their areas of interest, we have 
recently introduced an e-learning platform – Monsanto University – with the motto 
‘Think Globally, Learn Locally’. Powered by a specific development section called Learning 
Connection, Monsanto University enables its employees to develop themselves in areas of 
their focus through free articles, write-ups and self-paced e-learning modules.

dIVErSITy @ MONSANTO
Diversity is the key to our success and helps us remain competitive. Monsanto has a unique 
combination of talented and diverse employee base. Our conscious focus on diversity 
has resulted in a significant increase in the percentage of women in our workforce. As 
a percentage of total hiring, women stood at 20% for this year vis-à-vis 8% last year. 
Women employees currently constitute 16% of Monsanto’s workforce. We will continue 
to focus on diversity in the coming years and strive to create an environment where a 
diverse workforce is respected and valued, making Monsanto India a great place to work 
for women.
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Demonstrated Progress, Positive Impact

Biotech crops are approved and accepted for import for food and feed use and for 
release into the environment in 60 countries. Plant biotechnology products are studied 
more extensively than any other plant products, providing equal or greater assurance of 
safety of these products compared to conventional plant varieties.

Strong growth in planting of biotech crop acreages by farmers continued in 2011 
reaching 160 million hectares (up 8% or 12 million hectares) from 148 million hectares 
in 2010. A 94-fold increase from 1.7 million hectares in 1996 to 160 million hectares in 
2011 makes biotech crops the fastest adopted crop technology in recent history.

In 2011, a record 16.7 million farmers (up 1.3 million or 8% from 2010) grew biotech 
crops. Notably over 90% or 15 million were small resource-poor farmers in developing 
countries. A record 7 million small farmers in China and 7 million in India chose to 
plant 14.5 million hectares of insect protection Bt cotton seeds. 

As per a study on the ‘Global Impact of Biotech Crops: Socio-Economic and 
Environmental Effects, 1996-2010’ by UK-based PG Economics Ltd., biotech crops 
have had a significant positive impact on farm income derived from a combination 
of enhanced crop productivity and efficiency gains. From 1996-2010, the direct global 
farm income benefit from biotech crops was US$ 25 billion. Since 1996, farm incomes 
have increased by US$ 78.5 billion, charting progress for farmers across 29 countries 
planting biotech crops. 

Substantial gains have arisen in the maize sector through a combination of higher crop 
yields and lower costs. Since 1996, maize farm income levels in the biotech adopting 
countries increased by an additional US$ 21.6 billion, and in 2010 by an additional 
US$ 5 billion due to farmers planting of insect protection and weed management 
seed technologies. 

It is noteworthy that the five lead 
developing countries in biotech crops 
are India and China in Asia, Brazil and 
Argentina in Latin America, and South 
Africa on the continent of Africa, which 
together represent 40% of the global 
population, which could reach 10.1 billion 
by 2100. 

This presents an opportunity to offer the 
choices of maize seed technologies to 
Indian farmers to experience the benefits 
(on-farm, socio and economic), and 
contribute to the growth of the Indian 
maize industry.

MISCONCEPTIONS ANd FACTS ArOuNd BIOTECH CrOPS



45

Annual Report 2011-12

Corporate Overview
Strategic Review

Board And Management Reports
Financial Statements

Biotech crops have contributed to the 
development of conservation farming, 
which can significantly reduce erosion, 
restore soil quality, conserve topsoil 
and maintain moisture content. These 
in turn help preserve biodiversity 
and the environment. Biotech crops 
have helped farmers increase their 
crop productivity while protecting 
biodiversity by increasing yield per 
acre.  This has helped preserve forests 
and other wildlife habitats from 
encroachment. Biotech crops can 
also help farmers face challenges such 
as climate change and the increased 
existence of extreme growing 
environments. Researchers worldwide 
are developing biotech crops that can 
handle the stress of extreme climates 
and drought as well as continue to 
produce high yields.

3. Biotech seeds must be bought every 
year by the farmer, while he can save 
the non-biotech seed. 

 Fact: Farmers buy and replace 
seed whether the seed is OP (Open 
Pollinated), hybrid or, indeed, biotech. 
Saved seed loses vigor and results in 
lower yields over time. That is why 
farmers often choose to purchase fresh 
seed. The Government and Ministry 
of Agriculture have clearly indicated 
that the low seed replacement rate in 
India is one of the keep reasons for low 
productivity. Farmers in India today 
choose to purchase fresh seed each 
season for their guarantee of quality 
and consistency of germination. The 
Government of India also recommends 

Let us look at some key misconceptions 
around biotech crops and seeds: 

1. Biotech crops are not safe.

 Fact: Extensive studies examining 
the safety of biotech crops have been 
conducted by various independent 
bodies including the World Health 
Organization (WHO), UN Food 
& Agricultural Organization (UN 
FAO), Royal Academy of Sciences 
(UK), OECD, National Academy of 
Sciences (US), and other prestigious 
organizations. These bodies have 
overwhelmingly concluded that there 
has been no evidence of adverse 
effects on human or animal health. 
In fact, plant biotechnology products 
are studied more extensively than 
any other plant products, providing 
equal or greater assurance of safety 
of these products compared to 
conventional plant varieties. 25 Nobel 
Prize recipients and more than 3,400 
prominent scientists have expressed 
their support for plant biotechnology 
as a “powerful and safe” way to improve 
agriculture and the environment. 
Biotech crops are accepted for import 
for food and feed use and for release 
into the environment in 60 countries. 

2. Biotech crops destroy biodiversity.

 Fact: Biodiversity is an ongoing 
evolutionary process. Newer varieties 
and hybrids have been created ever since 
formal selection and plant breeding – 
as tools to increase productivity, were 
adopted. There is no new specific 
risk posed by plant biotechnology. 

timely seed replacement rates, even 
for open pollinated varieties. In India, 
farmers currently choose to plant 
hybrid seeds (currently non-biotech) 
on 45% of maize acres, thus choosing to 
purchase fresh seed each year for their 
yield and socio-economic benefits.

4. Multinational companies control the 
Indian cotton biotech seed market. 

 Fact: Indian farmers choose from 
800+ hybrid seeds sold by 50+ 
companies with five approved insect-
protection Bt cotton technologies  (the 
only seed biotechnology approved 
for use in India); plus non-Bt varietal 
seeds. The majority of hybrid cotton 
seeds produced and marketed are by 
companies of Indian origin. 

5. Biotech crops are tested by scientists 
and organizations with links to MNCs. 
Therefore, the data reviews are not 
‘independent’ and lack credibility. 

 Fact: Under the current system, 
the entity that is developing the 
product must pay for research, the 
data of which is then reviewed by an 
independent regulatory authority. 
Most of this research is carried out in 
Government Institutions and State 
Agriculture Universities. Currently, 
R&D in India is underway in many 
crops, both in private and public sector 
laboratories, including 24 universities, 
37 research institutions and 45 private 
sector companies.



46

Monsanto India Limited

Profiles of the 
Board of Directors

Sekhar Natarajan, Chairman

Mr. Sekhar Natarajan is a qualified Chartered Accountant and Cost Accountant. He has been 
with Monsanto for over three decades guiding and building its growth story. He is a strategic 
thinker with rich global experience in Business Development and Mergers and Acquisitions 
(M&A). Currently, he is the managing partner of M/s S.N. Consultants that provides advice 
and strategic directions to several local and international players. 

R. C. Khanna, Director

Mr. R. C. Khanna holds B.Com. (Lond.), FCA (Eng. & Wales), ACMA, FCA and AICWA 
qualifications. Mr. Khanna retired as the Senior Partner of M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, in 1989. He joined the Board of MIL in 1975. He has vast experience in matters 
relating to corporate finance and taxation.

H. C. Asher, Director

Mr. H. C. Asher holds M.A. and LL.B. degrees from the Mumbai University. He is a Senior 
Partner of M/s Crawford Bayley & Co., a leading firm of Advocates and Solicitors in Mumbai 
and is a well-recognized expert in corporate and commercial laws. Mr. Asher is also a director 
on the Boards of many other reputed companies. He joined the Board of MIL in 1973.
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Pradeep Poddar, Director

Mr. Pradeep Poddar is a Chemical Engineer from UDCT, Mumbai and an MBA from IIM, 
Ahmedabad. He has vast experience in the consumer goods industry, having served as part 
of the top-management at Glaxo, Heinz and the Tata Group. The Wisitex Foundation and 
Karnataka Government conferred on him the Udyog Ratna Award in 2001 for his distinguished 
contribution to the food industry. He is presently the Managing Director of Mount Everest 
Mineral Water Limited, a Tata Enterprise and is leading the Tatas’ foray into water and 
functional beverages globally. He represents the Tatas’ interest on the Boards of Nourishco, the 
Joint Venture Company with Pepsico and the Rising Beverage Company (Activate Beverages) 
in USA. He is also a trustee on the Board of United Way, Mumbai. He joined the MIL Board 
in January 2006.

Amitabh Jaipuria, Managing Director

Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria is a science graduate and has a PGDBM qualification in Business 
Management (Marketing & Finance) from XLRI, Jamshedpur. He has vast business experience 
of 23 years, in the fields of Revenue Management, Marketing, Manufacturing and Strategic 
Management, spanning diverse industries and businesses, such as FMCG, Services, Consumer 
durables and Agriculture. His last assignment was with Pepsico India Holdings Pvt. Ltd., 
Mumbai, as Executive Director West Market unit. He was appointed as the Managing Director 
of MIL in 2007.

Ravinder K. Reddy, Director

Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy is a Post Graduate in Agricultural Sciences from the ANGRAU 
University, Andhra Pradesh. He has vast experience in the field of maize, cotton and other row 
crops seed manufacturing as well as vegetable seed manufacturing in many parts of Asia. A seed 
industry expert, Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy has worked with the Monsanto Group for 20 years. He 
started his career with Cargill Seeds in 1990 and has subsequently held many assignments in 
row crop manufacturing with increasing responsibility from General Manager (Operations), 
India Seed Supply Lead to Seed Operations Lead for North and South Asia-Pacific region 
from Singapore. From 2006, he took responsibility of India, China and Pakistan Row Crop 
manufacturing operations based out of Hyderabad, India. He left Monsanto in November 2007 
and joined Advanta Seeds Limited as the Global Lead for manufacturing. He joined Monsanto 
again in February 2009.
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Notice is hereby given that the 62nd Annual General Meeting of the Members of Monsanto India Limited will be held on Friday, 3rd August, 
2012 at 11.30 a.m. at Y. B. Chavan, 4th Floor, Cultural Hall, Gen. Jaganath Bhosale Marg, Nariman Point, Near Sachivalay Gymkhana, 
Mumbai – 400 021, to transact the following business:

ORDINaRY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2012 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that 
date, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors.

2. To declare a dividend. 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. R.C. Khanna, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

5. To appoint M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, as Statutory Auditors to hold office from the conclusion of 
this meeting until conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

SPECIaL BUSINESS:

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

 a) “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the provisions contained in the Articles of 
Association of the Company and in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and such other necessary approvals, permissions and sanctions, if any, required in this 
regard, and subject to such terms and conditions and modifications, if any, as may be specified while according such approvals, 
permissions and sanctions, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (‘the 
Board’, which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof) for the following:

  i. to issue and allot 100 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each in the Company as fully paid-up Bonus Shares (being 
bonus shares’ entitlement on 100 equity shares allotted as bonus shares in 2001) to Mrs. Madhu Agrawal (jointly holding 100 
equity shares with Mr. Shrikant Agrawal, Folio No. 005570) (hereinafter referred to as “the shareholders”), pursuant to the 
resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and in the special resolution for issue of Bonus Shares passed by the shareholders 
of the Company at the 51st Annual General Meeting held on 25th July, 2001;

  ii. to allot 100 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up in the Company as Bonus Shares (being bonus shares’ entitlement 
on 100 equity shares originally held by the shareholders allotted as bonus shares in 2011) to the shareholders, pursuant to the 
resolution passed by the Board of Directors and the special resolution for issue of Bonus Shares passed by the shareholders of 
the Company at the 61st Annual General Meeting held on 26th September, 2011;

  iii. to issue and allot 100 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up as Bonus Shares (being bonus shares’ entitlement on 100 equity 
shares allotted as bonus shares in 2011) to the shareholders, pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors and 
the special resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the 61st Annual General Meeting held on 26th September, 
2011.”

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aforesaid allotments of 300 equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each fully paid up as 
bonus shares shall be subject to the terms and conditions as were approved by the shareholders at the annual general meetings of 
the Company held on 25th July, 2001 and 26th September, 2011.”

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT share certificate(s) be issued to the above named allottees in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies (Issue of Share Certificate) Rules, 1961, under the facsimile signatures of the Chairman and the Managing 
Director and countersigned by the Company Secretary, and the Common Seal of the Company be affixed on the said certificate 
in the presence of any of the above signatories.”

Notice
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  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors and the Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to 
file the necessary forms and returns with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra and other authorities as may be required.”

 b) “RESOLVED THAT all dividend (Interim and Final) entitlements on 100 rights equity shares of Rs.10/- each and 300 bonus 
equity shares of Rs.10/- each, allotted as aforesaid, be and are hereby declared, and the same be paid to the shareholders.” 

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria – Managing Director, Mr. Sharad Kumar – Head Legal Affairs, Mr. Alim 
Sayed – Planning & Analysis Lead, Ms. Chandana Dhar – Company Secretary and Compliance Lead and Ms. Latha Amin – 
Assistant Manager – Corporate Law, be and are hereby authorized severally, to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and 
execute all such deeds, documents, instruments and writings as may be necessary to implement this resolution, including but 
without limitation to, filing of any documents with Securities and Exchange Board of India, stock exchanges where shares of the 
Company are listed, Depositories and/or other concerned authorities, for the purposes of applying and seeking necessary listing 
approvals from the stock exchanges in respect of 400 (Four Hundred) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up, allotted by 
the Company to the shareholders pursuant to Rights Issue – 1995, Bonus Issue – 2001 and Bonus Issue - 2011 (100 rights equity 
shares of Rs.10/- each and 300 bonus equity shares of Rs.10/- each) and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise 
in regard thereto.”

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to take all such actions and 
do all such things as may be required from time to time for giving effect to the above resolutions and matters related thereto.” 

  Explanatory StatEmEnt pUrSUant to SECtIon 173(2) oF tHE CompanIES aCt, 1956

  ItEm noS. 6(a) and 6(b)
  The resolutions vide Item Nos. 6(a) and 6(b) of the attached Notice have been proposed for approval of the shareholders in 

connection with a matter concerning Mrs. Madhu Agrawal (jointly holding 100 equity shares with Mr. Shrikant Agrawal, Folio 
No. 005570), (hereinafter referred to as “the shareholders”). The shareholders had made an application for allotment of rights 
shares under a Rights Issue made by the Company in June 1995. However, the said rights shares could not be allotted to the 
shareholders, since the ownership of the shares was a matter of court proceedings. The Company understands that aforesaid court 
proceedings have come to an end and further that the matter has been decided in favour of the shareholders. Your Directors, 
accordingly have decided to allot the rights shares and the bonus shares that the shareholders are entitled to receive pursuant 
to the Rights Issue 1995, Bonus Issue 2001 and Bonus Issue 2011 made by the Company.  Since no resolutions were passed by 
the shareholders of the Company in this matter, the matter is proposed for approval of the members of the Company at this 
62nd Annual General Meeting of the Company.

  Further since the dividends payable to the shareholders on 100 rights equity shares of Rs.10/- each and 300 bonus equity shares 
of Rs.10/- each could neither be recommended by the Board of Directors nor be declared by the shareholders of the Company, it 
is now proposed to declare such dividends. 

  The shareholders may also approve listing of the above mentioned 400 (Four Hundred) equity shares with the stock exchanges 
after the same are allotted to the shareholders.

  The aforesaid resolutions are commended for your approval. None of the Directors is in any way, concerned or interested in the 
said resolutions. 

notES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. The instrument appointing Proxy as per 
the format included in the Annual Report should be returned to the Registered Office of the Company not less than FORTY-EIGHT 
HOURS before the time for holding the Meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, partnership firms, etc. 
must be supported by appropriate resolution /authority, as applicable, issued by the member organization.
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2. The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company will be closed during 24th July, 2012 to 26th July, 2012 (both days 
inclusive).

3. The payment of dividend, upon declaration by the shareholders at this 62nd Annual General Meeting, will be made on or after 
3rd August, 2012 as under:

 a) to all those beneficial owners holding shares in electronic form as per the beneficial ownership data as may be available to the 
Company by National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) as 
at the end of the day on 23rd July, 2012.

 b) to all those members holding shares in physical form after giving effect to all the valid share transfers lodged with the Company 
before the closing hours on 23rd July, 2012.

4. Shareholders are requested to intimate, indicating their folio number, the changes, if any, of their registered addresses to the Company 
at its registered office or to Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (“RTA”) viz. Link Intime India Private Limited, C-13, 
Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (W), Mumbai - 400 078, in case shares are held in physical form or to their 
respective Depository Participant (“DP”) in case the shares are in dematerialized form.

 The particulars recorded with the DPs will be considered for making the payment of dividend either by issuing physical instruments 
or through Electronic Clearing System (“ECS”). The shareholders are requested to take appropriate action in the matter, in their own 
interest, to avoid delay in receiving the payment of dividend.

 Where dividend payments are made through ECS, intimations regarding such remittances would be sent separately to the shareholders.

5. Trading in the Company’s shares through stock exchanges is permitted only in dematerialized/electronic form. The equity shares 
of the Company have been registered with both NSDL as well as CDSL to enable shareholders to hold and trade the securities in 
dematerialized/electronic form. In view of the numerous advantages offered by the depository system, members holding shares in the 
Company in physical form are requested to avail of the facility of dematerialisation.

6. Shareholders desiring any information as regards to the accounts are requested to write to the Company Secretary at least 7 days prior 
to the Annual General Meeting, so as to enable the Company to keep the information ready.

7. In accordance with the provisions of Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has transferred unclaimed interim 
dividends for the year ended 31st March, 2004 to the “Investor Education and Protection Fund” (IEPF).

8. In terms of Sections 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, any dividend remaining unpaid for a period of seven years from the 
due date of payment is required to be transferred to the IEPF.  Members, who have not encashed their final dividend warrants for the 
year 2004-05 or thereafter, are requested to write to the Company or to the RTA. It may be noted that once the unclaimed dividend is 
transferred to the IEPF as above, no claim shall lie with the Company in respect of such amount.

 In case of non-receipt of the dividend warrants, the shareholders are requested to contact the Company’s RTA/the Registrar of 
Companies as mentioned hereunder:

dividend for the 
Financial year

Contact action by Shareholder

Up to 1994-95 Office of the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, 
Mumbai “EVEREST” 5th Floor, 100, Marine Drive, 
Mumbai-400 002.

Claim in Form No. II of the Companies 
Unpaid Dividend (Transfer to General 
Revenue Account of the Central 
Government) Rules, 1978.

1995-96 to 2004-05 
(interim)

Non-recoverable since the unpaid amount has been 
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

–

2004-05 (final dividend) 
to 2011-12 (interim)

Link Intime India Private Limited,  
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg, 
Bhandup (W), Mumbai - 400 078.

Request letter on plain paper.

Notice
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 Given below are the proposed dates for transfer of the unclaimed dividend to the IEPF by the Company:

dividend for the  
Financial year

date of declaration % of dividend
due date for  

transfer to IEpF
2004-2005 08.09.2005 130 08.10.2012
2005-2006(1) 14.11.2005 1200 14.12.2012
2005-2006 18.09.2006 100 18.10.2013
2006-2007(1) 26.10.2006 100 25.11.2013
2006-2007(1) 15.03.2007 100 14.04.2014
2006-2007 31.08.2007 25 30.09.2014
2007-2008(1) 29.10.2007 120 28.11.2014
2007-2008(1) 15.05.2008 1800 14.06.2015
2007-2008 22.09.2008 150 22.10.2015
2008-2009(1) 24.10.2008 120 23.11.2015
2008-2009 10.09.2009 120 10.10.2016
2009-2010(1) 16.10.2009 100 15.11.2016
2009-2010 21.07.2010 75 20.08.2017
2010-2011(1) 28.10.2010 100 27.11.2017
2010-2011 26.09.2011 100 26.10.2018

2011-2012(1) 14.11.2011 100 13.12.2018

 (1) Interim Dividend

9. The shareholders holding shares in physical form can avail of the nomination facility by filing Form 2B (in duplicate) with the 
Company or its RTA which will be made available on request and, in case of shares held in demat form, the nomination has to be 
lodged with their DP.  For convenience, nomination form is attached at the end of the Annual Report.

10. Pursuant to amended Clause 5A of the listing agreement which provides that shares held physically and remained unclaimed by 
shareholders due to insufficient/incorrect information or any other reason, should be transferred in the demat mode to one folio in 
the name of ‘Unclaimed Suspense Account’ with one of the depository participants. The Company is in the process of taking steps in 
this regard.

11. The shareholders can obtain more information on Investor Protection on SEBI/Stock Exchange sites, which are www.sebi.gov.in, 
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com.

12. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the business under Item No. 6 set out 
above and the particulars of Directors retiring by rotation and/or eligible for re-appointment are given in the Corporate Governance 
section of this Annual Report.

 Members are requested to bring the Annual Report and the Attendance Slip to the Annual General Meeting.

 By order of the Board of Directors

CHandana dHar 
Mumbai: 28th May, 2012   Company Secretary & Compliance Lead 
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(` in crore)
2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03

I. InComE, proFIt & 
dIVIdEnd

Sales (Net) 367.98  358.26 410.14 387.00 365.23 309.22 330.84 377.58 333.30 293.91

Other Income 20.94  13.50 12.54 15.14 66.56 31.39 14.60 12.47 9.95 5.78
Total Income 388.92  371.76 422.68 402.14 431.79 340.61 345.44 390.05 343.24 299.69
Profit Before Depreciation, 
Interest & Tax

70.42  61.38 69.53 100.51 138.17 87.48 83.80 97.51 91.96 65.87

Depreciation 9.00  10.81 11.48 13.35 12.70 8.09 7.82 7.94 8.43 6.53
Profit Before Interest & Tax 
(PBIT)

 61.42  50.57 58.05 87.16 125.47 79.39 75.98 89.57 83.53 59.34

Interest 1.28  0.28 0.29 0.24 0.35 0.24 0.22 0.22 0.20 0.25
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 60.14  50.29 57.76 86.92 125.12 79.15 75.76 89.35 83.33 59.09
Tax 9.95  7.46 3.95 13.39 24.95 8.62 2.99 12.57 14.03 8.51
Profit After Tax (PAT) 50.19  42.83 53.81 73.53 100.17 70.53 72.77 76.78 69.30 50.58
Dividend 34.52  17.26 15.10 20.71 178.66 19.42 112.21 19.85 17.26 10.79
Dividend - ` per share 20.00(1) 20.00(2) 17.50(3) 24.00(4) 207.00(5) 22.50(6) 130.00(7)  23.00  20.00  12.50 

II. SHarE CapItal & 
CapItal EmployEd
Share Capital 17.26 8.63 8.63 8.63 8.63 8.63 8.63 8.63 8.63 8.63
Reserves and Surplus 367.13 365.69 342.95 306.78 257.48 366.34 318.39 373.57 319.34 269.51 
Net Worth (Shareholders’ 
Fund)

384.39 374.32 351.58 315.41 266.11 374.97 327.02 382.20 327.97 278.14 

Loans (Secured and 
Unsecured)

 –  –  –  –  –  –  – 2 2 2

Total Capital Employed 384.39 374.32 351.58 315.41 266.11 374.97 327.02 384.20 329.97 280.14 
Represented by 
Fixed Assets (Net) 91.99 92.72 115.60 113.62 114.43 112.63 75.44 64.51 63.37 67.21
Investments 195.78 151.36 80.72 57.97 255.14 182.16 50.16 201.65  –  – 
Net Current & Other Assets 96.62 130.24 155.26 143.82 (103.46) 80.19 201.42 118.04 266.60 212.93
Total Assets 384.39 374.32 351.58 315.41 266.11 374.97 327.02 384.20 329.97 280.14

III. rEtUrn
On Sales(PBT) % 16 14 14 22 34 26 23 24 25 20
On Capital Employed(PBIT) % 16 14 17 28 47 21 23 23 25 21
On Shareholders’ Funds(PAT) % 13 11 15 23 38 19 22 20 21 18
Per Share (PAT) `  0.29  0.50  0.62  0.85  1.16  0.82  0.84  0.89 0.80 0.59 

(1) Includes divestiture income.
(2) Interim dividend of Rs.10 and final dividend of Rs.10 
(3) Interim dividend of Rs.10 and final dividend of Rs.7.50 
(4) Interim dividend of Rs.12 and final dividend of Rs.12
(5) 1st interim dividend of Rs.12, 2nd interim dividend of Rs.180 as a ‘special dividend’ and final dividend of Rs.15.
(6) 1st and 2nd interim dividend of Rs.10 and final dividend of Rs.2.50
(7) Interim dividend of Rs.120 including ‘special dividend’ of Rs.110 and final dividend of Rs.10.

Financial Summary 
for 10 years
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To the Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting 62nd Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2012.

FInanCIal HIGHlIGHtS

(` in crore)
year ended 

31st march, 2012
Year ended 

31st March, 2011
Net Sales 367.98 358.26

Profit Before Taxes 60.14 50.29

Taxation 9.95 7.46

Balance of Profit 50.19 42.83

Add: Balance brought forward from previous year 113.65 95.19

amoUnt aVaIlaBlE For approprIatIon 163.84 138.02

appropriated as Under:

a. Interim Dividend 17.26 8.63

b. Tax on Interim Dividend 2.80 1.43

c. Proposed Final Dividend 17.26 8.63

d. Tax on proposed Final Dividend 2.80 1.40

e. Transfer to General Reserve 5.02 4.28

Balance in Profit & Loss Account 118.70 113.65

163.84 138.02

During the financial year under review your Company posted a Profit After Tax (PAT) of Rs. 50.19 crore for F.Y. 2011-12 compared to 
PAT of Rs. 42.83 crore for F.Y. 2010-11. Pre-tax profits are also higher at Rs. 60.14 crore (previous year Rs. 50.29 crore). As you are aware, 
during the last financial year, there was a one-time asset impairment charge due to the diminution in the value of assets of the Company’s 
facility at Eluru, Andhra Pradesh, which resulted in a charge of Rs.12.17 crore to our expenses. Excluding this restructuring impact, 
the PBT for the year would have been lower by 4% and the PAT would have been lower by 9%. Earning per share for the year stands at 
Rs. 29.07(previous year Rs. 24.81).

Net Turnover for the year under review at Rs. 367.98 crore, compared to Rs. 358.26 crore for the previous F.Y., grew by 3% primarily 
driven by a 13% growth in the chemistry business. Sale for corn seeds for F.Y. 2011-12 has remained flat at Rs. 267.36 crore. The pressures 
of increasing costs and competition have had an impact on this year’s lower operating results.

opEratIonal HIGHlIGHtS

The Company’s seeds’ sales was maintained at almost the same level (Rs. 269.34 crore in F.Y. 2010-11 vis-à-vis Rs. 267.36 crore in 
F.Y. 2011-12). 

The Company’s Glyphosate sales increased by 13% from Rs. 88.92 crore in F.Y. 2010-11 to Rs. 100.62 crore in F.Y. 2011-12 despite the 
pricing challenge which continues to exist in the glyphosate business. The Company’s product continues to garner a quality premium. 
This business has seen healthy growth in volumes of 18% on account of prolonged rains, increasing cost of labor for manual weeding and 
proactive customer related campaigns.

Directors’ Report
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dIVIdEnd & SHarE CapItal

Your Directors had declared an interim dividend of Rs. 10/- (@ 100%) per equity share. 
Your Directors are pleased to recommend a final dividend of Rs.10/- (@ 100%) per equity 
share for the year 2011-12 on the share capital as enhanced by the issue of 8,631,174 bonus 
equity shares during the year. The total dividend for the year would be Rs.20/- (@ 200%) 
per equity share including the proposed final dividend.

CorporatE GoVErnanCE

A detailed report on the corporate governance system and practices of the Company 
forming part of this report is given as a separate section of the Annual Report.

manaGEmEnt dISCUSSIon and analySIS

A management discussion and analysis on the business and operations of the Company 
forming part of this report is given as a separate section of the Annual Report.

dIrECtorS

The following changes occurred in the Board of Directors of the Company during the 
financial year:

Mr. R. C. Khanna retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

A brief profile of the said directors as required by Clause 49(IV)(G) of the Listing 
Agreement is given in the AGM Notice contained in this Annual Report. The Board 
recommends the same for shareholders’ approval in the ensuing AGM.

dIrECtorS’ rESponSIBIlIty StatEmEnt

In compliance with Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”), your 
Directors, on the basis of information made available to them, confirm the following:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed and that no material departures have been made from the same;

b) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit or loss of the Company for that period;

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability, 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities; and

d) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

during the financial year under review 
your Company posted a profit after tax 
(pat) of rs. 50.19 crore for F.y. 2011-12 
compared to pat of rs. 42.83 crore for F.y. 
2010-11. pre-tax profits are also higher at 
rs. 60.14 crore (previous year rs. 50.29 
crore). net turnover for the year under 
review at rs. 367.98 crore compared to 
rs. 358.26 crore for the previous F.y., grew 
by 3% primarily driven by a 13% growth in 
the chemistry business.

Directors’ Report
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pErSonnEl

The Company continues to maintain cordial relationship with its workforce at all locations. Continuous upgradation of core skills, 
through training programs conducted by internal as well as external agencies, are an integral part of human resources development 
policy of the Company.

Information as per Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as 
amended, is available at the registered office of your Company. However, in terms of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Act, this report and 
accounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding this annexure. Any shareholder interested in obtaining this annexure may write to 
the Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company.

aUdItorS

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells (DHS), Registration No. 117366W, the Statutory Auditors of the Company hold office until the conclusion 
of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. It is proposed to re-appoint them to examine and audit the accounts of the Company for 
F.Y. 2012-13. DHS have, under Section 224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956, furnished a certificate of their eligibility for re-appointment.

CoSt aUdItorS

M/s M. B. Ashtamkar, Cost Accountants, the erstwhile Cost Auditors have resigned with effect from 18th April, 2012, due to personal 
reasons. Board of Directors has appointed M/s. ABK & Associates, Cost Auditors to audit Cost Accounting records for F.Y. 2011-2012 and 
F.Y. 2012-2013. The report with respect to the audit of cost accounts maintained in respect of insecticides manufactured by the Company 
will be submitted to the Central Government in due course.

ConSErVatIon oF EnErGy and tECHnoloGy aBSorptIon

The information required to be furnished pursuant to Section 217(1)(e) of the Act, read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in 
the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 is enclosed as Annexure - 1 and forms part of this report.

ForEIGn ExCHanGE EarnInGS and oUtGo

The details of earnings and expenditure in foreign currency are given in Note 43 in the Notes to the Accounts.

FIxEd dEpoSItS

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits under Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 during financial year 2011-12.

aCKnoWlEdGEmEnt

Your Board acknowledges the service rendered by the employees of the Company for the satisfactory performance of the Company. The 
Board appreciates the continued support from Monsanto Company, USA. The Board thanks its shareholders, channel partners, and other 
business associates for their support. Without this support, the Company would not be able to successfully serve its farmer customers 
whose success eventually determines the Company’s success.

 For and on behalf of the Board of directors

  Sekhar natarajan 
Mumbai: 28th May, 2012  Chairman
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Annexure-1 
Information required under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the  
Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988.

I. ConSErVatIon oF EnErGy:

(a) Energy conservation measure taken: The Company continues to take all 
possible steps to conserve energy. 
These include efficient electric fittings 
and equipment that consumes less 
energy than conventional ones.

(b) Additional investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction in 
consumption of energy:

(c) Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction in energy consumption and 
consequent impact on the cost of production of goods:

 Form a

 Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy.

 a. power and Fuel Consumption:

Current year 
2011-12

Previous Year 
2010-11

1. ElECtrICIty:
 a) Purchased Units (000’s) 2139.43 2590.63

  Total Amount (Rs. in crore) 1.20 1.57

  Rate/Unit (Rs.) 5.61 6.05

 b) Own Generation:
  1. Through diesel generator-Unit’s (000’s) 297.06 309.26

  2. Total Amount (Rs. in crore) 0.50 0.52

  3. Rate/Unit (Rs.) 16.88 16.66

 c) Through steam turbine/generator - -

2. Coal: - -

3. FUrnaCE oIl - HS dIESEl:
 Purchased - Ltrs (000’s) 7.00 7.20

 Total Amount (Rs. in crore) 0.03 0.03

 Rate/Ltr. (Rs.) 42.50 42.52

4. otHErS - GaS:
 Purchased - Kgs (000’s) 342.99 318.83

 Total Amount (Rs. in crore) 2.11 1.66

 Rate/Kg. (Rs.) 61.59 52.11

 During the year under review, a power holiday of 3 days in a week from the month of March, 2012 was effective in Andhra Pradesh. 
During such period, 3 days in a week, the plant was run on diesel instead of electricity. Further, during the last year, though there was 
no production in the Bellary plant of the Company, yet the minimum electricity charges were paid till January, 2011.

 B. Consumption per unit of production

 The Company manufactures a wide range of products which pass through various operations before reaching the finishing stage. It is, 
therefore, not feasible to furnish the information in respect of consumption per unit of production.
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II. tECHnoloGy aBSorptIon: 

 Form B

 Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to technology absorption.

 a. research and development (r&d):

1. Specific areas in which R&D is carried out 
by the Company

•	 Breeding	and	testing	of	new	hybrid	varieties	of	seeds.	
•	 Study	of	new	technologies	in	maize.

2. Benefits derived as a result of above R&D •	 Identified	new	hybrid	 seeds	which	 suit	 various	 agro	 climatic	 conditions	
and meet farmers’ requirements.

•	 Initial	knowledge	of	new	technologies	in	maize.
3. Future Plan of Action Continuous efforts for development of new high quality and specific maturity 

hybrid seeds as well as seeds that have the ability to protect the yield.
4. Expenditure on R&D (Rs. in crore)
 a) Capital (including CWIP)   7.21

 b) Recurring 10.06
 total 17.27

 B. technology absorption, adaptation and Innovation:

1. Efforts, in brief, made towards technology 
absorption, adaptation and innovation.

The Company is working on and studying new technologies in maize.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above 
efforts, e.g. product improvement, cost 
reduction, product development, import 
substitution etc.

New maize technologies will help farmers in protecting their yield by reducing 
losses caused by insects and weeds. This will be an improvement on current 
products.

3. Imported technology (imported during the 
last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of 
the financial year)

During the last five years no technology has been imported by way of foreign 
collaboration or otherwise.

 For and on behalf of the Board of directors

SEKHar natarajan 
Mumbai: 28th May, 2012 Chairman
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Report on Corporate 
Governance

Your Company believes that corporate governance is at the core of the Company’s policies 
and systems for managing and supervising itself, including its organization, its values, 
business policies and guidelines, as well as all internal and external regulatory and 
monitoring mechanisms. Effective and transparent corporate governance guarantees that 
Monsanto is managed and monitored in a responsible manner focused on value creation. 
This fosters the confidence of our domestic and international investors, the financial 
markets, our customers and other business partners, employees and the public in the 
Company. 

Our corporate governance philosophy is based on the following principles:

•	 Appropriate	size	and	composition	of	 the	Board	with	each	Director	bringing	 in	key	
expertise in different areas;

•	 Systematic	information	flow	to	the	Directors	to	enable	them	to	effectively	discharge	
their fiduciary duties;

•	 Ethical	business	conduct	by	the	management	and	employees;

•	 Appropriate	 systems	 and	 processes	 for	 internal	 controls	 on	 all	 operations,	 risk	
management and financial reporting; and

•	 Timely	and	accurate	disclosure	of	all	material	operational	and	financial	information	
to the stakeholders.

Board oF dIrECtorS

a)  Composition

The Board of Directors along with its Committees provides leadership and guidance to 
the Company’s management and directs, supervises and controls the performance of the 
Company. The Board acts with autonomy and independence in exercising its strategic 
supervision, discharging its fiduciary responsibilities and ensuring that the management 
observes the highest standards of ethics, transparency and disclosure.

The Directors are experts in the diverse fields of manufacturing, law, accounting and 
business strategy. Every member of the Board, including the Non-Executive Directors, 
has full access to any information related to the Company.

The Board consists of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. Currently, the Board 
consists of six members, one of whom is Executive (Managing Director) and five of whom 
are Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman of the Company.  One-third of the 
Board consists of Independent Directors.

Monsanto Company, USA has certain rights enshrined in the Articles of Association 
pertaining to the appointment of Directors.

None of the Directors on the Company’s Board is a Member of more than ten Committees 
and Chairman of more than five Committees (Committees being Audit Committee and 
Investors’ Grievances Committee) across all the companies in which he is a Director. All 
the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions held by 

your Company believes that 
corporate governance is at the 
core of the Company’s policies 
and systems for managing and 
supervising itself, including its 
organization, its values, business 
policies and guidelines. Effective 
and transparent corporate 
governance guarantees that 
monsanto is managed and 
monitored in a responsible 
manner focused on value creation. 
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them in other companies and do not hold the office of Director in more than fifteen public companies. None of the Directors of the 
Company is related to each other. All Non-Executive Directors are liable to retire by rotation. The appointment of the Managing Director, 
including the tenure and terms of remuneration are also approved by the members. 

The composition of the Board and other relevant details relating to Directors as on 31st March, 2012 is given in Table 1: 

table 1: Composition of the Board of directors

name of the director
director 

Identification 
number 

Category
no. of the 

directorship(s)(1)

Committee position(2)

Chairman(3) Member

Mr. Sekhar Natarajan 01031445 Non-Executive Chairman 4 2 2
Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria 01864871 Managing Director 2 – 1
Mr. R. C. Khanna 00007293 Non-Executive 3 3 1
Mr. H. C. Asher 00024863 Non-Executive, Independent 10 3 5
Mr. Pradeep Poddar 00025199 Non-Executive, Independent 3 – 4
Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy 00419627 Non-Executive 1 – –

(1) Directorship other than in foreign/private companies/non-profit organizations.
(2) Membership/Chairmanship in Audit and Investors’ Grievances Committees of all public limited companies, whether listed or not, including Monsanto 

India Limited.
(3) Chairmanship in Audit and Investors’ Grievances Committees excluding the membership.

B) re-appointment of directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 255 & 256 of the Companies Act, 1956, Mr. R. C. Khanna and Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy shall retire 
by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

C) Board meetings and annual General meeting

The Board met five times during F.Y. 2011-12 on 30th May, 2011, 8th August, 2011, 13th August, 2011, 14th November, 2011 and 13th February, 
2012. The maximum time-gap between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed four months. The previous Annual General Meeting 
of the Company was held on 26th September, 2011. The necessary quorum was present in all the meetings. 

Details of Directors and their attendance at the meetings of the Board and Annual General Meeting (AGM) are given in Table 2. 

table 2: attendance details for the Board meetings and the 61st aGm

name of the director
Board meetings held during 

2011-2012
Board meetings 

attended
attendance at last aGm held on 

26th September, 2011
Mr. Sekhar Natarajan 5 5 Yes

Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria 5 5 Yes

Mr. R. C. Khanna 5 4 Yes

Mr. H. C. Asher 5 5 Yes

Mr. Pradeep Poddar 5 4 No

Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy 5 2 Yes

Board CommIttEES

audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the provisions of Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreement and includes overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process, reviewing the financial statements and the 
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adequacy of internal audit. The role of Audit Committee includes discussing with internal and statutory auditors periodically about their 
scope of audit and adequacy of internal control systems.

The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. H. C. Asher - Chairman, Mr. R. C. Khanna - Member and Mr. Pradeep Poddar - Member, all being 
Non-Executive Directors. Mr. H. C. Asher and Mr. Pradeep Poddar are Independent Directors. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary 
of the Audit Committee.

The Chairman, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, Head - Legal Affairs, Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors are invited to 
the Audit Committee meetings.

The Audit Committee met during the financial year on 30th May, 2011, 8th August, 2011, 14th November, 2011 and 13th February, 2012. 
Details of members of Audit Committee and their attendance at the Committee’s meetings are given in Table 3.

table 3: attendance details for the audit Committee meetings

name of the member audit Committee meetings Held audit Committee meetings attended
Mr. R. C. Khanna 4 3
Mr. H. C. Asher 4 4
Mr. Pradeep Poddar 4 4

remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the Board the payment of remuneration/incentive etc. to the Managing 
Director. The Committee comprises of Mr. R. C. Khanna - Chairman, Mr. H. C. Asher - Member and Mr. Pradeep Poddar - Member. The 
Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Remuneration Committee.

During the financial year, the Committee met on 14th November, 2011 and 13th February, 2012. 

Details of members of Remuneration Committee and their attendance at the Committee’s meetings are given in Table 4.

table 4: attendance details for the remuneration Committee meetings

name of the member remuneration Committee meetings Held remuneration Committee meetings attended
Mr. R. C. Khanna 2 1
Mr. H. C. Asher 2 2
Mr. Pradeep Poddar 2 2

Investors’ Grievances Committee

The Investors’ Grievances Committee considers the redressal of shareholders’ and investors’ complaints/grievances. The Committee also 
considers matters concerning the issue of duplicate share certificates, complaints regarding transfer of shares, non-receipt of dividends 
and Annual Report, dematerialisation of share certificates etc.

The Committee is comprised of Mr. R. C. Khanna – Chairman, Mr. H. C. Asher – Member, Mr. Pradeep Poddar – Member and 
Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria – Member.  The Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer and Secretary of the Committee. 

The Committee met on 6th May, 2011 and 14th November, 2011.  Details of members of the Investors’ Grievances Committee and their 
attendance at the Committee’s meetings are given in Table 5.

Report on Corporate 
Governance
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table 5: attendance details for the Investors’ Grievances Committee meetings
name of the member Investors’ Grievances Committee 

meetings Held
Investors’ Grievances Committee 

meetings attended
Mr. R. C. Khanna 2 2

Mr. H. C. Asher 2 2

Mr. Pradeep Poddar 2 1

Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria 2 1

During the financial year, the Company received 72 complaints. All complaints have been resolved by the Company.

SHarE tranSFEr SyStEm

The Company’s shares being in compulsory dematerialized (demat) list are transferable through the depository system. Transfer of shares 
in physical form are processed by the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) and approved by the Share Transfer Committee of the 
Company. The share transfers are processed within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of the transfer documents by RTA subject 
to requisite documents being in order.

The Company has a Share Transfer Committee comprising of Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria - Managing Director, Mr. Sandeep Kulkarni - Chief 
Financial Officer & Strategy Lead*, Mr. Sharad Kumar – Head - Legal Affairs and Ms. Chandana Dhar - Company Secretary & Compliance 
Lead**. The Committee meets once every fortnight or as and when required and approves all matters related to shares i.e. transfers, 
transmission, dematerialisation and rematerialisation of shares.
* Ceased to be a member w.e.f. 14th November, 2011
** Appointed as a member w.e.f. 14th November, 2011

rEmUnEratIon to dIrECtorS

The Board is comprised of one Executive Director (Managing Director) and five Non-Executive Directors.

The Managing Director receives a monthly salary, perquisites and performance pay as per the policies of the Company and the agreement 
executed by him and the Company for his appointment. No sitting fee is paid to him for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors 
or Committees thereof. In the event, the Managing Director desires to leave the service of the Company, he is required to serve to the 
Company 180 days’ notice in writing. However, the Company may, at its sole discretion relieve the Managing Director of his duties at any 
time during his notice period and, in that event, he will be paid his basic salary for the balance notice period of 180 days.

Mr. Sekhar Natarajan and Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy do not receive any salary, sitting fees or commission from the Company. All other Non-
Executive Directors receive sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof and commission on 
the net profits of the Company, as decided by the Board, within the overall limits approved by the shareholders.

The criteria for making payments to the Managing Director are:

1. Salary paid to the Managing Director is recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board and the 
shareholders. Perquisites, retirement benefits and performance pay are also paid/provided to the Managing Director in accordance 
with the Company’s compensation policies, as applicable to all employees of the Company.

2. Remuneration paid to the Managing Director is determined keeping in view the industry benchmarks.

The criteria for making payments to the other Directors are:

1. The Directors are paid sitting fees of Rs. 10,000/- for each meeting of Board and Audit Committee and  Rs. 5,000/- each for other 
Committee meetings attended by them. 
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2. Shareholders of the Company have approved payment of commission in the aggregate not exceeding 1% of net profits calculated 
in accordance with Section 198 read with section 349 and 350 of the Companies Act, 1956, collectively, to all the Directors except 
Managing Director. The Board decides proportion and manner of payment of such commission every year subject to the above said 
overall limit approved by the shareholders.

The remuneration paid or payable to the Directors is given in Table 6.

table 6: remuneration paid/payable to the directors 
 (` in crore)

name of directors Sitting Fees Salary & perquisites
Incentive/ 

Commission
total

Mr. Sekhar Natarajan – – – –
Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria – 1.01 0.17 1.18
Mr. R. C. Khanna 0.01 – 0.09 0.10
Mr. H. C. Asher 0.01 – 0.09 0.10
Mr. Pradeep Poddar 0.01 – 0.09 0.10
Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy – – – –

The Company has no stock option/pension plan for the Directors of the Company. However, employees of the Company including 
Managing Director of the Company and nominee Directors of Monsanto Company, USA are entitled for the Stock Options declared by 
the parent company i.e. Monsanto Company, USA, from time to time.

manaGEmEnt

The management of the Company has developed and implemented policies, procedures and practices that attempt to translate the 
Company’s future plans into reality. The management also identifies, measures, monitors and minimizes the risk factors in the business 
and ensures safe, sound and efficient operations. These are internally supervised and monitored through the India Regional Leadership 
Team of the Company.

manaGEmEnt dISCUSSIon and analySIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report.

IntErnal Control SyStEmS

The Company has both, external and internal audit systems in place. Auditors have access to all records and information of the Company. 
The Board and the management periodically review the findings and recommendations of the auditors and take corrective actions 
wherever necessary. The Board recognizes the work of the auditors as an independent check on the information received from the 
management on the operations and performance of the Company.

The integrity and reliability of the internal control systems are achieved through clear policies and procedures, process automation, 
careful selection, training and development of employees, and an organization structure that segregates responsibilities.

mEanS oF CommUnICatIon

During the financial year under reference, quarterly results were published in widely circulated national and local daily newspapers i.e. 
The Business Standard and Sakaal. Financial Results were not sent individually to the shareholders.

As  per  the requirement of  Clause 47(f) of  the Listing  Agreement, the Company has designated  an e-mail ID (investorcare.india@monsanto.com) 
exclusively for the purpose of registering the complaints by investors. The said e-mail ID has also been displayed on the Company’s 
website.

The Company’s results and official news releases are displayed on the Company’s website www.monsantoindia.com. There were no 
presentations made to the institutional investors or analysts during the financial year.

Report on Corporate 
Governance
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dISCloSUrES

material transactions with the Company

Except the details of transactions given in Note no. 33 of Notes forming part of the Financial Statements, the Company had no material 
transactions with its promoters, directors or the management, their relatives etc. that may had a potential conflict of interest with the 
Company.

Compliances in respect of Capital markets

The Company has complied with all regulatory requirements on capital market and has not been imposed any penalty/strictures by the 
stock exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authorities.

Shareholding of directors

Mr. Sekhar Natarajan and Mr. R. C. Khanna are holding 800 and 3236 equity shares respectively in their individual names. Mr. R. C. 
Khanna is also holding 3,89,976 equity shares in the capacity of Karta of his HUF. No other Directors are holding any shares in the 
Company.

CodE oF CondUCt

The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for all Directors and senior management personnel of the Company. The Code of Conduct is 
posted on the website of the Company.

All Directors and senior management personnel affirm compliance with the code on annual basis. Based on the affirmations received 
from Directors and senior management personnel, the Managing Director of the Company has signed the following certificate:

To the shareholders of Monsanto India Limited

I, Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria, Managing Director of the Company, hereby certify that the Board members and senior management 
personnel have affirmed that they have complied with the “Code of Business Conduct” of the Company for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2012.

          amitabh jaipuria 
Mumbai: 28th May, 2012      Managing Director

WHIStlE BloWEr polICy

The Company has not adopted a Whistle Blower Policy. However, the Company’s strong compliance program encourages employees to 
raise and report concerns in a transparent way.

The Company is also covered by the global Whistle Blower Policy of Monsanto Company, USA, where any employee can raise any issues 
before the management as and when required.

As a part of this global policy, no retaliatory action can be taken against any whistle blower.

Compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirements

The Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the stock exchanges. 
Further, the Company has adopted non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, viz., Remuneration Committee 
of the Board, which has been constituted to determine the remuneration of an Executive Director or Managing Director. 

BrIEF proFIlE oF dIrECtorS propoSEd to BE appoIntEd/rE-appoIntEd

 Mr. R. C. Khanna is qualified as B.Com. (Lond.), FCA (Eng. & Wales), ACMA, FCA, AICWA. He joined the Board of Directors of the 
Company in 1975. He has vast experience in matters relating to corporate finance and taxation.  Mr. R.C. Khanna retired in 1989, as 
the Senior Partner of M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants. 
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 His current directorships/memberships are as follows:

Sr. 
no.

name of the Company nature of Interest Chairmanships or memberships of 
Committee of the Board

1. Kotak Mahindra Asset Management Co. Ltd. Director Chairman – AC 
Member - RC

2. Monsanto India Limited Director Member – AC 
Chairman – IGC 
Chairman – RC

3. Schrader Duncan Limited Director Chairman – AC 
Member – RC

 AC: Audit Committee
 RC: Remuneration Committee
 IGC: Investors’ Grievances Committee

 Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy is a Post Graduate in Agricultural Sciences from the ANGRAU University, Andhra Pradesh. He has vast 
experience in the field of maize, cotton and other row crops seed manufacturing as well as vegetable seed manufacturing in many 
parts of Asia. 

 Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy, a seed industry expert, has worked with the Monsanto Group for 18 years. He started his career with Cargill 
Seeds back in 1990 and has subsequently held many assignments in row crop manufacturing with increasing responsibility from 
General Manager (Operations), India Seed Supply Lead to Seed Operations Lead for North and South Asia-Pacific region from 
Singapore.  From 2006, he took responsibility of India, China and Pakistan Row Crop manufacturing operations based out of 
Hyderabad, India. He left Monsanto in November, 2007 and joined Advanta Seeds Limited as the Global Lead for manufacturing. He 
joined Monsanto again in February, 2009. 

 He is not a Director/member of any other Company/Committee.

GEnEral SHarEHoldErS’ InFormatIon

address for correspondence: Monsanto India Limited,  
Ahura Centre, 5th Floor, 96, Mahakali Caves Road,  
Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093
Tel : 022-2824 6450/6702 9851  
Fax : 022-2824 6452/2824 4707  
Email : investorcare.india@monsanto.com

annUal GEnEral mEEtInG and dIVIdEnd

Date and Time Friday, 3rd August, 2012 at 11.30 am

Venue Y. B. Chavan, 4th Floor, Cultural Hall, Gen. Jaganath Bhosale Marg, 
Nariman Point, Near Sachivalay Gymkhana, Mumbai - 400 021.

Last Date for Receipt of Proxy Form Wednesday, 1st August, 2012 before 11.30 am

Date of Book Closure 24th July, 2012 to 26th July, 2012 (both days inclusive)

Dividend Payment Date On or after 3rd August, 2012

Report on Corporate 
Governance
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annual General meetings held during the last three years

date Venue time Special resolution passed
59th AGM  
10th September, 2009

M. C. Ghia Hall, Bhogilal Hargovindas 
Building, 2nd Floor, 18/20, Kaikhushru 
Dubash Marg, Mumbai - 400 001.

11.00 am Approval for payment of Commission to the Non-
Executive Directors

60th AGM  
21st July, 2010

M. C. Ghia Hall, Bhogilal Hargovindas 
Building, 2nd Floor, 18/20, Kaikhushru 
Dubash Marg, Mumbai - 400 001.

11.00 am Appointment of Mr. Ravinder K. Reddy as an 
Additional Director

61st AGM  
26th September, 2011

Y. B. Chavan, 4th Floor, Cultural Hall, 
Gen. Jaganath Bhosale Marg, Nariman 
Point, Near Sachivalay Gymkhana, 
Mumbai - 400 021.

11.00 am •	 Re-appointment	of	Mr.	Amitabh	Jaipuria	as	
Managing Director

•	 Increase	in	authorized	share	capital	and	alteration	
in the capital clause in MOA and AOA.

•	 Issue	of	Bonus	shares

poStal BallotS
No special resolutions were passed through postal ballots in the current financial year.

FInanCIal CalEndar
Financial year 1st april, 2012 to 31st march, 2013
Declaration of financial results for the quarter ending 30th June, 2012 by 2nd week of August, 2012
Declaration of financial results for the quarter ending 30th September, 2012 by 2nd week of November, 2012
Declaration of financial results for the quarter ending 31st December, 2012 by 2nd week of February, 2013
Declaration of financial results for the quarter and year ending 31st March, 2013 Last fortnight of May, 2013
AGM for the year ending 31st March, 2013 Last fortnight of August, 2013

SHarE InFormatIon

Listing on Stock Exchanges Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai -400 023.
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., Exchange Plaza, 
5th Floor, Plot No. C/1, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

Stock Code:
•	 Bombay	Stock	Exchange	Limited	
•	 National	Stock	Exchange	of	India	Limited	
•	 International	Securities	Identification	Number	(ISIN)

524084 
MONSANTO
INE274B01011

Listing Fees Listing fees of both the stock exchanges have been paid for the 
year 2012-13.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents/ Address for Correspondence

Link Intime India Private Limited  
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg,  
Bhandup (West), Mumbai -400 078.  
Tel: 022-2596 3838, 022-2594 6970  
Fax: 022-2596 2691  
Email: rnt.helpdesk@linktime.co.in

Compliance Officer Ms. Chandana Dhar,  
Company Secretary & Compliance Lead

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity 96.68% of the paid-up capital of the Company has been 
dematerialised as on 31st March, 2012.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible instruments Not Applicable.
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mCa’s Green Initiative in Corporate Governance:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA),vide its Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21st April, 2011 and Circular No. 18/2011 dated 29th April, 
2011 has undertaken the Green Initiative in Corporate Governance and has permitted the delivery of documents viz., Notices of Meetings, 
Annual Reports etc., to the shareholders through electronic mode.

It was proposed that documents like Notices of Meetings, Postal Ballot, Annual Reports, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other 
shareholder communications will be sent electronically to the email address provided by the shareholders and/or made available to the 
Company by the Depositories viz., NSDL/CDSL. Shareholders holding the shares in demat form are requested to keep their Depository 
Participant (DP) informed & updated of any change in their e-mail address and if not, register to inform DP.  For shares held in physical 
form, shareholders can register their email address by sending a duly signed letter mentioning their name(s), folio no. and email address 
to the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent, M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg, 
Bhandup (W), Mumbai - 400078 or by sending an email to investorcare.india@monsanto.com.

Shares held in Electronic Form

Shareholders holding shares in electronic form may please note that:

a)  Instructions regarding bank details which they wish to have incorporated in future dividend warrants must be submitted to the 
Depository Participants (DP). As per the regulations of NSDL and CDSL, the Company is obliged to print bank details on the 
dividend warrants, as furnished by these depositories to the Company.

b)  Instructions already given by them for shares held in physical form will not be automatically applicable to the dividend paid on shares 
held in electronic form.

c)  Instructions regarding change of address, nomination and power of attorney should be given directly to the DP.

Shareholding pattern and distribution Schedule as on 31st march, 2012 

Shareholding pattern

Category no. of Shares %
Promoters 1,24,54,044 72.15
Mutual Funds 6,07,834 3.52
Trust 2,334 0.01
Bodies Corporate 10,51,480 6.09
Public 25,50,902 14.78
NRI/FIIs/OCBs 1,46,339 0.85
Others 4,49,415 2.60
total 1,72,62,348 100.00

distribution Schedule

Category no. of Shareholders no. of Shares
Upto 500 15149 1093975

501 - 1000 828 623749
1001 - 2000 206 299863
2001 - 3000 57 140591
3001 - 4000 26 93283
4001 - 5000 15 66092
5001 - 10000 33 242750

10001 and above 23 14702045
total 16337 17262348

Report on Corporate 
Governance
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Share price performance

High-low share prices on BSE and nSE

month
BSE nSE

High price low price traded Qty High price low price traded Qty
Apr-11 1989 1740 11967 2040 1770 20451

May-11 1819 1700 5167 1845 1700 20414

Jun-11 2126 1615 182204 2125 1606 274551

Jul-11 1869 1700 34919 1865 1696 45496

Aug-11 1950 1600 102663 1943 1601 165434

Sep-11 1897 1680 25476 1845 1671 55017

Oct-11 1740 785 26831 1735 775 54397

Nov-11 804 704 19677 819 702 44465

Dec-11 735 640 19092 744 644 21116

Jan-12 750 637 23288 760 633 45124

Feb-12 792 688 101072 790 683 161025

Mar-12 725 656 41080 749 640 101323

–  0 

monthly High-low Share price / BSE SEnSEx
MONSANTO High
BSE SENSEX High

MONSANTO Low
BSE SENSEX Low
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monthly High-low Share price / BSE SEnSEx
MONSANTO High
NSE NIFTY High

MONSANTO Low
NSE NIFTY Low

Bonus issue on 10th october, 2011

plant loCatIonS –

Herbicides: 1, 4 & 5, Madhuban Industrial Estate, Madhuban Dam Road, 
Rakholi, Silvassa - 396 240. 
Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli.

Seeds: •	 Moka	Road,	Srivara	Village,	Bellary	-	583	103,	Karnataka.

•	 Survey	No.	677-679,	Village:	Lalgudi	Malakpet,	Shamirpet,	 
 District: Ranga Reddy - 500 078, Andhra Pradesh.

Report on Corporate 
Governance
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Auditors’ Certificate
To the Members of Monsanto India Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Monsanto India Limited (“the Company”) 
for the year ended 31st March, 2012, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the 
relevant stock exchanges in India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of 
the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations 
made by the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the abovementioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells, 
Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 117366W)

R. Laxminarayan 
 Partner 
Mumbai: 28th May, 2012  Membership No. 33023
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oVErVIEW

Agriculture is critical for India. Almost 700 million people depend on it. Strong 
agricultural growth over a decade or two, will go a long way in eradicating chronic poverty 
from rural India. Over the five years to 2011-12, the Indian agriculture sector has grown 
at 3.4% per year on average, (higher average is driven by 7% growth in F.Y. 2010-11) much 
below the 11th plan target of 4%. Going forward, it will be essential for India to build a 
productive, competitive, and diversified agricultural sector and facilitate rural, non-farm 
entrepreneurship and employment. Encouraging policies that promote competition in 
the overall agricultural value chain will ensure that farmers receive a better deal and are 
enabled to improve their lives. Successful farmers and farming are the most important 
links in India’s quest to eradicate poverty, achieve lasting food security and sustainable 
land use as well as to contain food prices.

The strategic plan to improve returns from agriculture in India could be thought of in 
two separate but linked directions – “On-Farm” initiatives and “Off-Farm” initiatives. On-
Farm refers to all initiatives related to improving the farmers yield from his patch of land – 
enabling him to have higher quantity and better quality of produce. Off-Farm, on the other 
hand, refers to all initiatives that help the farmer “preserve” that yield, reduce wastage and 
get a higher “price” for his produce. In India both these directions are important and are 
ripe for policy interventions. 

One of the most important ways in which On-Farm productivity and quality can be 
improved, is to enable the farmer to access the latest agricultural technology – to help 
them produce more and better food, sustainably and at lower per-acre costs. This includes 
access to better seeds, crop protection measures, fertilizers, and agronomic methods. 
It also includes seed varieties and agronomic traits developed using modern breeding 
methods and plant biotechnology. These inputs, along with training and integrated crop 
management, can boost agriculture productivity in a sustainable manner and could enable 
India to become a major agricultural power in the world.

IndUStry StrUCtUrE

Growing More Food and Plant Biotechnology

By 2050 the world’s farmers will need to produce 70 percent more food on less land than 
ever before. Plant biotechnology is being used to create higher-yielding varieties that can 
help farmers meet this goal. During the period 1996 to 2010, biotech traits have added 
97.5 million tonnes of soybeans, 159.4 million tonnes of corn, and 6.1 million tonnes of 
canola to global production levels. This adds up to an additional 263 million tonnes of 
food crops produced on the same amount of land. (Source: www.croplifeindia.org)

In 2011, 16.7 million farmers worldwide grew 160 million hectares of biotech crops, 90 
percent of which were small holder farmers in 19 developing countries, according to the 
International Service for the Acquisition of Agri-Biotech Applications’ (ISAAA) new 
Global Status of Biotech Crops report.

These record highs for biotech adoption demonstrate that, given the opportunity, farmers 
recognize the advantages plant science technologies can offer.

Management Discussion 
and Analysis

agriculture is critical for India. almost 
700 million people depend on it. Strong 
agricultural growth over a decade or two will 
go a long way in eradicating chronic poverty 
from rural India. over the five years to 
2011-12, the Indian agriculture sector has 
grown at 3.4% (higher average is driven 
by 7% growth in F.y. 2010-11) per year on 
average, much below the 11th plan target of 
4%. Going forward, it will be essential for 
India to build a productive, competitive, and 
diversified agricultural sector and facilitate 
rural, non-farm entrepreneurship and 
employment.
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With the majority of biotech crops being grown by small holder farmers in developing countries, plant biotechnology is playing a 
significant role in helping small-scale farmers improve their incomes and quality of life while employing sustainable agricultural 
practices. 

“For the world’s farmers, biotech crops offer the opportunity to produce more food and improve incomes while being good stewards 
of their land,” according to Denise Dewar, Executive Director for Plant Biotechnology at CropLife International. “For over a decade, 
farmers with access to plant biotechnology have enjoyed reduced input costs, increased crop productivity and higher incomes, which 
has led to improvements in the home, and for families and communities.”

With more than 90 percent of farmers re-purchasing biotech seed year after year – coupled with the increase in global biotech crop 
acreage – it’s obvious that farmers recognize multiple benefits from plant biotechnology. Global biotech crop acreage is at a record 
high and governments worldwide have continued to support the benefits their farmers, the environment, and larger populations 
receive from plant biotechnology. 

Agrochemicals have become an integral part of the development process of agriculture and the use is expected to increase manifold 
in India. Indian agriculture is still very dependent on traditional practices and its insecticides, pesticides and herbicides usage is still 
very low. Also globally, herbicides represent the largest group within agrochemicals, while in India this is still not the case. Chemical 
weed control is slowly becoming one of the more important and reliable measures in weed management systems in India.

In India and globally, glyphosate is the most significant herbicide product and is preferred by farmers because it is relatively safe and 
very effective. This market in India is extremely competitive with 150+ manufacturers and many more brands being available. Most 
of these players import their requirement of the intermediate product from countries such as China. Unfortunately many of these 
products are also of questionable and inconsistent quality. This market is also characterized by extreme price competition. Monsanto 
has a strong market position based on its quality and brand reputation.

population (2011 census) and required subsidized foodgrains

rural Urban total 
population

Food grains 
(tonnes per 

month)

Food grains 
(million 

tonnes per 
annum)

833087662 377105760 1210193422
46 % 383220325 28% 105589613 488809937
Food @7kg* 2682542272 739127290 3421669561 3421670 41.1
population 75 % 624815747 50% 188552880 813368627
Food @3kg+ 724786266 248889802 973676068 973676 11.7

*per person per month @ Rs. 3, 2&1 per kg;  
+per person @ half of MSP (Source: Farmers’ Forum)

Food Security act: After a long history of widespread malnutrition and starvation for many, the people of India will soon have, for 
the first time, the constitutional right to food. As has been proposed, 46 percent rural and 28 percent urban poor will have the right 
to 7 Kg per person per month of foodgrain at the rate of Rs. 3, Rs. 2 and Re.1 per kg rice, wheat and coarse cereals, respectively. The 
rest of the targeted rural and urban poor will get 3 kg of foodgrains every month at half of its Minimum Support Price (MSP). This 
policy intervention means that Indian famers will need to produce even greater quantities of food at lower costs per unit – access to 
the right seeds and technology can help. Your Company is proud to be a part of this effort to enable our farmers progress and thus 
becoming India’s pride. 
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opEratIonal rEVIEW

dekalb® Hybrid maize Seeds

Farm labour shortage, changing weather patterns, and growing demand for animal protein will drive future growth of maize in India for 
your Company. As less than a third of India’s corn currently comes from hybrid seeds, your Company sees strong growth potential in this 
market. Maize is cultivated on ~7 - 8 million hectares in India, with significant scope to increase penetration of higher-yielding hybrid 
seeds, from current levels of less than 50%.

Your Company’s maize seeds are sold under the Dekalb® brand name and are well established within the farming community.

Your Company, during the year under review, launched two new hybrids (9106 and 8101) which helped grow volumes in the Northern 
region and in the high volume markets of Central and South India. DK9081, the highest yielding corn seeds sold by your Company, has 
done exceedingly well and additional quantities were placed based on farmers’ response and overall momentum for the hybrid. 

One of the phenomena observed during the year was that certain agricultural commodities such as Cotton and pulses enjoyed high prices 
and thus were more attractive to farmers, resulting in significant acres shifting to Cotton and pulses in Karnataka, AP and Maharashtra 
amongst other States. 

During the year under review, various initiatives such as Radio shows, channel schemes and other attractive farmers’ schemes, helped to 
create a demand for your Company’s key hybrids. Dr. Dekalb Farm Care (our Service Platform and Direct-To-Farmer Connect initiative) 
was extended to more than 20,000 farmers across Bihar to help them choose the right hybrid, manage their crops better and address their 
queries – thus creating long term brand goodwill and more importantly – lasting value to the farmers.

This platform has also helped us in seeking pre-season purchase intent and in-season progress information on hybrid preferences in real 
time.

The competition has also been very aggressive through their own field activities and has exerted huge pressure through a massive stock 
push and lucrative channel schemes. We are also introducing new hybrids in the Bihar market. We are monitoring competitive activities 
closely and will take appropriate action as needed.

Kharif Season overview

•	 The	rainfall	pattern	of	deficient	rain	and	then	concentrated	rain	in	patches	has	resulted	in	increased	disease	pressure	in	many	parts	of	
Karnataka and Maharashtra.

•	 The	savings	from	consolidation	of	manufacturing	operations	continue	to	accrue	which	has	helped	keep	operating	expenses	down	
and inspite of inflationary trends, steep fuel prices increases and devaluation of Indian currency; the operating expenses have been 
maintained at a similar level as compared to previous year.

•	 Overall	judicious	placement,	efficient	tracking	of	secondary	sales	and	managing	the	expected	returns,	has	resulted	in	better	operational	
and business efficiencies.

•	 Company’s	hybrid	corn	seed	products	have	done	very	well	in	many	important	markets	and	have	grown	by	more	than	17%	in	key	
markets like Uttar Pradesh, Andhra Pradesh and Punjab. In Gujarat, the volumes have doubled in one year.

•	 Your	Company	sold	over	4	million	litres	of	Roundup®	during	the	Kharif	Season.

•	 The	launch	of	two	new	hybrids	(9106	and	8101)	helped	grow	volumes	in	the	North	Region	and	in	the	high	volume	markets	of	Central	
and South India. The growth in seed volume for Karnataka was around 13% over the previous Kharif season.

rabi Season overview

•	 Key	Rabi	markets	of	Bihar,	Bangladesh,	Andhra	Pradesh,	Assam,	West	Bengal	and	even	parts	of	UP	have	performed	very	well.

•	 For	the	development	of	Rabi	market	in	UP,	your	Company	entered	into	a	Public-Private	Partnership	with	the	State	Government	of	
Uttar Pradesh.

Management Discussion 
and Analysis
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roundup® (Herbicide)

Roundup® is the brand name of a systemic, broad-spectrum herbicide produced by your Company and contains the active ingredient 
glyphosate.

Your Company has maintained the price of Roundup® inspite of the pricing headwinds in Roundup®. During the year under review, there 
were dry spells in many geographies, including Maharashtra and Karnataka, due to which the weed pressure was low and hence lower 
demand for Glyphosate.

The Rabi season was drier than normal in some key geographies which resulted in lower weed pressure on the farmlands and hence lower 
spraying of herbicides. Thus, Roundup® sales has broadly remained at around 1.4 million litres in Rabi. 

FInanCIal rEVIEW

During the year under review, turnover is Rs. 367.98 crore which is 3% higher than the previous year. The sale for chemistry is Rs. 100.62 
crore vs. Rs. 88.92 crore for previous year which is an increase of 13%. The volume reported in chemistry business is 5648 KL which is 
18% increase over previous year. The rise in farm labour cost and continuous decrease in availability of farm labour has helped the volume 
growth in our chemistry business. Sale for corn seeds for F.Y. 2011-12 (Rs. 267.36 crore) has stayed at almost the same level as the last 
financial year (Rs. 269.34 crore). In spite of a lean Kharif season, a bumper Rabi season boosted the corn performance.

The operating expenses (including Depreciation and Employee Expenses) for F.Y. 2011-12 is Rs. 164.81 crore which is almost at same level 
inspite of severe inflationary pressures seen during the year. Interest expenses have gone up from Rs. 28 lakh to Rs. 1.28 crore owing to a 
provision made for interest on prior year income taxes.

The other incomes for F.Y. 2011-12 are Rs. 15.15 crore vis-à-vis Rs. 8.35 crore during the last year. This was mainly due to liquidation of 
excess inventory which got converted into higher cash balance.

Profit before tax for F.Y. 2011-12 is Rs.60.14 crore, up from the profit before tax for the last financial year i.e. Rs.50.29 crore. During the 
last financial year, there was a one-time asset impairment charge of Rs. 12.17 crore due to the diminution in the value of assets of the 
Company’s facility at Eluru, Andhra Pradesh.

Profit after tax for the year was Rs. 50.19 crore vis-à-vis Rs. 42.83 crore in F.Y. 2010-11.

These results have been delivered despite the intense competitive pressures on Roundup® Glyphosate herbicides as well as on maize seeds, 
and also severe inflationary pressures.

opportUnItIES

Growing more food per hectare takes the pressure off, of the need to convert natural habitats into more farmland – helping protect our 
planet’s and India’s forests and biodiversity. If higher yielding biotech crops had not been available from 1996 to 2010, an additional 91 
million hectares of farmland would have been needed to maintain global production levels. Modern  Agricultural Technology, including 
biotech crops, helps reduce agriculture’s impact on biodiversity through enhanced adoption of conservation tillage practices, and 
increasing yields to alleviate pressure to convert additional land into agricultural use.

As food security and sustainable agriculture have become key concerns globally, we have seen more governments and world leaders 
increasingly support research, development and production of biotech crops, governments in countries such as Nigeria, Thailand and 
Indonesia are publicly stating their support for plant biotechnology. Pioneers such as Bill Gates have recently noted the key role of plant 
genetics in accelerating food security, declaring in his 2012 annual letter that,  “It is hard to overstate how valuable it is to have all the 
incredible tools that are used for human disease to study plants.” (Source: www.thegatesnotes.com)

Directorate of Maize Research, India is positive about the prospects of an early maize revolution in the country. With increasing population, 
higher incomes, changing consumption patterns and its multiple applications across several user industries, demand for maize is expected 
to grow. The poultry sector alone is estimated to double its consumption of maize from the present 7.6 million metric tonnes to 16.6 
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million metric tonnes by 2016. Due to adoption of high-yielding hybrid maize seeds and good agronomic practices, Indian farmers are 
increasingly experiencing higher yields. Progressive farmers in Bihar and Andhra Pradesh have produced maize yields comparable to and 
higher than global averages.

In India, farmers traditionally employ labourers to remove crop-hurting herbs and weeds, but rural job scheme is creating employment 
opportunities outside the agricultural sector, leading to a shortage of farm workers. As a result deploying labourers to remove weeds and 
herbs have become costly. This has made farmers to opt for herbicide sprays.

rISKS, ConCErnS and tHrEatS

Agriculture today is already fundamentally different than a decade ago. The agriculture business now has new rules, new stakes. The 
“Agripreneur” now has new opportunities and most of all new risks. In a nutshell, following are the risks concerning the business of the 
Company and industry at large:

production risks: These risks are known and present in production along the entire supply chain. They affect expected seed yields 
and impact income. These include natural events (hurricanes, drought, pests and diseases), prices (land, labour, equipment, machinery 
and   capital), standards and regulations (production and process methods, quality and safety), equipment and technology efficiencies, 
market dynamics (increasing scale, specialisation and chain consolidation) and strategic risks (choosing inappropriate technology). Your 
Company has taken quite a few proactive measures to mitigate the risk, like scouting for alternate production location, mechanisation of 
operations, and improvement of seed production processes, amongst others.

marketing risks: Your Company is facing headwinds in the Corn business on the demand side due to intense competition, crop shifts 
and uncertain weather. Also due to competitive marketing schemes and a constant stream of new products, farmers and the channel, 
have more choice than ever before. Your Company has been in the forefront of such competitive activities and has thus stayed ahead of 
competition so far.  

Institutional and Industry risks: These relate to changes in government policies and interventions. Other such risks include the 
adequacy and efficiency of Central and State Government support for agriculture.

personal risks: These risks relate to the impact on health and physical well-being in the process of carrying out the business of agriculture. 
Many of our employees drive long distances on rural roads and face heightened exposure to unpredictable road conditions, your Company 
has an Industry leading safety program to help employees understand and cope with such risks. 

Financial risks: Production related risks on the supply side and weather, crop acres, farmer seed choice related market risks on the 
demand side, are our chief financial risks. Your Company imports a lot of its Glyphosate raw materials and hence the business is susceptible 
to the volatility of exchange rates and import duties as well.

oUtlooK

There can be no advancement of the Indian economy into the league of the fastest growing nations unless Indian agriculture becomes 
a part of the growth. The key to satisfactory growth in Indian agriculture now lies more in improving productivity than in increasing 
acreage or irrigation cover of arable land. While efforts are required for continuing agricultural research to develop high-yielding, 
pest-resistant and all weather varieties, there are some critical issues leading to poor productivity.

Technological interventions and deployment can be a catalyst and is one of the powerful solutions to help farmers feed the world’s growing 
population – e.g. reduced pesticide usage, improved lives – in short, made farming sustainable. Sustainable agriculture requires focus on 
increasing agricultural productivity and improving the social well-being of resource-poor farmers; technological interventions, and finally, 
protecting and even improving the environment through better utilization of input resources.

We expect that the corn seed market would continue to grow in the current year as well. This growth will primarily come through 
conversion to hybrids by farmers across the country. Your Company is working towards improving its share in the market through various 
initiatives enumerated earlier.

Management Discussion 
and Analysis
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Farm labour availability and cost continue to pose challenges to the growers in India. This, along with improving awareness about 
chemical weeding usage in newer crops and geographies as well as non agricultural usage, augurs well for the herbicide industry and your 
Company. As shared earlier, the Glyphosate market is also expected to grow in double digits in the medium term.

Your Company, through its continuous breeding research efforts, new product offerings, effective sales and marketing strategies, a strong 
brand, far reaching distribution infrastructure and investments in people development, is hopeful of maintaining its performance going 
forward.

Roundup® remains the brand of choice when it comes to controlling weeds to the roots for a longer span of time not just in tea plantations 
and non cropped areas but also for general weed control in railways, industries, around roads and highways etc. The Indian Railways has 
used Roundup® at Hazrat Nizamuddin station (Delhi). Roundup® was sprayed on the railway tracks resulting in successful elimination 
of weeds. The weed-free rail tracks testify Roundup®’s long-lasting effects. The Coimbatore Municipal Corporation, in association with 
Tamil Nadu Agricultural University, has launched a program called ‘Clean Coimbatore’. The core idea was to eradicate or control urban 
proliferation of weeds to keep the city clean and free from parthenium allergy (a skin allergy caused because of the ‘parthenium weed’).

IntErnal Control SyStEmS and tHEIr adEQUaCy

Your Company believes that good internal control is an intrinsic part of the overall governance process. It is committed to ensuring an 
effective internal control environment that provides assurance on the efficacy and effectiveness of operations, processes and safeguard of 
assets. At Monsanto, the internal audit of the Company is conducted by a reputed independent company appointed by the management. 
The observations and recommendations of the internal auditors are reviewed by the Audit Committee and adequate follow up measures 
are taken to overcome the identified opportunities to further improve the control environment. 

All employees are trained to follow your Company’s business conduct guidelines with ‘Integrity’ as the foundation of all that we do. 

HUman rESoUrCES

Your Company has 357 employees on its rolls as on 31st March, 2012 as compared to 389 as on 31st March, 2011. Your Company believes 
in the need to prepare competencies today for tomorrow’s challenges and work towards it through a structured learning and development 
program for all key employees.

Your Company continues to invest in its people by providing appropriate training, refresher courses and skill upgradation programs. A 
robust implementation of the unique Development, Performance and Rewards program provides an opportunity for all employees not 
only to be recognized and rewarded for efforts but also to develop and grow into leadership positions within the organization. The focus 
is on providing an enabling environment that motivates employees to perform at their best. 

Your Company has been recognized as the best company to work for in the Agro-based Industry category and among the top 50 companies 
in India, in a study conducted by the Great Places to Work Institute, India, in partnership with The Economic Times. This is a great honor 
and feels even better for the fact that we have been in this august list for over three years now.

CaUtIonary StatEmEnt

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations may 
be forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. It cannot be guaranteed that these 
assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. 
Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include economic conditions affecting demand/supply and 
price conditions in the domestic and overseas market in which the Company operates, changes in the Government regulations, tax laws 
and other statutes and incidental factors.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF MONSANTO INDIA LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of monsanto India limited (‘the Company’) as at 31st March, 2012, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date, both annexed thereto. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (CARO) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 227(4A) 
of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above, we report as follows:

 a. we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit;

 b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination 
of those books;

 c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with 
the books of account;

 d. in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in 
compliance with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956;

 e. in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India: 

  i. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2012;

  ii. in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

  iii in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2012 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2012 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells, 
Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 117366W)

R. LAXMINARAYAN 
  Partner 
Mumbai, 28th May, 2012  Membership No. 33023

Auditors’ Report
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(referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date on the accounts for the year ended 31st march, 2012 of monsanto India 
limited (“the Company”)

(i) Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business, clauses (xiii) and (xiv) of CARO are not applicable.

(ii) In respect of its fixed assets:

 (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of the fixed 
assets. 

 (b)  The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular programme of 
verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According 
to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 (c) The fixed assets disposed off during the year, in our opinion, do not constitute a substantial part of the fixed assets of the 
Company and such disposal has, in our opinion, not affected the going concern status of the Company. Attention is invited to 
Note 42 of said accounts regarding fixed assets retired from active use and held for sale, which in our opinion, has not affected 
the going concern status of the Company.

(iii)  In respect of its inventories:      

 (a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification of 
inventories followed by the Management were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its business.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper records 
of its inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iv) The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to/from companies, firms or other parties listed in 
the Register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the explanations that some of the 
items purchased are of special nature and suitable alternative sources are not readily available for obtaining comparable quotations, 
there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard 
to purchases of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have not 
observed any major weakness in such internal control systems.

(vi) In respect of the contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 and their entry in the Register required to be maintained 
under that section, to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not entered into any contracts or arrangements that need to be entered in the Register maintained in pursuance of 
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Hence, clause (v) of Para 4 of the Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the 
year. Hence, clause (vi) of paragraph 4 of the Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.

(viii) In our opinion, the internal audit functions carried out during the year by a Company appointed by the Management have been 
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(ix) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) 
Rules, 2011 prescribed by the Central Government under Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 and are of the opinion that 
prima facie the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the 
cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

Annexure to the 
Auditors’ Report
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(x) According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

 (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Investor 
Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Customs Duty, 
Excise Duty, Cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

 (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Sales tax, Customs duty, Excise 
duty and Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2012 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable.

 (c) Details of dues of Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and Cess which have not been 
deposited as on 31st March, 2012 on account of disputes are given below:

Statute nature of the 
dues

amount 
Involved 

(rs. in 
crore)

period to which the 
amount relates Forum where dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 
demand

0.74 Assessment Year 2005-2006 Commissioner of Income Tax 
(Appeals)

3.09 Assessment Year 2006-2007 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal 
and Commissioner of Income Tax 
(Appeals)*

21.39 Assessment Year 2007-2008 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal *
22.44 Assessment Year 2008-2009 Commissioner of Income Tax 

(Appeals)
Uttar Pradesh Trade 
Tax Act, 1948

Sales Tax demand –** Assessment Year 1999-2000 Joint Commissioner of Trade Tax, 
Uttar Pradesh

0.02 Assessment Year 2002-2003 Joint Commissioner of Trade Tax, 
Uttar Pradesh

Gujarat Sales Tax 
Act,1969

Sales Tax demand 0.44 Assessment Year 2001-02 to 
2005-06

Assistant Commissioner of 
Commercial Tax - Gujarat

Bombay Sales Tax Act, 
1959

Sales Tax demand 0.03 Assessment Year 2003-2004 Joint Commissioner of Sales tax, 
Mumbai

Central Sales Tax Act, 
1956

Sales Tax demand 0.11 Assessment Year 2003-2004 Joint Commissioner Appeal, 
Maharashtra

Bombay Sales Tax Act, 
1959

Sales Tax demand 0.08 Assessment Year 2004-2005 Joint Commissioner Appeal, 
Maharashtra

Bihar Finance Act, 1981 Sales Tax demand 0.01 Assessment Year 2000-2001 Deputy Commissioner, 
Commercial Taxes (Assessment)- 
Bihar

Bihar Finance Act, 1981 Sales Tax demand 0.87 Assessment Year 2002-2003 Deputy Commissioner, 
Commercial Taxes (Assessment)- 
Bihar

Punjab General Sales 
Tax Act, 1948

Sales Tax demand 0.34 Assessment Year 2000-2001 Commissioner of Sales Tax, Punjab

Central Sales Tax Act, 
1956

Sales Tax demand  0.14 Assessment Year 2003-2004 
& 2004-05

Deputy Commissioner, 
Commercial Taxes (Appeals)- 
Punjab

West Bengal Value 
Added Tax Act, 2003

Sales Tax demand 0.83 Assessment Year 2008-2009 Senior Joint Commissioner,
Commercial Taxes, Howrah - West 
Bengal

 * Appeals filed subsequent to the year end 
** Amount involved Rs.28,066

Annexure to the 
Auditors’ Report
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(xi) The Company has no accumulated losses as at 31st March, 2012 and has not incurred any cash loss during the financial year ended 
on that date and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not borrowed from any bank, 
financial institution or issued any debentures.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances on the basis of 
security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others 
from banks or financial institutions. Hence, clause (xv) of paragraph 4 of the Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.

(xv) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no term loans 
availed during the year. Hence clause (xvi) of paragraph 4 of the said Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet and other records 
of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long term investment.

(xvii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year. Hence, clause (xviii) of paragraph 4 of the said 
Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not issued any debentures during the year and hence, 
clause (xix) of paragraph 4 of the Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any money by public issue during the year. 
Hence, clause (xx) of paragraph 4 of the Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.

(xx) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no 
material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells, 
Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 117366W)

R. LAXMINARAYAN 
  Partner 
Mumbai, 28th May, 2012  Membership No. 33023

Annexure to the 
Auditors’ Report
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(` in crore)

particulars note no.
as at 

 31st  march, 2012
as at  

31st march, 2011
I. EQUIty and lIaBIlItIES
 (1) Shareholder’s Funds
  (a) Share Capital 3  17.26  8.63 
  (b) Reserves and Surplus 4  367.13  365.69 

 384.39  374.32 
 (2) non-Current liabilities
  (a) Other long term liabilities 5  5.49  5.04 
  (b) Long term provisions 6  5.99  5.47 

 11.48  10.51 
 (3) Current liabilities
  (a) Trade payables 7  74.98  53.49 
  (b) Other current liabilities 8  28.75  24.54 
  (c) Short-term provisions 9  27.41  20.92 

 131.14  98.95 
 total  527.01  483.78 
II. aSSEtS
 (1) non-current assets
  (a) Fixed assets
   (i) Tangible assets 10  80.38  86.49 
   (ii) Intangible assets 10  0.48  1.15 
   (iii) Capital work-in-progress 10  11.13  5.08 

 91.99  92.72 
  (b) Deferred tax assets (net) 11  2.72  2.96 
  (c) Long term loans and advances 12  8.15  8.03 

 102.86  103.71 
 (2) Current assets
  (a) Current investments 13  195.78  151.36 
  (b) Inventories 14  129.68  130.32 
  (c) Trade receivables 15  50.27  40.85 
  (d) Cash and cash equivalents 16  18.99  17.17 
  (e) Short-term loans and advances 17  17.61  29.45 
  (f) Other current assets 18  11.82  10.92 

 424.15  380.07 
 total  527.01  483.78

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Sekhar natarajan
Chairman

amitabh jaipuria
Managing Director

r C Khanna
Director

r. laxminarayan
Partner

H C asher
Director

ravinder K reddy
Director

pradeep poddar
Director

Mumbai: 28th May, 2012
Sandeep Kulkarni
Chief Financial Officer

Chandana dhar
Company Secretary

Balance Sheet  
as at 31st March, 2012
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In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Sekhar natarajan
Chairman

amitabh jaipuria
Managing Director

r C Khanna
Director

r. laxminarayan
Partner

H C asher
Director

ravinder K reddy
Director

pradeep poddar
Director

Mumbai: 28th May, 2012
Sandeep Kulkarni
Chief Financial Officer

Chandana dhar
Company Secretary

Profit and Loss Account
as at 31st March, 2012

(` in crore)

particulars note no.
For the year ended 

31st march, 2012

For the previous 
year ended 

31st march, 2011
I. revenue from operations (Gross) 19  385.99  374.71 
 Less: Excise Duty   12.22  11.30 
 Revenue from Operations (Net)   373.77  363.41 
II. other Income 20  15.15  8.35 
III. total revenue (I +II)  388.92  371.76 
IV. Expenses:
 (a) Cost of materials consumed and other inputs 21  155.38  98.89 
 (b) Purchase of Stock-in-Trade - Agricultural chemicals   0.34 –   
 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods,  
  work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade”

22  7.24  50.01 

 (d) Employee benefits expense 23  45.61  43.26 
 (e) Finance costs 24  1.28  0.28 
 (f) Depreciation and amortization expense 10  9.00  10.81 
 (g) Other expenses 25  110.19  106.05 
 total ExpEnSES  329.04  309.30 
V. profit before exceptional items and tax (III- IV)  59.88  62.46 
VI. Exceptional Items 42
 (a) Diminution in value of Fixed Assets held for Sale –    (12.17)
 (b) Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets held for Sale   0.26 –   
VII. profit before tax  (V + VI)  60.14  50.29 
VIII. tax expense:
 (a) Current tax  7.14  6.11 
 (b) Tax provision in respect of earlier years  2.57  1.82 
 (c) Deferred tax expense/ (credit)  0.24  (0.47)
Ix. profit for the year from continuing operations 
 (VII- VIII)

 50.19  42.83 

x. Earnings per equity share of face value of rs 10/- each 
 (in rs.) :

40

       (1) Basic  29.07  24.81 
       (2) Diluted  29.07  24.81

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
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Monsanto India Limited

(` in crore)

particulars as at 
 31st march, 2012

as at 
31st march, 2011

 3. SHarE CapItal
 authorised:
 20,000,000 (Previous year 10,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each  20.00 10.00 
 Issued and Subscribed:
 17,262,748 (Previous year 8,631,574) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 
 paid up

 17.26  8.63 

 paid up:
 17,262,348 (Previous year 8,631,174) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 
 fully paid up

 17.26  8.63 

 Notes:

 1 . rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

  (i) Right to receive dividend as may  be approved by the Board of Directors/Annual General Meeting.
  (ii) The equity shares are not repayable except in the case of a buy back, reduction of capital or winding up in terms of the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.
  (iii) Every member of the company holding equity shares has a right to attend the General Meeting of the company and has a right 

to speak and on a show of hands, has one vote if he is present in person and on a poll shall have the right to vote in proportion 
to his share of the paid-up capital of the company.

  (iv) Monsanto Company USA, the ultimate holding company has certain rights enshrined in the Articles of Association pertaining 
to appointment of Directors.

 2 . reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

particulars as at 
31st march, 2012

as at 
31st march, 2011

number ` in crore Number ` in crore
Subscribed and Fully paid up
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  8,631,174  8.63  8,631,174  8.63 
Add: Shares issued during the year as fully paid up 
    bonus shares

 8,631,174  8.63 –   –   

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  17,262,348  17.26  8,631,174  8.63 

 3 . details of shares held by the holding company and the ultimate holding company, in aggregate:

particulars as at 
31st march, 2012

as at 
31st march, 2011

number number
Monsanto Company USA, the ultimate holding company  3,201,920  1,600,960
Monsanto Holdings Private Limited, the holding company  9,252,124  4,626,062

 4 . details of shares, held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

name of shareholder as at  31st march, 2012 as at  31st march, 2011
number of 
shares held

% of holding number of 
shares held

% of holding

Monsanto Company USA 3,201,920  18.55  1,600,960  18.55
Monsanto Holdings Private Limited  9,252,124  53.60  4,626,062  53.60

Notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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 5 . Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up bonus shares for a period of 5 years immediately preceding the 
Balance Sheet date is 8,631,174 in the current year 2011-12 (Previous Year Nil).

 6 . Shares reserved for issue under commitments :     

  Since, 400 shares were subject matter of disputes/court proceedings, the Company has not been able to issue/allot Rights and 
Bonus shares’ entitlements on the said 400 shares.

(` in crore)
as at 31st march, 2012 as at 31st march, 2011

4. rESErVES and SUrplUS 
(a) Securities Premium Account:
 Balance as per last Balance Sheet  141.40   141.40
 Less: Amount utilised on issue of fully paid  
   bonus shares

 2.00  – 

 139.40  141.40 
(b) General Reserve:
 Balance as per last Balance Sheet  110.64  106.36 
 Add: Surplus transferred from Statement of Profit 
   and Loss

 5.02  4.28 

 Less: Amount utilised on issue of fully paid 
   bonus shares

 6.63  – 

109.03  110.64 
(c) Surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss:
 Balance as per last Balance Sheet  113.65  95.19 
 Add: Profit for the year 50.19  42.83  
 Less: Appropriations
 Interim Dividend (Rs.10/-(Previous year Rs.10/-) 
 per share)

 17.26  8.63 

 Tax on Interim Dividend  2.80  1.43 
 Proposed Dividend (Rs.10/-(Previous year Rs.10/-) 
 per share)

 17.26  8.63 

 Tax on Proposed Dividend  2.80  1.40 
 Transfer to General reserve  5.02  4.28 

118.70  113.65
367.13  365.69

 5. otHEr lonG tErm lIaBIltIES
 Others:
 Security Deposits 5.49 5.04

5.49 5.04
6. lonG tErm proVISIonS
 Provision for employee benefits:
 Leave Encashment (Refer Note 39) 5.99 5.47

5.99 5.47
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(` in crore)
as at 31st march, 2012 as at 31st march, 2011

7. tradE payaBlES
i) Outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small 
 enterprises (Refer Note 36)
ii) Outstandings other than micro and small enterprises 74.98 53.49

74.98 53.49
8. otHEr CUrrEnt lIaBIlItIES
(a) Unclaimed Dividend 0.55 0.49
(b) Due to Investor Education and Protection Fund – 0.01

0.55 0.50
(c) Other Payables
 i) Statutory Remittances 5.31 3.82
 ii) Security Deposits 1.60 0.78
 iii) Advance from Customers 21.29 19.44

28.75 24.54
9. SHort tErm proVISIonS
(a) Provision for employee benefits
 i) Leave Encashment (Refer Note 39) 0.30 0.30
 ii) Gratuity (Refer Note 38) 0.60 2.47

0.90 2.77
(b) Others
 i) Sales Return (See note below) 3.39 3.17
 ii) Proposed Dividend 17.26 8.63
 iii) Tax on Proposed Dividend 2.80 1.40
 iv) Taxation (Net of Advance Tax) 3.06 4.95

26.51 18.15
27.41 20.92

note on movement in provision for Sales returns:
Opening Balance 3.17 2.02
Return Provision Created 73.89 72.51
Return Provision Adjusted (73.67) (71.36)
net Closing Balance 3.39 3.17
nature of provision:

Provision has been made for expected sales returns which are established using historical information on the frequency of claims 
and management estimates regarding possible future incidence.

Notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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(` in crore)
as at 31st march, 2012 as at 31st march, 2011

 11. dEFErrEd tax aSSEt (nEt)
(a) Provision for Doubtful debts  0.12  0.06 
(b) Depreciation  1.64  1.91 
(c) Provision for leave encashment  0.55  0.48 
(d) Others under section 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961  0.41  0.51 

 2.72  2.96 
12. lonG tErm loanS and adVanCES
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
(a) Capital Advances  0.03  0.12 
(b) Security Deposits  1.30  1.49 
(c) Other loans and advances 
 i) Advance Tax (Net of Provisions)  5.44  5.53 
 ii) Advance to Employees  1.38  0.89 
 iii) Others
 Unsecured, Doubtful  1.07  – 
 Less: Provision for doubtful  advances  (1.07)  – 

 –  – 
 8.15  8.03 

 Face Value 
 as at 31st 

march, 2012 
 as at 31st 

march, 2011 
 as at 31st 

march, 2012 
 as at 31st 

march, 2011 
(` per Unit) (no. of Units) (no. of Units) (` in crore) (` in crore) 

13.  CUrrEnt InVEStmEntS
non -trade, Unquoted and Fully paid
(at lower of cost and fair value)
Investments in mutual funds
liquid Funds:  

1. HDFC Liquid Fund - Premium Plan - 
 Daily Dividend

10  78,642,312  60,754,344  96.41  74.48 

2. ICICI Prudential Liquid - Super IP - 
 Daily Dividend

100  9,934,483  7,686,232  99.37  76.88 

 195.78  151.36 

Notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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(` in crore)
as at 31st march, 2012 as at 31st march, 2011

14.  InVEntorIES
(at lower of Cost and net realisable Value)
(a) Raw Materials (Refer Note (i) below)  12.60     7.42    
 Goods in Transit  1.69  2.67 

 14.29  10.09 
(b) Packing Materials  3.57  2.59 
(c) Work In Progress (Including Inputs for Standing 
 Crops) (Refer Note (ii) below)

 52.29  59.20 

(d) Finished Goods (other than Stock-in-trade) 
 (Refer Note (iii) below)

 59.28  58.44 

(e) Stock- in- trade (acquired for trading) 
 (Refer Note (iv) below)

 0.25  - 

 129.68  130.32 
Notes :
i) Raw materials
 - Agriculture Chemicals  14.29  10.09 

 14.29  10.09 
ii) Work in Progress
 -  Seeds  52.29  59.20 

 52.29  59.20 
iii) Finished Goods
 -  Seeds  31.05  39.98 
 - Agriculture Chemicals  28.23  18.46 

 59.28  58.44 
iv) Stock-in- trade
 - Agriculture Chemicals  0.25 – 

 0.25 – 
15.  tradE rECEIVaBlES
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from 
the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good     23.85  7.15 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  1.44  0.67 
Less: Provision for doubtful debts  (1.44) –  (0.67) –
Other Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good  26.42  33.70 

 50.27  40.85
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(` in crore)

as at 
31st march, 2012

as at 
31st march, 2011

16. CaSH  and CaSH EQUIValEntS
 Balances with banks
 i) In current accounts  3.76  5.74 
 ii) In Deposits  14.28  10.53 
 iii) In earmarked accounts
  -Unpaid dividends accounts  0.55  0.50 
  -Balances held as margin money against guarantees 
  (Refer note below)

 0.40  0.40 

 total 18.99 17.17
notes :
i) Balances held as margin money includes amount of  Rs. 0.40 crore (Previous year Rs 0.40 crore) having original maturity of 

more than 12 months.
ii) Balances held as margin money includes amount of  Rs.0.07 crore (Previous year nil) having maturity of more than 12 months 

from balance sheet date.
17.  SHort tErm loanS and adVanCES as at 

31st march, 2012
as at 

31st march, 2011
(Unsecured, considered good)
(a)  Loans and advances to related parties  (Refer Note 33)  2.94  7.52 
(b) Others 
 i) Advances to employees  0.06  0.24 
 ii) Advances to suppliers  7.81  16.29 
 iii) Prepaid Expenses  2.55  3.30 
 iv) Balance with Excise Authorities  3.45  2.10 
 v) Tender Deposits  0.80 – 

 17.61  29.45 
18. otHEr CUrrEnt aSSEtS
(a) Assets held for sale (Refer Note 42)  11.80  10.66 
(b) Interest accrued on deposits with banks and other advances  0.02  0.26 

 11.82  10.92 

Notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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(` in crore)

For the year ended 
31st march, 2012

For the previous 
year ended 

31st march, 2011
19. rEVEnUE From opEratIonS
(a) Sale of products (Refer notes below)  380.20  369.56 
(b) Other operating revenues  5.79  5.15 
total  385.99  374.71 
Less: Excise Duty  12.22  11.30 
total 373.77 363.41
notes :
1 Sales of manufactured products
 i) Agriculture Chemicals  112.73  100.22 
 ii) Seeds  267.36  269.34 

 380.09  369.56 
2 Sales of traded products
 Agriculture Chemicals  0.11  – 

 0.11  – 
 380.20  369.56 

(` in crore)
For the year ended 

31st march, 2012
For the previous year ended 

31st march, 2011
 20.  otHEr InComE
(a) Interest Income  0.98  0.59 

(b) Income from Current investment
 i) Dividend Income  10.56  6.14 

 ii) Gain on sale of investments  2.32 –
 12.88  6.14 

(c) Excess provision no longer required written back  1.29  1.62 
 15.15  8.35 

21. CoSt oF matErIalS ConSUmEd and  
 otHEr InpUtS
(a) Raw Materials consumed  (Refer Note (i) & (ii) below)
 Opening Stock  10.09  11.29 

 Add : Purchases  70.46  48.09 
 80.55  59.38 

 Less : Closing Stock  14.29  10.09 

 Raw Materials consumed  66.26  49.29 

(b) Seed Grower Payments  and Production Cost  77.25  36.75 

(c) Packing Materials consumed (Refer Note (iii) below)  11.87  12.85 
 155.38  98.89 
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(` in crore)
For the year ended 

31st march, 2012
For the previous year ended 

31st march, 2011
notes:
i) Particulars of  Raw materials Consumed 
 Glyphosate IPA Salt  51.89  40.45 
 Surfactant  11.48  7.55 
   Others  2.89  1.29 

 66.26  49.29 

% of  
Consumption (` in crore) % of 

Consumption (` in crore)

ii) Raw materials Consumed 
 Imported 95.64%  63.37 97.30%  47.96 
 Indigenous 4.36%  2.89 2.70%  1.33 

100.00%  66.26 100.00%  49.29 
iii) Packing Materials Consumed
 Imported 0.00%  – 0.00%  – 

 Indigenous 100.00%  11.87 100.00%  12.85 
100.00% 11.87 100.00% 12.85

(` in crore)
For the year ended 

31st march, 2012
For the previous year ended 

31st march, 2011
22. CHanGES In InVEntory oF FInISHEd 
 GoodS and WorK In proGrESS
i) Decrease/(Increase) in Stocks
 (a) Opening Stock:
  i) Finished Goods  58.44  42.04 
  ii) Work in Progress  59.20  125.00 

 117.64  167.04 
 (b) Closing Stock:
  i) Finished Goods  59.28  58.44 
  ii) Stock- in- Trade  0.25  – 
  iii) Work in Progress  52.29  59.20 

 111.82  117.64 
 5.82  49.40 

ii) Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty on Finished 
 Goods

1.42  0.61 

 7.24  50.01 

Notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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(` in crore)
For the year ended 

31st march, 2012
For the previous year ended 

31st march, 2011
23. EmployEE BEnEFItS ExpEnSES
 (Refer Note below)
 (a) Salaries and Wages  38.16  36.14 

 (b) Contribution to Provident and Other Funds  4.02  3.78 
 (c) Expense on employee stock option (ESOP) 
  scheme (Refer Note 41)

 2.59  2.59 

 (d) Staff Welfare Expenses  0.84  0.75 
 45.61  43.26 

note:
Employee benefits expenses above, includes expenses after reduction of reimbursements amounting to Rs. 4.95 crore (Previous 
year Rs. 9.17 crore) by Holding Company, Ultimate Holding Company and some Fellow Subsidiaries towards the value of costs 
apportioned of the Company’s employees in accordance with the agreements on allocation of expenses with the respective 
companies.
 24.  FInanCE CoSt
Interest on 
a) Security deposits  0.30  0.28 
b) Short payment of income tax  0.98  – 

 1.28  0.28 
25. otHEr ExpEnSES
(Refer Note (ii) below)
Consumption of  Stores and Spare parts 
(Refer Note (i) below)

  0.35  0.26 

Power and Fuel  5.53  4.80 
Rent   10.36  11.51 
Repairs to Buildings  0.22  0.13 
Repairs to Machinery  1.12  0.54 

 1.34  0.67 
Insurance  0.82  0.81 
Rates and Taxes  3.01  3.71 
Freight, Forwarding charges  14.54  15.73 
Travel and Entertainment   8.01  6.27 
Vehicle Expenses and Hire Charges   7.99  7.47 
Loss on sale/disposal of Fixed Assets (net)  0.46  0.58 
Advertising and Promotions  15.98  16.94 
Cash Discount & Germination claims  13.98  11.23 
Provision for Doubtful debts  0.91  0.62 
Bad Debts written off  0.14  0.18 

Less : Adjusted against provision  (0.14)  (0.18)
– – 



92

Monsanto India Limited

(` in crore)
For the year ended 

31st march, 2012
For the previous year ended 

31st march, 2011
Consultancy Fees  6.56  5.22 
Provision for Doubtful Advances  1.07 – 
Foreign exchange Loss (Net)  0.97  0.72 
Advances and deposits written off  0.58 – 
Miscellaneous Expenses (including Research and 
Development expense of Rs. 3.86 crore (Previous year  
Rs. 2.76 crore)

 17.73  19.51 

 110.19  106.05 

 notes:

% of  
Consumption (` in crore) % of  

Consumption (` in crore)

i) Consumption of  Stores and Spare parts
 Imported 0.00% – 0.00% – 

 Indigenous 100.00%  0.35 100.00%  0.26 
100.00%  0.35 100.00%  0.26 

ii) Other Expenses above, includes expenses after reduction of reimbursements amounting to Rs. 21.43 crore (Previous year 
Rs. 0.38 crore)  by Holding Company, Ultimate Holding Company and some Fellow Subsidiaries towards the value of costs 
apportioned of the Company’s facilities in accordance with the agreements on allocation of expenses with the respective 
companies.

Notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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SIGnIFICant aCCoUntInG polICIES and notES to aCCoUntS
1. Company Background:

 Monsanto India Limited (the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 8th December 1949. The company is presently engaged in the business 
of production and sale of agricultural inputs, namely, chemicals and hybrid seeds. The company’s corporate office is located in 
Mumbai. It has a chemical production unit at Silvassa, hybrid seeds processing and drying units at Hyderabad and breeding stations 
at Banglore and Hyderabad. During the previous year hybrid seeds processing and drying operations at Bellary and Eluru were 
shifted to Hyderabad.

2. Significant accounting policies:

 (A) Basis of preparation of financial statements:

  The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, in accordance with Indian 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

 (B)  Use of estimates:

  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires estimates and 
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates and differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periods in which 
the results are known / materialize.

 (C) Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation

  Fixed Assets are valued at their historical cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all 
costs incurred to bring the assets to their present location and condition.

  Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets is provided for on straight line basis in accordance with Section 205(2)(b) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) as follows:

  (i) On fixed assets (except as stated below), at the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Act.

  (ii) Field vehicles are depreciated at the rate of 20%.

  (iii) Plant and Machinery other than dryer is depreciated at the rate of 10%. Dryer is depreciated at the rate of 5%.

  (iv) Mobile phones (Blackberry) have been depreciated at the rate of 33.33%

  (v) Leasehold improvements are amortised over the unexpired primary period of lease.

  (vi) Factory Buildings are depreciated at the rate of 5%.

 (D) Intangible Assets and Amortisation

  Intangible Assets are valued at their cost less accumulated amortisation. Cost includes all costs incurred to bring the assets to 
their present location and condition.

  Intellectual Property Rights are amortised on a Straight Line basis over its useful life which is estimated by the management to 
be 5 years.

  Computer Software is amortised on a Straight Line basis over its useful life which is estimated by the management to be upto 
6 years.

 (E)  Impairment 

  An asset is considered as impaired in accordance with Accounting Standard 28 on Impairment of Assets when at balance sheet 
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date there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset, or where applicable the cash generating unit 
to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the asset’s net selling price and value in use). In 
assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flow expected from the continuing use of the asset and its ultimate disposal 
are discounted to their present value using a predetermined discount rate. The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable 
amount and the reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the statement of profit and loss.

 (F) Investments:

  Current investments are stated at the lower of cost and fair value.

 (G) Inventories:

  Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 

  Costs of inventories comprise all costs of purchase – net of CENVAT, costs of inputs for standing crops, cost of conversion 
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. Cost of Raw Materials, Packing 
Materials and Finished Goods (Traded Goods) are determined on FIFO basis. Cost of Work in Progress and Finished Goods 
(manufactured) are determined by the absorption costing method.

 (H) Revenue Recognition:

  (i) Revenue is recognized when it is earned and no significant uncertainty exists as to its realization or collection. Revenue on 
sale of products is recognised on delivery of the products, when all significant contractual obligations have been satisfied, 
the property in the goods is transferred for a price, significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred and 
no effective ownership control is retained. 

   Sales are stated inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade discounts and sales tax recovered. The amount of excise 
duty that is included in the amount of turnover (gross) is presented as a reduction from gross sales in accordance with 
the Accounting Standard (AS) - 9 “Revenue Recognition”.

  (ii) Revenue in respect of royalty, commission, etc. is recognized in accordance with contractual obligations.

  (iii) Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis.

 (I) Foreign Currency Transactions:

  (i) Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the average monthly exchange rates, during the months in which the 
transactions are effected. 

  (ii)  Exchange differences arising on settlement of revenue transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

  (iii) Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the 
balance sheet. Gains / Losses arising on restatement and on settlement of such liabilities are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss.

 (J) Employee Benefits:

  (i) Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions as required by the statute made to Government 
Provident Fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

  (ii) Superannuation fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company contributes a sum equivalent to 15% of eligible 
employees salary to Superannuation Fund administered by Trustees and managed by a life insurance company. The 
company recognizes such contribution as an expense as and when incurred. 

  (iii) The Company participates in a group gratuity cum life insurance scheme administered by the TATA AIG Life Insurance 
Company Ltd. Being a defined benefit plan, annual contributions made to the scheme are as per the intimations received 

Notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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from the TATA AIG Life Insurance Company Ltd. The company accounts for liability for future gratuity benefits based 
on an actuarial valuation conducted by an independent actuary. The net present value of the company’s obligation 
is determined based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date. Additionally shortfall, if any, 
between the balance in the fund with Tata AIG Life Insurance Company Ltd. and actuarial valuation obtained from an 
independent actuary is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

  (iv) The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by 
an employee is recognized during the period when the employee renders the service. These benefits include performance 
incentives and non vesting accumulated compensated absences.

  (v) The liability for compensated absences is another long term benefit and is wholly unfunded. The liability for number of 
days of unutilized leave at each Balance Sheet date is provided for based on an independent actuarial valuation.

  (vi) The actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

 (K) Earnings per Share:

  The Company reports Earnings per Share (EPS) in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 on Earnings per Share. Basic EPS 
is computed by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year. 

 (L) Taxation:

  Income tax is accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard 22 on Accounting for Taxes on Income. Taxes comprise 
both current and deferred tax. 

  Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the applicable 
tax rates and tax laws. 

  The tax effect of the timing differences that result between taxable income and accounting income and are capable of reversal 
in one or more subsequent periods are recorded as a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability. They are measured using the 
substantively enacted tax rates and tax regulations. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date is 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which 
the deferred tax asset can be realised.

 (M) Operating Lease:

  Operating lease payments are recognized as expenditure in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis, which is 
representative of the time pattern of benefits received from the use of assets taken on lease.

 (N)  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

  Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a 
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but 
are disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

 (O) Cash Flow Statement:

  The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statement and 
presents cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the company. Cash and cash equivalents presented in the 
cash flow statement consist of cash on hand and balances in current and demand deposits with banks.
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(` in crore)

as at   
31st march, 2012

as at   
31st march, 2011

26. CommItmEntS
i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be  
 executed on capital account and not provided

0.91 2.29

ii)  Other Commitments - Dividend on shares held in abeyance 
 (Refer Note 3)

 0.04 0.04

(` in crore)
as at 

31st march, 2012
as at  

31st march, 2011
27. ContInGEnt lIaBIlItIES In rESpECt oF tHE 
 FolloWInG mattErS:
i) Income tax 56.61 28.21

ii) Sales tax 3.12  3.91

iii) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 1.33 0.92
note: In respect of items mentioned above, till matters are finally decided, the financial effect cannot be ascertained.

(` in crore)
as at  

31st march, 2012
as at 

31st march, 2011
28. aUdItorS’ rEmUnEratIon: 
(a) Statutory Auditor:
 Audit fees 0.12 0.12

 Other services 0.05 0.05

 Tax Audit 0.05 0.05

 Out-of-pocket expenses – 0.01

 Service Tax on above 0.03 0.02
0.25 0.25

(b) Cost Auditor:
 Audit fees 0.01 0.01

(` in crore)
as at  

31st march, 2012
as at 

31st march, 2011
29. ValUE oF ImportS CalCUlatEd on C.I.F. BaSIS
 Raw Materials  59.53  52.42

Notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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(` in crore)
as at  

31st march, 2012
as at 

31st march, 2011
30. EarnInGS In ForEIGn CUrrEnCy (on aCCrUal BaSIS)
 FOB Value of Exports  15.47  10.58

(` in crore)
as at  

31st march, 2012
as at 

31st march, 2011
31. ExpEndItUrE In ForEIGn CUrrEnCy (on aCCrUal 
 BaSIS)
 Travel Expenses 0.59 0.15
 Professional Consultancy Fees 2.29 0.10
 Salaries 0.64 0.69
 Communication Expenses 0.01 0.01
 Others (including reimbursement of expenses) 0.37 0.40

 32. rEmIttanCE In ForEIGn ExCHanGE on aCCoUnt oF dIVIdEndS to non-rESIdEnt SHarEHoldErS
(` in crore)

 
dividend in respect of  

the year ended
no. of Shares

no. of 
Shareholders

 31st march, 2012  31stmarch, 2011

2009-10 (Final) 2,559,770 2  – 1.92
2010-11 (Interim) 1,984,770 2  – 1.98
2010-11 (Final) 1,600,960 1  1.60 –
2011-12 (Interim) 3,201,920 1  3.20 –

 33. rElatEd party dISCloSUrE:

 Names of related parties and description of relationship

 a. Holding Company: 

  Holding Company- Monsanto Holdings Private Limited 

  Ultimate Holding Company- Monsanto Company, USA 

 B. Fellow Subsidiaries: 

  P.T. Branita Sandhini, Monsanto Philippines INC, Monsanto Thailand Ltd, Bretco Holding (Mauritius) Ltd, Monsanto 
Singapore Pte Ltd, Monsanto Pakistan Agri-tec (Pvt) Ltd, PT Monagro Kimia, Monsanto AG Products LLC, Monsanto Ag 
Technology LLC, Monsanto Inter-America Co, Monsanto S.A.S, Monsanto Far East Ltd., Seminis Beijing Co. Ltd., Mahyco 
Monsanto Biotech (I) Ltd. Monsanto International SARL, Monsanto Hungaria KFT. 

 C. Key managerial personnel:

  Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria, Managing Director
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(` in crore)
 year Ended 31st march, 2012 year Ended 31st march, 2011

nature of transactions Ultimate 
Holding 

Co.

Holding 
Co.

Fellow 
Subsidiary

Key 
managerial 
personnel

total Ultimae 
Holding 

Co.

Holding 
Co.

Fellow 
Subsidiary

Key 
managerial 
personnel

total

    
purchase of Goods  54.31  –  –  –  54.31  45.20  –  –  –  45.20 
Monsanto Company, USA  54.31  –  –  –  54.31  45.20  –  –  –  45.20 
Sale of Goods  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  1.56  –  1.56 
Monsanto Thailand Ltd.  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  1.33  –  1.33 
Monsanto Far East Ltd.  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  0.23  –  0.23 
Monsanto Holdings Private 
Ltd.

 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Monsanto Pak Agri tech 
Private Limited

 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

purchase of Fixed asset  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
Monsanto Company , USA  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
Expenses towards royalty  –  1.57  –  –  1.57  –  1.55  –  –  1.55 
Monsanto Holdings Private 
Ltd.

 –  1.57  –  –  1.57  –  1.55  –  –  1.55 

rent  –  3.67  –  –  3.67  –  3.40  –  –  3.40 
Monsanto Holdings Private 
Ltd.

 –  3.67  –  –  3.67  –  3.40  –  –  3.40 

remuneration  –  –  –  1.18  1.18  –  –  –  1.06  1.06 
Amitabh Jaipura  –  –  –  1.18  1.18  –  –  –  1.06  1.06 
reimbursement of 
Expenses (net)

 (1.19)  16.09  11.48  –  26.38  3.31  3.74  2.50  –  9.55 

Monsanto Company, USA  (1.19)  –  –  –  (1.19)  3.31  –  –  –  3.31 
Monsanto Singapore Pte Ltd  –  –  1.35  –  1.35  –  –  0.55  –  0.55 
Monsanto Philipines  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  (0.01)  –  (0.01)
PT Branita Sandhini  –  –  0.28  –  0.28  –  –  0.36  –  0.36 
Monsanto Thailand Ltd  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  0.04  –  0.04 
Monsanto SAS  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  (0.08)  –  (0.08)
Seminis Beijing Co Ltd  –  –  0.01  –  0.01  –  –  (0.01)  –  (0.01)
Monsanto Far East Ltd.  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  0.01  –  0.01 
Monsanto Ag Product  –  –  (1.28)  –  (1.28)  –  –  (0.33)  –  (0.33)
Mahyco Monsanto Biotech 
(I) Ltd.

 –  –  10.83  –  10.83  –  –  1.29  –  1.29 

Monsanto Inter America 
Company

 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  0.68  –  0.68 

Monsanto International 
SARL

 –  –  (0.04)  –  (0.04)  –  –  –  –  – 

Monsanto Hungaria KFT  –  –  0.33  –  0.33  –  –  –  –  – 
Monsanto Holdings Private 
Ltd.

 –  16.09  –  –  16.09  –  3.74  –  –  3.74 

Issue of Bonus shares  1.60  4.63  –  –  6.23  –  –  –  –  – 
Monsanto Company,USA  1.60  –  –  –  1.60  –  –  –  –  – 
Monsanto Holdings Pvt Ltd.  –  4.63  –  –  4.63  –  –  –  –  – 
payment of dividends  4.80  13.88  –  –  18.68  2.80  6.99  1.10  –  10.89 
Monsanto Company, USA  4.80  –  –  –  4.80  2.80  –  –  –  2.80 

Notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012



99

Corporate Overview
Strategic Review

Board And Management Reports
Financial Statements

Annual Report 2011-12

(` in crore)
 year Ended 31st march, 2012 year Ended 31st march, 2011

nature of transactions Ultimate 
Holding 

Co.

Holding 
Co.

Fellow 
Subsidiary

Key 
managerial 
personnel

total Ultimae 
Holding 

Co.

Holding 
Co.

Fellow 
Subsidiary

Key 
managerial 
personnel

total

Monsanto Holdings Pvt Ltd.  –  13.88  –  –  13.88  –  6.99  –  –  6.99 
Bretco Holdings 
(Mauritius) Ltd

 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  1.10  –  1.10 

outstanding at year–end 
Sundry debtors

 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  1.62  –  1.62 

Monsanto Thailand Ltd  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  1.39  –  1.39 
Monsanto Far East Ltd.  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  0.23  –  0.23 
loans and advances  3.17  9.42  1.47  –  14.06  –  7.26  2.70  –  9.96 
Monsanto Company, USA  3.17  –  –  –  3.17  –  –  –  –  – 
Monsanto Holdings Pvt Ltd.  –  9.42  –  –  9.42  –  7.26  –  –  7.26 
Monsanto Pakistan 
Agritech (Pvt) Ltd.

 –  –  0.01  –  0.01  –  –  0.01  –  0.01 

Seminis Bejing Company 
Ltd.

 –  –  0.01  –  0.01  –  –  0.01  –  0.01 

Monsanto Far East Ltd.  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  0.04  –  0.04 
Monsanto Singapore Pte Ltd  –  –  0.35  –  0.35  –  –  0.02  –  0.02 
Monsanto Thailand Ltd  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  0.01  –  0.01 
Monsanto Hungaria KFT  –  –  0.12  –  0.12  –  –  –  –  – 
Mahyco Monsanto Biotech 
(I) Ltd.

 –  –  0.93  –  0.93  –  –  2.35  –  2.35 

PT Branita Sanhini  –  –  0.05  –  0.05  –  –  0.26  –  0.26 
Sundry Creditors  9.49  7.91  1.93  –  19.33  8.35  2.49  1.03  –  11.87 
PT Monagro Kimia  –  –  0.01  –  0.01  –  –  0.01  –  0.01 
Monsanto Philipines  –  –  0.01  –  0.01  –  –  0.01  –  0.01 
Mahyco Monsanto BioTech 
(I) Ltd

 –  –  0.02  –  0.02  –  –  –  –  – 

Monsanto Thailand Ltd  –  –  0.02  –  0.02  –  –  0.01  –  0.01 
Monsanto SAS  –  –  0.09  –  0.09  –  –  0.09  –  0.09 
Monsanto Ag Products LLC  –  –  1.70  –  1.70  –  –  0.32  –  0.32 
PT Branita Sandhini  –  –  0.01  –  0.01  –  –  –  –  – 
Monsanto Company, USA  9.49  –  –  –  9.49  8.35  –  –  –  8.35 
Seminis  (Beijing) Co Ltd  –  –  0.03  –  0.03  –  –  0.03  –  0.03 
Monsanto Holding Pvt Ltd  –  7.91  –  –  7.91  –  2.49  –  –  2.49 
Monsanto Ag Technology 
LLC

 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  0.51  –  0.51 

Monsanto International 
SARL

 –  –  0.04  –  0.04  –  –  –  –  – 

Monsanto Singapore Pte Ltd.  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  0.05  –  0.05 

34. The dominant source and nature of the risks and returns of the agricultural chemistry and seeds activities of the company not being 
significantly different, the Company operates a single segment of activity, “Agricultural Inputs”, within the same geography.
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35. The Company has incurred the following expenses towards operating leases pertaining to vehicles, office equipments, warehouses 
and residential premises. Lease agreements are executed for a period ranging from 11 to 48 months. 

(` in crore)
31st march, 2012 31st march, 2011

Cancellable   10.36  11.51
Non-Cancellable   6.18   6.85

 The Company is obligated under non-cancellable leases pertaining to vehicles and office equipment to pay the following amounts in 
future as given below: 

(` in crore)
31st march, 2012 31st march, 2011

Within 1 year   3.55  12.24 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4.14 17.17

36. The disclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) have been made on the basis of 
confirmations received from suppliers regarding their status under the said act:

(` in crore)

Sr. 
no. particulars 31st march, 2012 31st march, 2011

1. Amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at end of accounting year.
- Principal Amount   – * –
- Interest due thereon  – –

2. Amount of interest paid along with the amounts of payment made 
beyond the appointed day.

 – –

3. Amount of interest due and payable (where the principal has 
already been paid but interest has not been paid).

 – –

4. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each accounting year.

 – –

5. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act.

 – –

 * Amount less than Rs.1 lac. 

37. The Company has continually maintained a position that its income from agricultural activities (which involves growing seeds in 
various states through local growers), is not taxable. This contention has been upheld by the Honorable Bombay High Court for 
the Assessment Years 1993-94 to 2001-02 and Assessment years 2003-04 to 2005-06 and by the Commissioner of Income – tax 
(Appeals) for Assessment Year 2002-03, 2006-07 and 2007-08.
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38. Disclosure as required under AS -15 regarding the Company’s defined benefit plans is as follows:

 I. reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity:

(` in crore)
as at  

31st march, 2012
as at 

31st march, 2011
Change in benefit obligations
Present value of benefit obligations as at 1st April 12.25 11.45
Service cost 1.21 1.19
Interest cost 1.01 0.92
Benefits paid (0.80) (2.47)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations  0.93  1.16
Present value of benefit obligations as at 31st March 14.60 12.25

 II. reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the fair value of plan assets:

(` in crore)
as at 

31st march, 2012
as at 

31st march, 2011
Fair value of plan assets, as at 1st April 9.78 10.75
Expected return on plan assets 0.81  0.86
Actuarial gain /(loss)  0.19  (0.47)
Employer Contribution  4.02  1.11
Benefits paid (0.80)  (2.47)
Fair Value of plan assets as at 31st March 14.00 9.78

 III. actual return on plan assets:

(` in crore)
as at 

31st march, 2012
as at 

31st march, 2011
Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.81  0.86
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan assets 0.19  (0.47)
Actual Return on Plan Assets 1.00  0.39 

 IV. amount recognized in the Balance Sheet:

(` in crore)
as at 

31st march, 2012
as at 

31st march, 2011
Fair value of plan assets 14.00 9.78
Present value of benefit obligations 14.60 12.25
Net asset/(liability) (0.60) (2.47)
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 V. Cost recognized in the Statement of profit and loss:
(` in crore)

31st march, 2012 31st march, 2011
Current service cost 1.21 1.19
Interest cost 1.01 0.92
Expected return on plan assets  (0.81) (0.86)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 0.74 1.63
Net gratuity cost 2.15 2.88

 VI. reconciliation of the liability recognized in the Balance Sheet:
(` in crore)

31st march, 2012 31st march, 2011
Opening Net Liability  2.47 0.70
Expense recognized 2.15 2.88
Employer Contribution  (4.02) (1.11)
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet  0.60  2.47

 VII. Experience adjustments: (` in crore)
as at 31st 
march, 

2012

as at 31st 

march, 
2011

as at 31st 
march, 

2010

as at 31st 
march, 

2009

as at 31st 

march, 
2008

Liability at the end of the Period 14.60 12.25 11.45 9.62 7.11
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period 14.00 9.78 10.75 7.67 6.02
Deficit / (Surplus) 0.60 2.47 0.70 1.95 1.09
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (Gain)/Loss 1.15 0.10  (0.63) 2.30 1.36
Experience adjustments on plan Assets Gain/(Loss) 0.19 (0.47) 0.05 0.26 (0.39)

 VIII. actuarial assumptions used:
as at 

31st march, 2012
as at 

31st march, 2011
Discount rate 8.75%p.a. 8.25%p.a.
Salary escalation rate 9.70%p.a. 9.30%p.a.
Expected return on plan assets 8.75%p.a. 8.25%p.a.

 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

 The Company’s best estimate of contributions expected to be paid to the plan during the annual period beginning after 31st March, 2012 
is Rs.1.88 crore (Previous Year Rs. 4.03 crore)

The major categories of plan assets as % of total plan
31st march, 2012 
Gratuity Funded

31st march, 2011 
Gratuity Funded

Insurer Managed Funds: 100% 100%
Government Bonds 41.00% 40.14%
Infrastructure Bonds 28.00% 38.59%
Corporate Bonds 26.00% 21.19%
Treasury Bills 1.00% -
Reverse Repo - 0.08%
Fixed Deposit 4.00% -

 The above information is certified by the actuary and relied upon by the Auditors.
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39. The Company has accrued the liability for compensated absences based on the actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date 
conducted by an independent actuary and provided for the actuarial liability at Rs. 6.29 crore (Previous Year Rs. 5.77 crore).

 Actuarial assumptions used:

as at  
31st march, 2012

as at 
31st march, 2011

Discount rate 8.75% p.a. 8.25% p.a.
Salary escalation rate 9.70% p.a. 9.30% p.a.

40. EarnInGS pEr SHarE (EpS):

year Ended 
31st march, 2012

year Ended 
31st march, 2011

A. Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. in crore) 50.19 42.83
B. Number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 17,262,348 17,262,348
C. Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
 Basic/ Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) (A/B) 29.07 24.81

 note: Pursuant to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General meeting held on 26th September, 2011, the Company 
allotted 8,631,174 equity shares of Rs. 10 each as fully paid bonus shares in the ratio of one equity share for each existing equity share 
held by equity shareholders as on the record date viz, 8th October, 2011. Consequently, Earnings Per Share (EPS) has been adjusted 
for previous year in the financial statements as required under AS-20 Earnings Per Share.

41. Monsanto Company USA (MC) has established the Monsanto Company Long Term Incentive Plan. As part of the plan, employees 
of Monsanto India Limited are provided with an opportunity to acquire shares of MC via stock option / equity-based awards. The 
eligible employees are granted the options which shall vest with the employees over a period of 3 years from the date of the grant 
and they can exercise the stock options after their vesting period through any of the following three methods viz., i) cashless sell; 
ii) cashless hold and iii) cash purchase. The employee can exercise the option within a stipulated period mentioned in the plan.

 Monsanto India Limited measures compensation expense for stock options and equity- based awards (net of forfeitures) at their 
fair value determined using a Lattice binomial model on the date of grant and amortised over the vesting period. Accordingly an 
amount of Rs. 2.59 crore (Previous year Rs. 2.59 crore) has been debited to the statement of profit and loss for the year. This amount 
includes an amount of Rs. 0.04 crore (Previous Year Rs. 0.03 crore) incurred by the company towards employee stock option plan 
for the Managing Director. 

 During the year MC has granted to employees of the Company 15,354 (Previous Year 23,290) options / stock awards on various dates 
of which none are vested. However 3,270 (Previous Year 5,573) options / stock-awards were withdrawn on account of employee 
resignations, 1,184 (Previous Year Nil) options were exercised and 6,070 (Previous year 4,820) options (net) were transferred to 
other Companies during the year, resulting in an outstanding balance of 72,230 (Previous year 67,400) options/ stock-awards at the 
end of the year.

42.  In the previous year, as a part of consolidation of manufacturing operations in Hyderabad to achieve operational savings, the 
Company shifted the seed processing and drying operations from Bellary and Eluru to Hyderabad and related assets were shown 
under ‘Assets held for sale’ in the Balance Sheet. The said assets were valued at the lower of net book value and net realizable value 
in accordance with Accounting Standard 10 – Accounting for Fixed Assets. Accordingly, in the previous year, in case of the assets at 
Eluru, the net realizable value was lower by Rs. 12.17 crore based on a letter of intent issued by the Company to a prospective buyer 
and the loss was recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In the current year, the said assets at Eluru were sold at a gain of 
Rs. 0.26 crore, which is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In respect the assets held for sale at Bellary, the management 
expects to realise value higher than the net book value of the assets. Accordingly, the assets at Bellary are carried at net book value.
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43.  The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:

(in Crore)

31st march, 2012 31st march, 2011
Rs. USD Rs. USD

a. Amounts receivable in foreign currency on 
account of Export of goods & services

3.83 0.08 2.17 0.05

b. Amounts payable in foreign currency on account 
of the following:

 - Imports of goods and services 14.02 0.27  9.52 0.21

44.  ComparatIVE FInanCIal InFormatIon:

 The Revised Schedule VI has become effective from 1st April, 2011 for the preparation of financial statements. This has significantly 
impacted the disclosure and presentation made in the financial statements. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified 
wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s classification/disclosure.

Notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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(` in crore)

particulars
For the year ended 

31st march, 2012
For the previous year ended 

31st march, 2011
a. CaSH FloW From opEratInG aCtIVItIES
 Net Profit Before Tax  60.14  50.29 
 Adjustments for :
 Depreciation and Amortisation  9.00  10.81 
 Interest Expense  1.28  0.28 
 Provision for Doubtful Debts  0.91  0.62 
 Provision for Doubtful Advances  1.07  –   
 Interest Income  (0.98)  (0.59)
 Loss on sale/disposal of Fixed Assets (Net)  0.46  0.58 
 Diminution in value of Fixed Assets held for sale 
 (disclosed under exceptional item)

 –    12.17 

 Profit on sale of Fixed Assets held for sale (disclosed 
 under exceptional item)

 (0.26)  –   

 Dividend Income from Mutual funds  (10.56)  (6.14)
 Gain on Sale of investment  (2.32)  –   

 (1.40)  17.73 
 operating profit before Working Capital changes  58.74  68.02 
 Changes in Working Capital 
 Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in operating 
 assets:
 Inventories  0.64  52.16 
 Trade Receivables  (10.33)  3.64 
 Short Term / Long term  Loans and Advances  10.57  (13.43)
 Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in operating 
 liabilities:
 Trade payables  21.49  (13.85)
 Other long term and current liabilities  4.57  (0.13)
 Short term / Long term provisions  (1.13)  3.18 

 25.81  31.57 
 Net cash generated from operations  84.55  99.59 
 Direct Taxes paid (net)  (12.50)  (9.99)
 Net cash generated from Operating Activities  72.05  89.60 
B. CaSH FloW From InVEStInG aCtIVItIES
 Purchase of Fixed Assets (including capital work in 
 progress)

 (12.26)  (12.14)

 Interest Income received  1.22  0.55 
 Investment  in units of Mutual Funds  (608.54)  (190.88)
 Redemption  in units of Mutual Funds  566.44  120.24 
 Sale of  Fixed Assets  0.29  1.08 
 Sale of Assets held for sale  2.35  –   
 Dividend Income from Mutual funds  10.56  6.14 
 Net Cash used in Investing Activities  (39.94)  (75.01)

Cash Flow Statement  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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(` in crore)

particulars
For the year ended 

31st march, 2012
For the previous year ended 

31st march, 2011
C. CaSH FloW From FInanCInG aCtIVItIES
 Dividend paid  (25.84)  (15.08)
 Tax on Dividend  (4.20)  (2.51)
 Interest paid  (0.30)  (0.57)
 Net cash used in Financing Activities  (30.34)  (18.16)
 Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash 
 Equivalents  (A + B + C)

 1.77  (3.57)

 Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance  16.27  19.84 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance  18.04  16.27 

notES to CaSH FloW StatEmEnt :
1 reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the 
 Balance Sheet:
 Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance sheet 
 (Refer Note 16)

 18.99  17.17 

 Less: Earmarked balances
      -Unpaid dividends accounts  0.55  0.50 
      -Balances held as margin money against guarantees  0.40  0.40 

 0.95  0.90 
 18.04  16.27 

2 Cash and Cash Equivalents include:    
 Balances with banks
 i) In current accounts  3.76  5.74 
 ii) In Deposits  14.28  10.53 

 18.04  16.27 
3 a) Net Profit Before Tax and (Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables includes unrealised foreign exchange gain 

(previous year loss) amounting to Rs. 0.20 crore (previous year Rs. (0.03) crore). 

 b) Also, Net Profit Before Tax and Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables includes unrealised foreign exchange loss 
(previous year gain) amounting to Rs. (0.90) crore (previous year Rs. 0.11 crore).

4 Figures of the previous year have been recast wherever necessary to conform to the figures of the current year.

Cash Flow Statement  
for the year ended 31st March, 2012

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
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Monsanto India Limited
Registered Office: Ahura Centre, 5th Floor, 96, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093.

FORM 2B
(See Rules 4CC and 5D)

NOMINATION FORM
(For shares held in physical form)

To,
Link Intime India Private Limited
UNIT: MONSANTO INDIA LIMITED
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (W), 
Mumbai - 400 078.

From  : 

   

   
Folio No./ 
Client ID No.  : 

Shares held  : 

I am/we are the holder(s) of Shares of the Company as mentioned above. I/we nominate the following person(s) in whom all rights of 
transfer and/or amount payable in respect of Shares shall vest in the event of my/our death. 

Nominee's Name Age

Date of birth*

Guardian's Name*

Occupation of 1. Service 2. Business 3. Student 4. Professional

Nominee () 5. Household 6. Farmer 7. Others

Nominee's
Address

Pin Code

Telephone No. Fax No.

E-mail Address STD Code

Specimen Signature of Nominee/
Guardian (in case of nominee is minor)

* To be filled in case nominee is minor.
Kindly take the aforesaid details on record

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

Name of all the Holder(s)
[as appearing on the Certificate(s)]

Signature as per specimen
recorded with the Company

Sole/1st holder
2nd holder
3rd holder

Signature of two Witnesses

Name and Address Signautre with date



Instructions:
Please read the instructions given below very carefully and follow the same to the letter. If the form is not filled as per the instructions, 
the same will be rejected.

1. The nomination can be made by individuals only. Non-individuals including society, trust, body corporate, partnership firm, Karta 
of Hindu Undivided Family, holder of power of attorney cannot nominate. If the shares are held jointly all joint holders will sign (as 
per the specimen recorded with the Company) the nomination form. A non-resident Indian can be a nominee on non-repatriable 
basis.

2. A minor can be nominated by a holder of shares and in that event the name and address of the Guardian shall be given by the holder.

3. Transfer of share in favour of nominee and repayment of amount to the nominee shall be valid discharge by a Company against the 
legal hair.

4. Only one person can be nominated per folio.

5. Details of all the holders in a folio required to be filled; else there request will be rejected.

6. The nomination will be registered only when it is complete in all respects including the signature of (a) all the registered holders (as 
per the specimen recorded with the Company) and (b) the nominee.

7. Whenever the Shares in the given folio are entirely transferred or transposed with some other folio, then this nomination will stand 
rescinded.

8. On receipt of duly executed nomination form, the Company will register the form and allot a registration number and date. This 
number and Folio No./ID No. should be quoted by the nominee in all future correspondence.

9. The nomination can be revoked by executing fresh nomination form.

10. The Company will not entertain any claims other than those of a registered nominee, unless so directed by a Court.

11. In case of shareholders holding their shares in demat mode, the shareholders are requested to provide the details to NSDL/CDSL as 
the case may be through their respective Depository Participant.

For Office use only

Nomination Registration Number Registered Folio No./ID No.

Date of Registration

Checked by (Name & Signautre)



DP. ID* Master Folio No.

Client ID*

I/We  of 

in the district 

of  being a Member/Members of Monsanto India Limited hereby appoint 

of  in the district of  

or failing him  of  in the district of 

 as my/our Proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 62nd ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING of the said Company to be held on 3rd August, 2012 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this  day of  2012.

Signature(s) of the Member(s) 

Note: 
i) This Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, 
 not later than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

ii) A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

iii) *Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall

DP. ID* Master Folio No.

Client ID*

I hereby record my presence at the 62nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING held at Y. B. Chavan, 4th Floor, Cultural Hall, Gen. Jaganath 
Bhosale Marg, Nariman Point, Near Sachivalay Gymkhana, Mumbai - 400 021 on 3rd August, 2012, at 11.30 a.m.

Name of Proxy/Representative (in BLOCK Letter)
(To be filled in if the Proxy attends instead of the Member)

Signature of the Member or Proxy/Representative 

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

Monsanto India Limited
Registered Office: Ahura Centre, 5th Floor, 96, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Monsanto India Limited
Registered Office: Ahura Centre, 5th Floor, 96, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093.

PROXY

Affix 

Revenue 
Stamp
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